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"HIS MAJESTY’S TREE"
GROW-PROSPER-SUSTAIN
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His Late Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej planted a Fire of Pakistan tree (Phyllocarpus Septentrionalis)
as part of the opening ceremony for the Olefins plant of the National Pefrachemical Company Limited.
present day PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited, and the Petrochemical Industry Group 1
on January 21°, 1992.

We, the directors. executive officers and employees of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Llimited
and if's Subsidiaries. would like to express our gratitude towards His Late Majesty’s unfathomable grace.
We will draw inspiration from the wise words and teaching of His Late Majesty, which also serve as our
guidance, steering us onto the path of honesty, sufficiency and thankfulness towards the land, over
which His Late Majesty had ruled his subjects in peace and happiness. We will become like the tree that
His Lafe Majesty planted, growing and prospering in a sustainable manner.
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“However, sufficiency or to have enough has more extensive meaning than this. The word to
have enough is sufficient; sufficiency is moderation. If one is moderate in one’s desires, one
will have less craving. If one has less craving, one will take less advantages of others. If all
nations hold this concept - | don’t mean sufficiency economy - this concept of moderation, without
being extreme or insatiable in one’s desires, the world will be a happier place. Being moderate
does not mean to be too strictly frugal; luxurious items are permissible, but one should not take
advantage of others in the fulfillment of one’s desires.”

Royal speech of His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej
Given on the Occasion of the Royal Birthday Anniversary

On 4 December 1998
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Among the many aspirations of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited lies our dedication to the adoption
of the wise words of His Late Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej. We have adopted the principles of the
Philosophy of Sufficiency Economy in our operations. His Late Majesty’s philosophy is guidance for the people
of Thailand regardless of their social standing. It steers us towards the middle path, the path of sufficiency,
which is comprised of moderation, reasonableness and self-immunity based on conditions of knowledge and

virtue.
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Constant

self-improvement

and perseverance
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Continuous
optimization of
natural resource usages
has made PTTGC who
we are today
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Risks management,
quality improvement
and increase resilient

to continuously
SELF-IMMUNITY
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maintaining profitability.
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To realize all of this, there are fundamental requirements, which are knowledge and
ethics. We can never stop learning, gaining more experience. We also need to foster
an organizational culture of sharing, fransparency and commitment to the greater good.
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SUSTAINABILITY POLICY

At PTTGC, we understand sustainability as conducting our business with consideration of all three
pillars - economy, social and environment - in all that we do. We believe that a balance can be achieved
if we remain focus and open to new innovations and concepts.
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CREATING

CHEMISTRY INNOVATION
FOR A HEALTHY AND

SUSTAINABLE
FUTURE
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W E A LT |—| Y We aim to grow our company through the adopfion of sustoinable
principles in our daily business proctices. We seek to achieve this

ECONOMY through the incorporation of innovation - both strategically ond

operationally - to achieve sustainable business growth.

- usiny DithnunefumsdouunavdnsTituin TnoganAnnouidiunougou
e | - = untdfumsdhiugsiivaouusan dumsthudnnssuluTanduigunagns
LIS Rt LR - ¥ X ) r
e e [f e b Ia:MsauiUIY I0TResNadUInawddu
| Yk

AEL I _RE As a global company, we are committed to continue embracing
]\./ '{ t |‘|‘ LJ) t | N G the principles of UN Global Compact LEAD level, which we will
S 0 C I E T Y continuously seek to integrote info every area of our operations - areafing

value and contributing fo our stakeholders and the world around us.
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BETTER We value our place in the environment and seek fo assure of corporate
responsibility by driving change for the befterment of our environment

ENVIRONMENT  thoughour operafions and that of our supply chain. We believe fhe drive
for innovation will help us deliver better products to our customers and
reduce our impact on the environment throughaut the supply chain.
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In line with our vision to be "A leading Chemical Company for Better Living”™ ond our mission of sustoinable
growth, this sustainability policy forms the first part of our sustainability framework, which we will seek to deliver
a better tomorrow to our stakeholders, through our manogement and our employee.
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SUSTAINABLE " "
DEVELOPMENT N\ %™ ALS
TRANSFORMING OUR WORLD TOWARD
A BETTER FUTURE

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited is committed to becoming
a role-model organization of sustainable development. We are committed
to taking part in the change that is founded on equality and sustainability
from within. We are dedicated to the creation of a balance between
business growth and improved quality of life. By paying attention to and
caring for society, communities and the environment, we aspire to create
value and foster sustainable growth.
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SUSTAINABILITY IN FOCUS
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Financial Capital: Intellectual Capital: Social and Relationship
as the pool of funds is intangibles that provide Capital: is the stock of
available to an organization. competitive advantage resources created by

the relationships between
the organization and all
its stakeholders
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Manufactured Capital: Human Capital: Natural Capital:

mainly comprises of refers to People’s skills is an input to the production

physical infrastructure and experiences, as well as of goods or the provision
their capacities and of services.

motivations to innovate

ENERGY SAVING %
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ROBECOSAM  powe
( Sustainability Award Sustainability Indices
Gold Class 2017 In Collaboration with RobecoSAM e

PTTGC is the only chemical company from Thailand and ASEAN
to be accredited with Gold Closs disfinction from RobecoSAM,
one of the world's most trusted and accepted sustainability
rating agencies. The distinction confirmed that PTTGC is
integrating sustainability performances across the value chain
and at the global level. Additionally, the annual assessment
of companies' sustainability by RobecoSAM is also used for
selecting component of DJSI inclusion. The result of the 2016
assessment confirmed the second place of PTTGC in the
DJSI chemicals sector for the fourth consecutive year with
score equivatent to Industry Best.
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“..The word “Development” means stability
and prngression. The development of the nation means creating
security and prosperity for the nation. National developmen’r
thus aims to make each individual’s life safe,
prosperous and happy...”

ROYAL SPEECH OF HIS MAJESTY KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADE]
Delivered at the Youth Training Cenfre af Bang Poon Village, Pathum Thani Province,
On 7 May 1970
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ABOUT THIS REEOR G4-17, G4-28, 64—2": 64-30, G4-31, G4-32)

INYINUSITNIUAUUU
REPORTING GU |DE|_|NE5‘E4U Ga-20, G4-20, G4-30)

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited (PTTGC)
prepares a Sustainability Report annually to communicate
the management process and performance issues that
argimportant to business operations and its stakeholders
in all sectors.This year, PTTGC has changed the report
format to an Integrated Sustainability Report according
to the Integrated Reporting Framework (IR) of the
International Integrated Reporting Council {IIRC), and in
accordance with the reporting guidelines of the Global
Reporting Initiative Guidelines Version 4 (GRI G4) at the
“Core” Option and additional indicators for companies
in the Qil and Gas Sector. The disclosure of impaortant
issues (G4-17 to G4-27), which is presented on page
166, has been reviewed and verified for completeness
and accuracy by the GRI Materiality Disclosures Service.

The scope of this report covers companies under PTTGC,
by which PTTGC holds equal or greater than 50 percent
of the shares and has the operational control. These
companies under PTTGC are considered as part of
the business unit of PTTGC Group. This information
is referenced from the company's Annual Report and

website: www.pttgcgroup.com

The Integrated Sustainability Report 2016 focuses on
reporting content that complies with sustainability issues,
which stakeholders from all sectors give priority to and
links to the main business strategies of the company.
The business strategy consists of the Sustain Core
Strategy, Accelerate Growth Levers Strategy, Balance
Business with Sustainability Strategy and Strengthen
Enablers Strategy. Sustainable implementations
encouraging the main business strategies are detailed in
this report, containing four main chapters: 1) Sustainable
Returns, 2) Care and Measureable Benefit, 3) Innovative
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Products and Services and 4) Happy and Safe Workplace,
The content covers the period from January 17, 2016 to
December 317, 2016.

In addition, as a participant of the UN Global Compact
LEAD Level, PTTGC has prepared a Communication on
Progress (COP) in accordance with the ten Principles
and the 21 criteria of the UN Global Compact, which
is presented on page 164 and PTTGC's website: www.
pitgegroup.comfen/sustainability/accreditations-unge,
including the project implementations which are in line
with the Sustainability Development Goals (SDGs).

.P“'“\t‘ 1.,?"""%. Global Compact
€ €LEAD

s PARTICIPANT

This report can be downloaded here :
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Contact Information™*"

For more information

Susininability Monogement Department. PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited,

Heod Office, 555/1 Enengy Complex, Building A, 14" - 18" Floor, Vibhavadi Rongsit Road,
Chatuchak. Chaluchak, Bangkok 10900 Thaibard
hitpe/ fwww. pligegroup.com//en/contact/Torm
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HIGHLIGHT PERFORMANCE IN 2016
wan1saduviuld 2559

In 2016, the performance of PTTGC was in line with the Wt 2559 150y HAnanisaniinanunaenndesiuiinuung
targets, annual action planandstrategic plan. Also, PTTGC’s wanfiReulszant uazununagns AaenauaAINITaRaL
performance met the expectations of stakeholders in all auagrianNAIAITegHduldAann1Adew uazjignig

SUSTAIN CORE STRATEGY

nagns$mIsSnuIa:luWUFNAUAIUISONNSIdVEUas siaRTogTudagUu
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Sales Revenue EBITDA Net Profit Return on Shareholders’ 3 '| 60

345,762 Million Baht 48,1 47 Million Baht 25,602 Million Baht Equity 0.31« Sfrate;]ic Partners

» Sales|Revenue B Refinery & Shared Facilities

Breakdown by
Business

Aromatics Customer Satisfaction  § Supplier Satisfaction
I Olefins and Derivatives T@ Score 8 5 8% { 8 Q . 5 3%
M Green Chemicals

[l High Volume Specialties

and Phenol

ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS STRATEGY

nagnsmsiiasumlemaldulafuds:ina ssiia la:waaNtuntku

L " TN

Total R&D Number of R&D Revenue for Carbon Footprint Number of Patents
Spending Projects in Environmental-Friendly certified 107 Application Filed Locally
897 Million Baht our Pipeline Products Product Grades and Internationally
> 100 projects 271,055 17 patents
Million Baht

BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

nagnsnisasuAaNadasnannsicuunegvdugu
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20

Total Environmental GHG Emission Reduction Energy Saving Zero
Expenditures 34D ’ 437 1ons CO,equivalent 1.1 Million GJ Waste to Landfill

1 N 3 8 5 Million Baht

Water Recycled Social Activities Investment Community Human Rights Risk Assessment
Q 2 2 ,40 '| (Community Investment, Commercial Initiative, Satisfaction '| 00% ofitBSnes
cibic Mater (37 4%) and Charitable Donation) 1 3 8 Million Baht 8 3 5 65% operations

Baaripcy Loty .
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sectors and is striving to achieve a sustainable growth,
in economic, social and environmental aspects. The

performance for each aspect is summarized as follows:
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Total Recordable Injury

Lost Time Injury

frequency Rate (LTIFR) Rate (TRIR) Female
Case/ Case/
1 Million Manhours 1 Million Manhours Persons

From our ongoing dedication to sustainable business
performance on economic, environmental and social
dimensions, PTTGC has been awarded the Top-scoring
and recognized by the RobecoSAM Gold Class in
chemicals industry of Dow Jones Sustainability Indices
(DJSI) in 2016. Moreover, our score for 7 of 19 criteria
reached score of 100. Out of those, six criteria were

ranked as the best score within chemicals sector.

Number of Employees

a Ao a2 o a ¥ o P Y
LWUIWWHQEHW\?W’]\?mqutﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ'ﬂ ATUANAN LLAZALAILLIARDN

Tnaanunsnagiuanusuluusaziule asil

@ —
b/ 299
‘=’
Human Resource Employee

Male Development Investment

Million Baht

Engagement Score

Persons

anarugeilunssniinnuiuanudiiuatnsiaiies
%qmqﬁmmmgﬁﬂ FruAsuanden uazdudenn danaly
U3 I8 Funtsdnsusuannfaininudefuniolaug
(Dow Jones Sustainability Indices: DJSI) ﬁﬁ:uuuqmm
(Top-scoring) wazlA3us199a Gold Class Tuanaallineily
712559 17+ 1451 100 Axusda T 7 naninoust annsiavan
19 waninnut taedl 6 udninauat gnansdues lusudiuil

-

2OINGHFINA AR

CRITERIA REACHING OUTSTANDING SCORE

RANKED BY DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDICES

HANINUANUSUG!

ASUAIUUYANITYLINNISTOAIGUAFTAIUTITUIEINI1RUA

© Risk and Crisis Management
TﬂSU§ﬁWSﬂOWUIﬁU\]Hﬁ:ﬂﬂWO:ﬁﬂﬂO

MEMBER OF
Dow Jones

Sustainability Indices
In Collaboration with RobecoSAM «

© Climate Strategy
MSIVAgUIUAVAMWADOINA

© Tax Strategy
nagnsaune

© Codes of Business Conduct
9SSYUSSTUSSHY

© Environmental Reporting
NISSIYNIUAUAIINABU

© Social Reporting
NISSIYUNUAIAY

© Product Stewardship
AOWSU@aYaUGBWANNTUA

More details can be found in the Annual Report, page 148
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HIGHLIGHT OUTLOOK
lwun1saIduviIuiusulnn

In order to strive for sustainable business growth, in economic, social and environmental aspects, PTTGC has set

short- and long-term organizational goals, which are in accordance with the strategy of the company. In addition,

the performance will be monitored, reviewed and improved consistently to achieve the goals.

2017

FT] susTAIN CORE

o All operations commit to Corporate Governance, Business Code of
Conduct, Compliance Policy, Tax Strategy, Risk Assessment
and Management and Risk Culture Program

Third party assurance on Code of Conduct, Compliance Policy and
Antitrust breaches

First fier critical suppliers conduct environmental, social and governance
(ESG) self-assessment for 50 percent coverage

100 percent of acfive suppliers accepted PTTGC's Sustainable Supplier
Code of Conduct

ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS

Leverage o build and strengthen capabilities in sale and marketing,
product development and services to support new business i.e. material
for clean & green fechnology

Develop capabilities to help modifying the off-spec resin for recycle
process

Deploy Product Stewardship Management System and Roadmap
fo operations

BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY
Implement operational eco-efficiency reduction program for all sites
Implement internal carbon price for PTTGC as valuation tool to
manage risk and opportunities in making business decisions
Execute the first Creating Shared Value (CSV) Initiative

Evaluate the first CSV initiative and strengthen CSR projects to
achieve their best values

STRENGTHEN ENABLERS

Develop long-term incentive program for employees

Develop Training Return on Investment guideline for quantifying future
employee development projects

All operations commit fo PTTGC safety program

1} ] susTAIN CORE

8 o Achieve cusfomer satisfaction target and reftained account target
in every business unit

o Develop global systematic customer database system

e Conduct awareness training for Together for Sustainability (TFS), which
is a joint initiative fo create benchmarks for a sustainable supply chain

E ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS

Develop business model entry strategy to supply materials for
alternative energy and energy storage manufacturers

Expand to other segments (i.e. alternative energy, pressure vessel)
and new process design

Explore investment opportunity and business model for recycled
resin products

o Develop R&D capability and new recipe for recycled materials
o Implement Product Stewardship Strategy based on global standards

on Product Stewardship Management System in PTTGC Group

e Conduct Life Cycle Assessment (LCA) for PTTGC Group
e Conduct Global Product Strategy (GPS) Safety Summary for all products

E BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY

Reduce our operational eco-efficiency

Become a role model in operational eco-efficiency for supply chain
& customers

Collaborate with suppliers on sharing sessions regarding operational
eco-efficiency and requiring suppliers fo have GHG targets
Define the second CSV project

B3 sTRENGTHEN ENABLERS

Win Thailand Best Employers from the Aon Hewett
Decreasing frend of contractor Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)
to be below DJSI industry threshold (0.145)

Integrated Sustainability Report 2016 | PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited
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SUSTAIN CORE
First tier critical supplier conduct ESG self-assessment for 100 percent
coverage

Third party audit of PTIGC's ESG supplier, audit at least three crifical suppliers

ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS
Implement Life Cycle Management (LCM), Life Cycle Cost (LCC)
and Eco-design throughout operations in Thailand

BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY

Achieve the positive Environmental Return on Investment (cost saving
and revenue)

Reduce GHG (scopel & 2)

Become a role model in climate strategy for supply chain & customers

o Execute the second CSV project

STRENGTHEN ENABLERS

Set Safety, Occupational Health and Environment (SHE) academy
community of learning to elevate SHE knowledge throughout
the organization

SUSTAIN CORE
By 2025, achieve 3,900 Million USD for long-term adjusted EBITDA

e By 2025, achieve the first quartile for Return on Investment Capital

(ROIC)

ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS

By 2023, become a role model of product stewardship for chemical
industry in Thailand

By 2021 - 2026, become a solution provider for domestic and
infernafional markets, and achieve the expansion info other businesses
in alternative energy modules and new energy storage applications

BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY

By 2022, achieve target of ten percent GHG reduction compared
fo base year 2012

By 2023, achieve target to reduce our operational eco-efficiency
as committed

By 2050, reduce greenhouse gas intensity by 52 percent from 2012
base year as committed with the COP21 target

STRENGTHEN ENABLERS
Maintain Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) of employees and
contractors to be zero

- SUSTAIN CORE
e Expand third-party audit/assurance on breaches and process of
Compliance System to 100 percent coverage
o Achieve compliance with PTTGC Corporate Governance, Business
Code of Conduct and Compliance Policy for all operations.
o listed as Together for Sustainability (TFS) member with rating
above 60

K ACCELERATE GROWTH LEVERS
e All product grades certified with Carbon Footprint Reduction labels
or Global Warming Reduction Labels

! BALANCE BUSINESS WITH SUSTAINABILITY
e Reduce Energy index by fen percent from 2015 base year
e 100 percent complefeness for the first CSV project
o Implement Environmental Refurn on Investment for 100 percent
coverage

ﬂ STRENGTHEN ENABLERS

Become most admired company fo work for in the credible ranking
survey

o Extend employee talent pool fo 25 percent, including domestic and
international subsidiaries

e Increase HCROI fo be beyond that of industry benchmark (Chemicals
Secfor)

e Reduce Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) of employees and
contracfors to zero

.S G
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

The commitments to operate our business with sustainability can be demonstrated through the awards
and success we received both nafionally and infernationally. Our pride from the awards and recognitions
has been motivating us in striving for better.

ov,AL Cq
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o= Global Compact

> LEAD

PARTICIPANT
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SET SUSTAINABILITY AWARDS

PTTGC was selected by Stock Exchange of
Thailand to be the Best organization that strives
toward all dimensions of sustainable development

« SET

‘The Stock Exchange of Thailand

INVESTORS" CHOICE AWARD 2016

For the fifth consecutive year, PTTGC received full
score from AGM effectiveness evaluation, which
was granted by Investors’ Choice Award 2016.
The award reflects the importance of disclosure
and priority of shareholders.

PN

FTSE4Good
FTSE4GOOD INDEX

This is a world class corporate sustainability
evaluation index. It focuses on organizations with
environmental and social responsibility as well
as good governance, which create trust among
international investors. PTTGC's evaluation score
is 84 percent

SUSTAINABILITY
RANKING

SUSTAINALYTICS

Channel NewsAsia Sustainabilty Ranking 2016 has
ranked PTTGC as 14" from 100 companies in Asia.

UN GLOBAL COMPACT LEAD LEVEL

PTTGC is the first company in Thailand to join UN Global Compact at the
highest level, LEAD. PTTGC prepared the Communication on Progress in
accordance with ten guiding principles and 21 principles of UN Global
Compact LEAD

T T IRy - EEEEERERRS

SOCIAL
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CSR-DIW 2016

14 plants of PTTGC group won the CSR-DIW
Continuous Awards 2016, reflecting efficient
Corporate Social Responsibility.

EMPLOYER OF CHOICE 2016

PTTGC became the employer of choice in Chemical
Product Industry. The survey was conducted by
Qualifiles on new graduates who wish to work with
leading organization.

INTERNATIONAL SAFETY AWARD 2016

PTTGC has received the International Safety
Award 2016 from the British Safety Council as
an organization that cares about the health and
well-being of employees.

EXCELLENCE IN LABOUR CONDITIONS AND
SAFETY, OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
WORK ENVIRONMENT AWARD 2016

PTTGC received Excellence in Labour Conditions
and Safety, Occupational Health and Work
Environment Award 2016 from Ministry of Labour.
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MEMBER OF
Dow Jones

Sustainability Indices
In Collaboration with RobecoSAM «»

DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDICES

In 2016, PTTGC is able to maintain our Top 10 position in DJSI world members
for the fourth consecutive year. Our score is equivalent to Industry Best score
and recognized in Gold Class.

7

THE PRIME MINISTER'S INDUSTRY AWARD
2016

From our intention to develop business to the
international level and environmentally-friendly
processes, PTTGC was granted with seven
awards from The Prime Minister's Industry Award
2016. The award was organized by Ministry of
Industry.

THAILAND QUALITY CLASS (TQC) 2016

Polymers Business Unit received Thailand Quality
Class 2016 (TQC) in Management Excellence from
Office of Thailand Quality Award.

INVENTION AWARD 2016

PTTGC's innovative products “Nursery Bio-Degradable
Bags”, which made from bioplastic (PLA) received
Invention Award 2016.

¢
¢
¢

T . S R CEE PR TR EEEEPETEREY | SRR

SN'CDP

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIES

CLIMATE DISCLOSURE LEADER

PTTGC was recognized by the CDP as a Climate
Disclosure Leader for the fourth consecutive
year. CDP is a widely accepted organization
that assesses environmental management of
companies worldwide.

G-.ll 1 rrEertry

GREEN INDUSTRY 5

PTTGC has been certified with Green Industry
at the highest level. The awards recognized our
intention to cascade 2E1S awareness to our
stakeholders.

Y oaclis

ECOVADIS

PTTGC has won gold-level recognition for its
ESG programs, assessed by EcoVadis. The
assessment ranks PTTGC at the top one percent
performers.
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MEMBER OF
Dow Jones

Sustainability Indices
In Collaboration with RobecoSAM «»
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DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDICES
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CDP

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIES

CLIMATE DISCLOSURE LEADER
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN
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PTTGC group, as a global sustainability leader, realizes
the importance of roles and responsibility to country
and people. Apart from driving business by adhering to
balance of economy, society, and environment based on
the Philosophy of Sufficiency Economy, we want to play
an important role in driving substantial economic policy
forward through public-private collaboration to result in
nation's “Stability, Prosperity, and Sustainability”.

Under this transitional change of global context to
the era of 4.0, fluctuation in financial and capital market
as well as climate change, FTTGC continued to prosper
through these business and industry’s challenges.
This has reflected effective planning and strategic
implementation in response to changes as well as
close governance that results in economic, social and
environmental stability making the company able to
maintain strategic position as a sustainability leader.
The heart of company's strategic operation consists of
four integrated elements that are suitable to changing
socio-economic context, namely, “Sustain Core",
"Accelerate Growth Levers”, "Balance Business with
Suslainability” and “Strengthen Enablers”.

“nfuUTE #iT inauea nilAes TugiuzesdnTaunuy
sruanudiiveaslan driinlumifiuazanuiufiagay
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Tuilagiiu (Sustain Core) nagnimsussanlamabiviauas
afaudnius v (Accelerate Growth Levers) nagng
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Business with Sustainability) uaznagménnaiuaiamy
wisunderesdriuwieu (Strengthen Enablers)
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The Previous National and Global Achievements
PTTGC is a distinct chemical products producers.
We have been recognized as global sustainability
prototype in chemicals industry sector for four consecutive
years. Last year, we were assessed and grouped among
the “Top-scoring” and received "Gold Class” from Dow
Jones Sustainability Indices (DJSI). This marked as
the best year of PTTGC's sustainability performance
since the company's establishment.

From the recognition in the international level, PTTGC
has adopted international sustainability frameworks to
found "PTTGC sustainability standard with Thailand's
cultural context”. This resulting in being recognized in
UM Global Compact LEAD and second year of Global
Compact 100 Index making PTTGC is the first and only
company in Thailand.

In addition, PTTGC has achieved Climate Disclosure
Leader from CDP for four consecutive years.

Besides the continuous outstanding achievement in
sustainability and sustainability foundation and mindset
embedded in corporate culture, PTTGC has conveyed the
results of these achievements to the group company and
stakeholders throughout our supply chain to empower
the company from the inside. This aligns with expectations
of international communities to collaboratively drive
towards sustainability in all dimensions leading to
sustainable development that will long-term contribute
to organization, society, and country at large.

(2 \—

(Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun)
Chairman
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR PRESIDENT & CEO

e —

msmnds:mumnu'1nuﬁmsua:nssun*ascg‘_inms?nrd

“From the integration of the global sustainability
framework with the world's key challenges and maintain
competition in the market, PTTGC has established
collaborations at the organizational, business-unit,
national and international levels, leading to a strong
sustainability network and consequently to continuously
concrete achievements in environmental, social and
economic (2E15) sustainability. Accordingly, PTTGC has
been recognized globally as a prototype for organizational
sustainability in the chemical industry by eaming the
Top-scoring from the RobecoSAM Gold Class of Dow
Jones Sustainability Indices.

Under challenges in a rapidly changing world where
situations are more severe than ever before, including
economic, environmental and social situations, especially
the continuous fall in global oil prices, the slowdown in the
world's economy and the effect of climate change as well
as changes in consumer behavior caused by lechnology
and lifestyle shift, PTTGC, as a forefront leader in
petrochemicals and chemicals incustry, aims to contribute
to climate change mitigation, environmental impact
reduction, stakeholder engagement as well as
competitiveness enhancement and quality of life
improvement for societies and communities. The purpose
i5 to achieve sustainable development in all dimensions
simultaneously, which is consistent with the 17 Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Mations.

These followings are significantly successful operations
in accordance with sustainable development guideling
and contribute to trust and recognition from national
and international institutions. They can be categorized
in three aspects;

Economic Aspects: despite impact from global economic
slowdown, PTTGC has prepared strategic plans
and guidelines to deal with such situations, such as
maintaining production stability, improving production
efficiency, closely control operating costs that conforms to
market conditions, seeking for a high profit market as well
as controling and monitoring risks to be atan acceptable
level: Additionally, PTTGC committed to good corporate
governance, Business Code of Conduct and supply chain
management. Consequently, PTTGC has participated
in the EcoVadis sustainability assessment and has
been rewarded with the Gold Recognition Level medal.
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PTTGC has improved and expanded production base
to increase flexibility and to be able to deal with diverse
raw materials that will increase long-term raw materials
stability. We have seized the opportunity to continuously
invest in petrochemical business both domestically and
internationally, especially targeting to expand business
based on our areas of expertise as well as especially
innovative chemical products that could generate great
revenue and respond to modermn consumers’ demand.
This is part of our ambition to be leader in petrochemicals
industry in Asia-Pacific region. As a result of dedication
and cooperation from all personnel in the organization
to achieve the goals, PTTGC generated over 345,762
milion Baht of sale revenus in 2016. A company's Eamings
Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
(EBITDA) is 48,147 million Banht accounting for 25,602
million Baht or 5.47 Baht per stock dividend. This increased
over 25 percent from 2015 from 20,502 million Baht.
The increase in revenues is due to implementations
of the Project MAX, Operational Excellence and Marketing
Excellence since the beginning of last year. Based on
those implementations, PTTGC was able to increase
its productivity and profits.

PTTGC also sees the growing significance of innovation
that will play important role in future transformation.
Therefore, we defined strategic plan and resources for
intensive Research and Development (R&D) together with
recrganization of PTTGC's Research and Development
function in order to conduct research and development of
products that meet customers and consumers demand.
This includes development of modemn, efficient, stable
and cost-saving manufacturing technology resulting
in Best Innovative Company Awards from the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

Environmental Aspects: PTTGC is aware of the value
of natural resources which is a key factor for business
operation. Therefore, PTTGC has committed to the
environmental impact mitigation, such as implementation
Purge Gas Reduction Unit Project that can recover
the amount of ethylene gas being bumt and minimize
the impact on air quality. This project was one of the
Environmental Return on Investment (EROI) project.
Moreover, PTTGC has committed to continuously
conducting climate change mitigation; as a consequence,
PTTGC has been recognized as a leader in Climate
Disclosure Leadership Index for four consecutive years
from CDP. PTTGC has been certified as a green network
of the Green Industry Level 5, which is the highest level,
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under the Ministry of Industry. Furthermore, PTTGC
has received the Prime Minister's Industry Award 2016,
seven awards in total, from the Ministry of Industry. These
awards and recognitions reflect PTTGC's high quality and
enviranmental-friendly operations.

Social Aspects: PTTGC has empowered communities
and improved quality of life of every people in the country
through “Creating Shared Valug" (CSV) and the Corporate
Social Responsibilities Projects, such as the reforestation
project: communities’ sustainability knowledge center,
PTTGC “Sai Yai Chung Chuek” project, fish aggregating
devices project and the Upcycling the Oceans, Thailand
Project to recycle plastic wastes in the ocean. As
a result, PTTGC Group has received the CSR-DIW
Continuous Awards from the Department of Industrial
Works, Ministry of Industry. Moreover, PTTGC has also
received the Quistanding establishment on Labour
Relations and Welfare Award, due to its encouragement
of employee development and creation of happy and
safe workplace.

With our continuous determination on all ESG aspects,
PTTGC has been granted as one of the Top-scoring and
recognized by the RobecoSAM Gold Class in chemicals
industry of Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (DJSI) in
2016 for four consecutive years.

With the company's sustainability achievement at both
national and international levels, PTTGC is committed to
play a significant role in driving the country to Thailand
4.0 through public-private collaboration by closing
social inequality, improving guality of life, enhancing
level of competitiveness to drive the country to “Stability,
Prosperity and Sustainability™.

On behalf of the PTTGC Group, | would like to thanks
our stakeholders in all sectors for their dedication and
support. PTTGC is committed to conduct business with
ethics and good corporate governance, along with
knowledge sharing and creating value for stakeholders,
communities and society, and preservation of the
environment, for a common sustainable growth.

(Mr. Supattanapong Punmeechaow)
President ond CEO
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“...if work with intention to bring about immense

influence, which is the united nation, with honesty and
genuine capability as well as knowledge without consideration of

remuneration or benefit, then it is one’s duty to do $Ouee
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OUR BUSINESS




OUR BUSINESS
N1SONUUSSNYOVIST

VISION, MISSION AND OUR STRATEGY J49NAU Wusnv na:nagnsnisautuviu

OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION

SUSTAINABLE RETURNS
» Sustain Core

HAPPY AND SAFE WORKFLACE
EMPLOYEE

SIN3] YIMOIS) DIDIBEITY ®
S3DIAYIS ONY SIONT0Hd IALLYAONNI

» Balance Business with Sustainability
CARE AND MEASURABLE BEMEFIT
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To be a lending integrated petrochemical
player, with fully connected production
lines and to eom a long-term adjusted
eBmoA” of 3,900 milion US dollars
by 2024.
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To generate returns from operating |
business at o leading level of the
industriol groups in the Asia Pacific
region and to be within the 1 " quartile . sustainability leadership by DS
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SUSTAINABILITY .. .
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To be o leader in business operations
in line with sustainobility framework
and to be continuously listed for

in terms of ROIC™ by 2024.
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More details of vision, mesion, stretegy and goals of the company con be found in the Annual Repart 20714
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OUR BUSINESS

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited or PTTGC
is a leading integrated petrochemical and refining
company in Thailand and Southeast Asia. PTTGC
has combined Olefins and Aromatics capacity of
9.26 million tons per year, plus a Refining capacily
of 280,000 barrels of crude oil and condensate
per day. PTTGC consists of eight main business
units and one service business unit and has
production bases in six countries around the world.
The main production capacity of more than 94 percent
is in Thailand.

kMore details of PTTGE Busnass Struchene can be found m the Annual Repan
af 2016 (wwese. hitps iptige. Bstedcompany. commsc AR pitge-ar20 1 G-an. padf),
presenbed on pacgse 22 and rtm""lpal'l:r".% wibsile MEps e P grouR COrmyan
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BUSINESS VALUE CHAIN
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PTTGC has business operations in
6 countries and exports to
100 countries in 6 continents.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT!O 24 %25, 64-26. 04:27)
Each stakeholder group is important to the operations of the organization both directly and indirectly. PTTGC has

a continuous communication with all stakeholders in order to make them understand the important issues of interest.

Comments and expectations of stakeholders are integrated into the decision-making process and business planning.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

@ SHAREHOLDER

STAKEHOLDERS
Shareholder

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Improving business competitiveness

ACTIONS AND RESPONSES

Cooperoling with other ogencies ond other companies 1o
jointly develop operational efficiency. providing fransparent

ENGAGEMENT CHANNELS AND FREQUENCY

& & & 8 8 & @

information ond feedback channels for shareholders and
investars o submit comments and file complaints directhy,

e BUSINESS PARTNER

STAKEHOLDERS
Business Parner

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Operoling with inlegrity, transparency

and fairmess

ACTIONS AND RESPOMSES
Encouraging Code of Business Conduct
with partner, empowering parinar through
supplier oudit in environmental, sociol
ond corporate governance aspecs,
participating in Ecoviadis etc. In additicn,
FTIGC has responsible department o
provide feedbock, to odvice as well as
to responss o complainis elc.

STAKEHOLDERS
Custormes

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Obtaining high-quality produds ond
services al a foir price

ACTIONS AND RESPOMSES
Maintaining quality of products and
services, improving efficiency and
developing new products and semvices,
In addition, PTTGC has oppointed
depariment lo provide feedbock, to
advice and fo implement o complaints
system, efc.

Annual General Meefing, once a year
Annual Repor/Infegraled Sustginability Repon
Company visit by sharehaldears, once o year
Whistleblower channel
Analyst Meeting, quarerty

onloct through the company secrelary
Company’s website:
hitp:/ Aeveew. piigogroup.comyan/ contad/foem

STAKEHOLDERS
Creditor

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Complying with Ihe terms and condifions
according fo the commitments mode

ACTIOMS AND RESPOMSES
Avoiding debt over due and conducting
creditor sofisfaction survey.

EMGAGEMENT CHANMELS AND
FREGIUEMCY

o |oint CSR adiivities, four times a year
e Analyst Mesting, quarterly

o Company's website:

EMGAGEMENT CHAMMELS AMD hitp:/ fwwow _phigegroup.comy/en/
EMNGAGEMENT CHAMMELS AMND FREQIUENCY contact/form
FREQUEMNCY s Annualicustomer meeting, once ayeaor
o Annodl supplier conference, onceayear | e Customer Service Center
» Monthly meeting with suppliers = Cusiomer safisfadtion sunvey, once ayear
s Vendor regisiration  Various medio fypes of the company,
s Whislieblower channel such as newslelters, magazines
» Company’s website: s Whistieblower channel
bt/ wawiw, pligegroup. com./en/ o Company's website:
contact/farm hittp:/ Swiwew. pligegroup.comsen’
[ contact/form
= “ ._ = -
o > - ?fﬁ fpS:;-d 3 .ﬂ.’m - :f_ -:ﬁ :
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(G4-24, G5-25, G4-24, G4-27)

PTTGC classifies both external and internal stakehaolders into four main groups: 1) sharsholder, 2) business partner,

3) community, society and the environment and 4) employee. The communication channels and stakeholders

engagement is different for each group. The details are as follows.

EMVIROMMENT

®

STAKEHOLDERS
Comamunity, Society and the Environment

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Impact on communily and sociely as
a result of the company’s operations

ACTIONS AND RESPOMSES

Conducting business with due care 1o
prevent impads, lislening o opinions
and suggestions from communities and
the society os well as disclosing complate,
accurate and up-to-dote information,

ENGAGEMEMT CHAMMELS AMD

FREGHIENCY

e 2052 community visils

» 386 social ond environmental ocivifies

o community salisfacion suneys,
Once O year

o Whistleblower channel

& Company's websile:
hiip://www. pligegroup.comyfen/
contact/form

@ EMPLOYEE

STAKEHOLDERS

COMMUNITY, SOCIETY AND

STAKEHOLDERS
NGO

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Company cooperalion wilh
nonprofit organization

ACTIOMS AND RESPOMSES
Communicating the company operafions
1o WGOs and offering MGOs the opportunity
to provide comments and file complaints
directly o the company,

EMGAGEMENT CHANKNELS AND
FREGIUEMCY
= Whistleblower channel
o Company’s websile:
bR/ S pitgegroup.comyen
comact/arm

STAKEHOLDERS
Public Sector

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Cooperation of the company with the ;
govemment operafion :

ACTIONS AND RESPOMSES

Providing responsible department o
contoc and coordinate with government
agendies in an sppropiale and transparent
manner as well as to stricthy comply wilh
laws related fo business operations.

ENGAGEMENT CHANMELS AND
FREQUEMCY

» Join the government network
Legyal reporting

Whistleblower channal
Comparny’s website:

hittpe /A wwiw. pltgegroup.com/thy!
comact/form

L ]

Employee

ISSUES OF INTEREST
Occupational health and sofety, compensation and benefits,
and fair working conditions.

ACTIOMS AND RESPOMSES

Froviding employees with opportunity to comment and file
complaints directly to execulives. This reflects the compamy’s
focuses on lobour and human nights occording to principles
of the: United Nations, PTTGC encourages employes development,

Integrated Sustainability Repart 2016 | FTT Global Chemical Public Company .

promotes sofety and occupationol health and provides
compensation and benefits to employees.

EMNGAGEMENT CHAMMELS AMD FREGUEMCY

s Various communication chonnels and the infernal online
syslem of tha company

e CEQ Townhall, quarterky

s Employee sofisfoction and employss engagement survey,
once a year

e Whistleblower channel

o Compony's websile:
hitp://waww. pligegroup.comy/en//conlact form

L e Rt L
g == J—*Mﬁ s = R

II
M i



- ] Bt b ] -d-' 4. i o 4_ i 4 ?
MsAsuSoUYauyUAUIQIFY 24 0425 64-20. 6427
&l v f )l o a - r £ 1 -l fa PO w )
grdnlfduwsissnguilanudrAtyenisdiiuussssdinsiinansauasnagion ity innsdeansiudiisoula@uidulszdn
| ol o - g . o . - ™
atnadie Waligidnlddudnlatssdudrdngsing fegluauaulaussivdeindunacanuaiaisres gl iR

ysnunasdiunseurunsdrdulauasonuaunsaniiugsiaresiisny

nisDdousovaevdUdouldide

gidaultids
menU

doumumsliAusauA:AUn

-

msUs:gudiafuls:$0 Ta: 1 ASy

X s STwNUUSHD / SenumsBouneg NENbuIuYSIINMS
UsafiuntrinouAule o TINSsUGTORUIDOUAUTIMSUSENT Da: 1 ASY
MSIDLECAWAILNS UM SEEUN WSS o dounumisiuBaviauBou (Whistleblower) aauusiEn-

o MsUSALINIIASEH (Analyst Meeting) Ta: 4 Sy
misdiunuidanevaus nnlnsunA)
duldunISS JURURU S IUEA: uEEnﬁu_f} idasaufudnun & fnfoauAmYNSUSEn+
UssAnEmwmsintuu nisiRdayaniusula wsaunuidn o GUlEGUEEN

TomalAgiotu na:dnanuldevmuiiaunsniauodomifiu

IdasaEoy dousan+ Idlnunsg

e HUAIUNNE ST

hitp:/ /ww. pligogroup.comy/ thy/ contact/form

giidaultide gidauliide qiﬁsigulﬁlﬁa

FIF ANFN (P33T

Usafuitfnouaule Usafiuithinowwaule UssfuRtiAouAUTe _
Ml uGIRANUTaaNg misldsufiumn ssusmsidarumwdgulu @ msufitmurleulais-dennavitegow
daouiusiaiR:tusssu SINNENEssY Wus-Ang TGS
misandunuianouauoy msanGuUIBonauALoY msandunuidionouauoy

soiAbvsstussrulumsinussiehiu
A dudunisibuAnoniwad 1du
misnsavUs:uRfiwAwManAoU Aunu
IR:MISAINUQIATIFMISAE MSIFISou
ECOVADIS 10udu mr0iRDnudgoiun
Sulingaulumstidamuane: AwEnum

Snus:AuURUNMWUENRTUAIR:USMS
WruuUs:AnEmumsuRnuannnusien:
uSmMsTkUn Soufu sa:FniHDnUa U
Asudnaaulunisidmauems: g
saufumsaudumsinuanumssuda
SauBou (Oudu

AoINMISAOI0&S: HUIA:A0S:GUAIU
Mhawalwsninl

dounumisiAousauna:no Wi
e TONSSU CSR SoUiL 4 Asa &
o msUsaEUindns:hla: 4 ASY

saufiamisdudumsifoafiumsivia {rnlasuna)

SouEou Mudu doununisidsusauna:naui o ulacdusEn
misUs:auands:910 Oa: 1 ASY hittp..//www, pitgegroup.com./ih/

Founmsidousaousa:no i AUBUSMSanA contact/form

o misUssguefus:90 Ua: 1 sy
Us:iuéﬂuﬁurjﬁnswﬁau
mMsAun:IDouRAn
FeunnsSuSeviovisiu
(whislleblower) aguSEN4
s AulatusEn
bt/ www, pligegroup.com/ah/
contact/form

mshsamnonuiwateanide: 1 Ay

Aacimig aauuSEn+ U I0HneEo

dneAns

s dounumsiudausousou
(whisteblewer) 2auusGn-

s DulEdusan-

hitp:/ fwww. piigegroup.comy/ihy

contact/form

[
il
W
"
"
"
"
0
"
"
"
"
[
.
0
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
0
il
"
"
"
[
[
"
"
"
i
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
0
"
1l
"
"




(G4-24, G5-25, G4-24, G4-27)

1
vy Tauianguiidndaduiantmuenuasninlusendu 4 nguudnldun 1) diiaviu 2) Fudaumngsia 3) guou &auuas
. ™ y ' - , ™1
Fawandien s 4) winews Tnugpuunsdemnsuazmsiidauinmesdiidnddossunniaivluusiasndgy susauausasiasialyil

@ quau AuAulAzAVII0ADU

gidouldide aiidaultide iAauTAIRe

AU AVALIR:AIDNADL avAnsAlmamIis mAse

Ussifuiifnanuauls UsafiufThnowauty Usafiuilhaouauly
@ANS:NUGOAMALIAAUBUATONNYIN | AcLSIUToaouudEny donisdilunu | AOWSIUToaauUSENY domsdilunu
MSIGUNLRBNUSEN aouavAnshlliaoumEAnTS A0MASY

mistilunuidonouausg mistutunuilionauaues msdutunuidonouauay

OWIUESNAROANILSaUASLIR:S: 00530
idadavfiumsifinuans:nu Dmssudy
ADIUANIRUIE:F0IAUBIL: Y INFUALIA:
fuAu wisumimsinisdiayAriasuriou
nnfisu:futannmMsnd Tnensy
dounwmsOAusounanowd

o MSIHUUITUUZUBUTILOL 2,052 ASY
o fnssuliofunuirAimondou 386 ASY

s msdsonnuinwale s BuladusEn-

ADASMSCNITLNUBENUSEN dovdnsn
lisszuminls wsaumilolemaliavrins
nlunAaurilsidaunwamus niaua
dofAniAY 1A:desaviEounausang T

deunmnisAausaunAAIIUR
"1 gl - —
* FONMUMESUSaNSaSIL
(Whistleblower) #euEEn-

FnldrissnunsuGnaaulUunnsRone 1R:
UssaunuiurUasnus emsiuaourn
finurauss:iusata ia:OnmsUfitou
noALNeRIneadaunuMsthilugsiThon
AXWIASYASD

doununsidausauna:aauf
& MSENSIURSNENUMAST
o SWNUEAMUNDNUW

s dounumissuousausou

2evgUAd 1 ASurial hitp://www.pligegroup.com/th/ Whistleblower) 2euUSGn
o dourmmsiuBagieuSuy contact/form » BulnouEEny

{Whistleblower) aauuSin- hittp:/ v pligegroup.com/th
o BuladuEGn- Seontad/ form

hifp:/ A wenw. pitgegroup.com//th

Seonlact/form

_—

@ winuiu
QUdauldidy saufumsdrundnemuseuudnnumsqeaSeonawaando
WL iFeaTRIaun0n mrFoiRlAAGMISIFE A DaUINLIC T IFRunnU

Us:ifuRTAnouauty
avdeudunRTIuAaNTE YOIRGASAGMSAAneUINUG Y
saUfamumsinnuRtusssy

mschiliuuiiensvauey

iWalomaTiwdnviuidovmuiansmiauodonnifu ia:
dnsavEoutaquimsidlnensy iavnnusant TRaoudng
TueuaswWnUIR-ANBUYUEREL MUKANMSAOVARUS NN

aHmAsUTaU

dounnisiiAousIuIRzAI LA

s MsAamsdaumVng sr:suusaulalmeluuBEn

o CEO wowdnnu nninsuia

iuusasAwiivwely spmUgniiudoednsUs:d i
FourmumsiuSoudouSou (Whislleblower) 20uUSGN
iSuTariusEn

hitp:/ s, pligegroup.comy/th/contact/form

= TG P o N




Report Content Defining Process'®*'® 5425 6433
PTTGC considers issues related to internal and external
business operations, including issues that are consistent
with the expectations of all stakeholders, in order to
assess material issues of the company based on the
Global Reporting Initiative Version 4 (GRI G4) guidelines,
which included four main stages as follows.

Step 1: Identification of Material Issues and Definition
of the Reporting Scope

Identify material issues that affect the sustainability of
the company, covering economic, envircnmental and
social dimensions, and consider risks and opportunities of
the company's business from both internal and external
factors throughout the supply chain. The information for

consideration and decision are as follows.

STAKEHOLDER'S OPINION
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INTERNAL FACTORS
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Strategic direction of the company
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Important risks and opportunities of the company,
including finonce, investments, operations, efc,
aoLidowAlemARdFiryaouusEn Aumudiumsiiu
msaanu mscidunu Buiuy

Data collection from multiple channels, both primary data,
such os interviews, surveys, etc., and secondary data,
such as letters, whistleblowers, efc., comied out by

the company's departments whose responsibilities are
related to the key issues. "
mssausaldayaTntanadaanfunUsund (Fimary Data)
iU mMsAUMENg msrimuuasumu idudu is:nnfens
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¢ Survey of stakeholder expectations throughout

the value chain
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Material issues that stokeholders are interested in
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SUSTAINABLE
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GOALS

Sustainoble Development Goals (SDGs) of
the United Nuﬁuqs
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Step 2: Prioritization of Material Issues

The prioritization of material issues is considered base

on two aspects as follows.

1) Stakeholders' interest that are significant to the
selected issues. The information was obtained from
the interaction with stakeholders through the company’s
department, the company's feedback channels or
direct and indirect discussions with stakeholders.

2) Significance environmental and social impacts,
which affect business operations of the company.

Each material issue is given a weight on basis of risk
assessment, business opportunity of the organization
and interest levels of stakeholders, which are classified
as high, moderate or low levels. The content of this report
covers and highlights the material issues in the high and

moderate levels only,

Step 3: Verification of Material Issues

+ Prepare a summary of material issues for the company
by gathering the evaluation results of material issues
and ensuring consistency among material issues
and the GRI aspects, specify the reporting scope of
each issue and present the results to the Sustainable
Development Committee.

= The Sustainable Development Committee reviews
the evaluation results of key issues to be in compliance
with context, goals and strategies of the company
and approves the disclosure of sensitive and specific
information that may affect the business of
the company.

« The departments owning the information prepare
the report content. The Sustainable Development
Committee and external agencies review its
completeness, transparency and accuracy.

« Anindepandent external agency audits the evaluation
process of material issues, stakeholders engagement
and data collection, to ensure that the obtained
information is accurated, clear and completed.
The certification results are presented on page 170,

Step 4: Continuous Report Development
Disclosed data in the Integrated Sustainability Report is
reviewed continuously. Additionally, feedbacks and
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recommendations from stakeholders and readers who daausuuzaingfidould @uiinuedas suladauilafu

provided feedbacks on the survey on the Integrated saNULABIUDINANAAWTLT e Baun RN atine
Sustainability Report are gathered. Comments and ﬂ"qﬁuuuuy?mn'w edsnfisrsndeAndiuuas feisue
recommendations are considered for improvement of wuzdmiunanlfupuasiaunsenuy luetudall W
forthcoming report and to ensure that the information Phfulsduiemfdamefianumuney waraenpdaaty
content is appropriate and in compliance with the issues Ussiuideansfioans

relevant for disclosure.

MATERIALITY MATRIX'®*®

ECOMOMIC

Risk. & Crisis Manogement

Corporate Governance and Code of Business Conduct
Tax Sirategy

Innovation Managerment & Customer Relafion Management
Supply Chain Managament

ENVIRONMENT

Product Stewardship

Enargy ond Climate Strotegy

Water Management

Washe Manogement

Emironmensal Policy & Management System
Biodiversity

SOCIAL

i Lobour Proctice & Human Rights

IMPORTANCE TO STAKEHOLDER

13 : Human Capital Development
, ONRICANCE JOPIICS 14 E Talent .ﬂ-an:*.llinr: & Re?;.]nrinn
i Occupationo| Health & Safery
e . M . ey 15 } Corporote Citizenship & Philonthropy
Material Sustainability Issues ‘417 0417 64-20. 6421}
'I" KEY STAKEHOLDERS AND ]
CHAPTER /' MATERIAL ASPECT CORRESPONDING MATERIAL IMPACT BOUNDARY
SECTION TO PTTGC - GRI ASPECTS ' WITHIN THE | OUTSIDE THE
| ORGANIZATION | ORGANIZATION
_ SUSTAINABLE RETURNS
Corporate Corporate Governance Governance Structure and @ o
| Govenanceand | and Code of Business | Composition | Employee |  Shareholder
| Code of Business | Conduct / Tax Strategy | (G4-36, G4-37, G4-38 , G4-40, G4-41) |
Conduct | Highest Governance Body's : 9 :
- ! | Competencies and Performance | | SR
| Evaluation (G4-43, G4-44) @
| Remuneration and Incentive (G4-51) | ECDmmmim Smw
i Ethics and Integrity and Emironment |

| (G4-56, G4-57, G4-58)

Economic Performance

| (G4-DMA, G4-EC1)

| Anti-cormuption (G4-S04,G4-S05)
Farmal grievance machanisms

| (G4-EN34, G4-HR12, G4-LA1B,




Material Sustainability Issues (©*'7 8419 64-20. 64-21)

SUSTA.IN&HI.E HETI.IRNS

E Rlsk and Crisis Rlsk and Crisis Role in Risk Management ° o

- Management - Management | (G4-45, G4-46, G4-47) i  Employee !  Sharehoider
i Risks and Opporiunilies due to i 9

' Climate Change (G4-EC2) !

| and Environment

('.'.MIE hND MEhSIJMBI.E BENEF]T

Enwronrmnlal Pﬂllc‘yr - Environmental Pntl[:y Materials ° i o
| and Management | and Management | (G4-DMA, G4-EN1, G4-EN2) '

System System  Environmental Compliance
: j - (G4-EN29)

: Overall (G4-EN31) | :Cnrnmuruty Society’
H ] anﬂEnwmﬂmam H

<@

femmneeeee e T T mrmmmmenna T A -enmamnened

Energy and Climate Enargw_.r and Climate Ecunumm Parfmrnanc\a {G4 ECEII . ° 9
| Strategy : Strategy Energy (G4-DMA, G4-EN3, G4-EN4, |
5 5 | G4-ENS, G4-ENG, G4-0G3) . |
| Emissions (G4-DMA, G4-EN15, @ i
| G4-EN16, G4-EN17, G4-EN18, G4-ENTD) | Communiy, Society|
; H = ar'-d En-.rmnmer'ﬂ H

o m—— e e

Waste Management Waste Management  Waste (G4-EN23, G4-EN24) | ° 0

Employes ' Business Partner

’ : Emplayee | Business Parner

' i Communiy, Eoc-ely
i i and Envirenment

b A A S S
| Water Management | Water Management | Water o 0
f : (G4-DMA, G4-EN8, G4-EN10) ' |

Employee i Business Partner

| e

{ Community, SDCiEWE
| and Environment |

R B e L R S e L L e e s A s )y
Contributing to Corporate Citizenship | Economic Performance o @
' Society . and Philanthropy  (G4-DMA, G4-EC1) o S, (R
: : : Indirect Economic Impacts i A Eppedpmnk ¢
 (G4-DMA, G4-EC7, G4-ECB) :
Product and Services (G4-EN27) 5 i
i Local Communities |
1 | (G4-DMA, G4-501)
 HumanRights | LabourPractice & | Human Rights ° 0
5  Human Rights | (G4-HR1, G-HR2, G4-HR3, | s | ek
: G4-HR4, G4-HRS, G4-HRE) 9

S ot i i frs o i i o e b e
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Material Sustainability Issues 17 419 5420, 6421

INMOVATIVE FRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Sustainable Innx:waliuns Innovation Management Economic Performance
| & Customer | (G4-DMA, G4-EC1)
Relationship Indirect Economic Impact
: | Management ' (G4-DMA, G4-ECT, G4-EC8)
. i | Emission (G4-EN19)
i Product and Services
| | (G4-DMA, G4-EN27)
Product Responsibility (G4-0G14)
i | Qverall (G4-EN31)
i Product and Service Labelling
' ' (G4-DMA, G4-PRS)

Employes

| Product Stewardship | Product Stewardship | Economic Performance

| | (G4-DMA, G4-EC1)

i i Indirect Economic |mpact

| (G4-DMA, G4-EC7, G4-ECB)
i Product and Services

; | (G4-DMA, G4-EN27)

i : Customer Health and Safety
| (G4-DMA, G4-PR1)

Employee

Supply Chain | Supply Chain Supplier Environmental Assessment |
Management Management | (G4-DMA, G4-EN32) i
: | ' Supplier Assessment for Labour

' Practices (G4-DMA, G4-LA14)

i Supplier Human Rights Assessment

| | (G4-DMA, G4-HR10)

Supplier Assessment for Impacts

i  on Society (G4-DMA, G4-S09)

! . | Procurement Practices
| (G4-DMA, G4-EC9)

........ ok e PP PPP—— PP —— F.

Shareholder

| Business Parer |

®

 Community, Saciety!
i and Emvironment .

Shareholder E

®

Community, &om&'ly,

and Emwironment |

i'i-ww AND SAFE WORKPLACE

Employes Human Capital Training and Education e
Engagement anc Development and (G4-DMA, G4-LAG, G4-LA10, Employes
i Development i Talent Attraction & P G4-LATT)
; ' Retention Employment (G4-DMA, G4-LA1, |

| G4-LA2, G4-LA3)

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

| (G4-LA12)

Occupational Health and Safety

| (G4-DMA, G4-LAS, G4-LAB)

| Asset Integrity and Process Safety
' (G4-0G13)

Occupational Health
i and Safety

i Occupational Health

. and Safety Employee

Remark (1) There & no restalement of previous year parformance™ =
(2) Mo signifcant changes in 2016 regarding the organization's size, structure, ewnership of its supply chain ™=
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Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

In 2015, the United Nations announced the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), which is an extension of
the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs), focusing
on coherent developmeants in economic, social and
environmental dimensions. The SDGs consists of 17 goals,
which are used as the development direction of Thailand
and of the world during the next 15 years from now on
(September 2015 to August 2030),

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GO0D HEALTH
AND WELL-BENG

e

~‘r[5 .x;.. BLE Ak _..1.| DECENT WORS AND
| JII ,ﬁ.ﬂﬂ:‘ B [mhl.IHIEL-EEfMH

N
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=
LS

1 [CLIMATE
ACTION

PTTGC is committed to contribute to the achievements
of both national and global's suslainable goals
by pricritizing and integrating selected SDGs into
the operational activities of the organization, based on
the SDG Compass'”, which is conducted by leading
global organizations to serve as operational guidance
for the business sector to achieve Sustainable
Development Goals. In 2016, PTTGC has focused on
three major goals and two supporting goals, which were
integrated into the operational activities and projects of
the company to promaote sustainable development on
the international level,
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@ INTEGRATION OF SDGSI INTQ BUSINESS OPERATIONS IN 2016
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e Criteria for selection of the SDGs ;
incuiumsAndanidsuiomsdriuiedwaviu

STEP 01
UNDERSTANDING THE 5DGs ! . DEFINING PRIORITIES
Understanding the S5DGs 7 Defining priorities of the SDGs, which are in line with the
msdTaluthrnemsBrunatdwduu stialegy of ihe erganization and throughout the value chain
s tuauASithnunomsBouggidiunascrlE
AU fAsnnAVAUNAUNEDEUBUANS
STEP 03 STEP 04 STEP 05
SETTING GOALS INTEGRATING REPORTING AMD COMMUMICATING
Establishing PTTGC's business Integrating the SDGs into its Reporting and communicating
goats in accomdance with the SDGs core business operation and the: susiginabiliy performance
T it et governance ooross the enterprise 1o slakeholders.
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# PTTGC's activities and projects which are in line with SDGs
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3 Three major SDGs
Wnuemsdruuat widunan

=1 ne=
O <«>»r

& Waler Management Poge B2 « Waosle Managemenl Poge 79« Climale Stralegy Page 74
msuSmsiomsth (Circular Economy, 5Rs, Long Range Flan
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

PTTGC has developed its Creating Shared Value business model as a mechanism to drive the company operations
to be in accordance with the company strategy by considering economy, production processes, innovations, human
resource developments, society and environment. The purpose is to lead the organization to success with good return

while creating value for the communities and protecting the environment.

INPUT . BUSINESS STRATEGY

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

0 o o=

Cash generated  Total equity Operating

from operating 248,669 MTHB cost
activities i 318,653

52,685 MTHB 96,143 MTHB MTHB

F14 MANUFACTURED CAPITAL
., Property, plant
=7< and equipment
| 221,514 MTHB
ﬁ Non-current

assets

||Ll'

(@

-
=

SUSTAINABLE RETURNS
e Sustain Core

44,139 MTHB
- INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL S
7,
=S r— /% =
el b= | %, 2
...... & We create e
Total R&D Brands Other liabilities = _a learning > 3
expendifure Investment 48,354 MTHB % % » arféggcl'ﬂﬁ(" |222 S 8 ™
= z o =
871 MTHB 0.0 MTHB = B T fo cultivate proficient a a §
| workforces with COMPANY FOR | = =
o Gl N e iy IS R o o s M S £ 5 profound engagement BETTER VNG /2= s
s HUMAN CAPITAL o Zhe and commitment fo = o
b i ol z S professional Z N =
ﬁ 3 - > ": excellence. AND ENVIRONMENT % A
- < / = e ¢
F 0 = z 5 ,4We'€nd109elﬁllm§gfe social %
i ; S oo Y and environment to our business m
Workforce Training Salaries and S &Q‘g : iitiee S ST o a
6,289 persons  spending Wages & S UL
S 92.4 MIHB 12,213 MTHB = L
. , © ___development
S o
D s L] 2z
Average Training hours Q«\Q% Qg'g &
S :
48 hours R SIE -
5 S& &§  Energy & Waste
77777777777777777777777777777777777777 S SLOS
$ =3

Climate Strategy Management

¥ SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

e Balance Business with Sustainability

a a 299 e a
i g Q ;‘ ‘- ‘ CARE AND MEASURABLE BENEFIT
Ethics and Customer Employee
human rights relationship relationship
Communities Supplier Shareholder
relationship relationship relationship

W€ NATURAL CAPITAL

Raw material Energy Water
consumpfion  consumpfion consumption

0.41million ton 119,966 1] 41.98 Million m®

£
Ll SO RN T
i
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OUTPUT / OUTCOMES LINK TO STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

SUSTAINABLE RETURNS

9.26 million

Total Polymers EBITDA Sales Revenue
production 48,147 MTHB 345,762 MTHB

fon/year of =% 1.58 million fon ‘\ Crss e
combined Olefins 3 025 MTHB
and Aromatics 280,000 barrels/day Cash flow s ,
i of crude oil and generated :
capacity shareholder's
condensate by operation . \‘ cquit
Refining capacity 46,349 MTHB “ 0q31Z/

CARE AND MEASURABLE BENEFIT

I

discharge J
Al 3
sty GHG emission Total waste Energy saving Water Zero waste
(scope 1&2) disposal 1.7 million GJ recycled to landfill
7.08 43,425 Ton 37.4%

million ton CO,equivalent

“ F 0 7 m Environmental Investment
PTTGC lﬁ 1,210 MTHB
£ L ) Mo Community Investment 47.62 MTHB

Commercial Initiatives 58.76 MTHB

GHG emission Community License fo Charitable Donation 31.49 MTHB
reduction 315,431 satisfaction operate
fon CO,equivalent 83.65%

INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

ok | 15 new \ OQ a Al

™M i

EBITDA Uplift 17 patents >100 R&D Customer Supplier
of new product project safisfaction score satisfaction
110 MTHB in pipeline 85.8% 89.53%

HAPPY AND SAFE WORKPLACE

.y ~ ata f‘\
- A A
g i@, »‘ @

A o W &)
Lost Time Injury Total Recordable Employee Turnover Cost saving
Frequency Ratfe Injury Rate engagement rate 2.63% in recruiting

(LTIFR) (TRIR) score 87.52% external candidates
0.06 case/1 Million 1.04 case/1 Million 0.35 MTHB
Manhours Manhours
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...At present, Thailond is enriched with resources, both natural resources
and human resources, which we can use fo prosper country’s abundance
and permanent stability. The most importantly, W€ Must learn
how to utilize those resources wisely, which
mean not to exploit them ineffectively or
UﬂWDI’ThY. Nonetheless. we must cautiously use these resources
with theoretical consideration, reagsonableness and appropriatengss as
well as emphasize on benefis thar the: country wil acquire
sus'rumublh’ry both at present and in the future...”
ROYAL SPEECH OF HIS MAJESTY KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADE|

siven on the Occasion of the Royal Bithday Anniversary
On 5 December 1986
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OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION




SUSTAINABLE RETURNS

nisasweaus:neunsniduiaaegugviu

SUSTAINABLE RETURNS
& Sustoin Core.

We creaté

a learning
organizafion and

a happy workplace
to cultivate proficient

workforces with
profound engagement
and commitment to
professional
excellence.

HAPPY AND SAFE WORKPLACE

We engage ond infegrate 51:".-_3:1'[‘-\
= and environment to our business

We provide

superior solutions
from Innovative
products and services
to be the best choice
for business pariners,

5

JusLuafouoy
winy3 Add

™,

SIDNAEIS ANV SLINA0EL IAILYAONNI

with responsibility and
care for sustainable

R

PTTGC realizes that the uncertainties with rapid
fluctuations nowadays may adversely affect its business
operations and growth. Therefore, PTTGC has assessed
risk factors and implemented risk and crisis management
along with good corporate governance, business ethics
and strict compliance with laws, in order o maintain
business operation. In addition, PTTGC is determined
to be an organizational prototype for sustainable growth
in issues related to economy, society and environment,
which is in ling with one of the company's strategies
i.e. the Sustain Core Strategy. in order to build a strang
business foundation for the company. For those reasons,
PTTGC operates transparently, conforms to social norms
and optimizes production and products amaong the risks
and challenges in changing conditions,

gusiness wilh - Sustainob
CARE AMD MEASURABLE BEMEFIT

development

it mszinAdaantumsalmndliwiueuidulsating
madlulagiu ensdanasanisAutivgine unsnndula
vaseadng Uiy Saldussdiutledudueiiandny waedn il
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Wmgiia daan unsAauandan Tenespdasiuvilslunagng
seaing Wurinagnimsineuasfismuinasanis
mamsussiunasgsiatiieyullagiu Sustain Core) iteaira
*ﬂngwﬁuﬁquniﬂun'liﬁﬂtﬁuqrﬁﬁlﬁﬁ'uuﬁ’m TnaAniiv
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6 CAPITALS INPUT

L
- a0
== L =S | w0
== L 1]
Financial Intellectual Social Maonufactured Human MNatural
Capital Copital Capital Capital Capital Capital
[ ] L ] [ ] ]

Sales Revenue 345,762 million Baht

Cash generated from operating activities 40,349 million Baht

EBITDA 48,147 million Baht

Return on shareholders’ equity 0.5 percent

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
BUSINESS CODE OF CONDUCT

In order to keep the company's business operations
transparent, fair, conforming to social nomms and respecting
the human rights of all stakeholders, PTTGC is committed
to operate its business based on Corporate Governance,
Business Code of Conduct and compliance with the national
and intemational laws and regulations. In addition, PTTGC
also discloses its sensitive infarmation, including financial
and general information, in order to show transparency of
its operations. This aims to build confidence and create
utmost benefits to shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders, which contribute to the sustainable growth
of the organization while creating shared value for society.

Good COI’pGI‘CﬂE Governance

PTTGC has set its policy, practice and corporate
governance in accordance with the international
principle of the Organization for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD) and with the practices of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, for the purpose that
the Board of Directors, executive and all employees
implement them as a guideline for executing their duties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

for one's decisions and
actions with availobility

of explanation lo suppo
such decisions and aclions

EQUITABLE
TREATMENT

TRAMSPARENCY
of all stakeholders

RESPOMSIBILITY
of the discharge of
duties to a sufficient
level of capability,
efficiency and
dedication

CREATION OF
LONG-TERM VALUE

for the organization

More detals can Be fownd in the Corporate Govemance and Businass Code

of Conduct Handbook

(Mg e prigegroup.comsemiscicg 20160 325-phige-OGHandbook-an. paf)

PTTGC has corporate governance structure, which managed
by the Board of Directors that passed a transparent
selection process of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The Skill Matrix system is used for nomination
process of the Board of Directors. Besides expertise,
experience and ability to benefit the company, the individual
leadership, vision and independence of decision making
regardless of gender, nationality or religion are part of
the considerations, in order 1o achieve equality and create

PRINCIPLES OF GOOD
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CREATE)

in operation, which allows

for ouditing, os well as correct,
complete and fimely disclosure
of infermation to relevant
parties through appropriate
and equitable channels

ETHICS

and morals in
the conducl
of business
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utmost benefit to the company and its sharehalders. uargfeulanson
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Comporate Governance and Business Code of Conduct Handibook LRLAMSITMRLR ST RNUTINGNS

(htt . pltgcgroup.comlan’gove 00K) page 25 Section

3.2, and on the Comparny’s wetsla i DU FIukesUTEN hitpafweew prgegroup.com

Corporate
Governance (CG)
and Corporate Social

SKILL MATRIX

Business ) Responsibility (C5R)
Economic/  Manogement Hu“‘:".'ul 15 Persons
| 3 Persons Accountant/ Security

Engineering 12 Persons

£ Persons

Finance
I-T%u:;?ms 11 Persons .- Auditing

More details can be found on the comgany's websile
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Decision Making of the Board of Directors
PTTGC's Board of Director is responsible for making
decision, giving direction and supervision through the
effective decision-making process of the company, which
allows PTTGC to be a powerful enterprise in the business
operation and management as well as achieve the goal,
to be a leading chemical company.
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PTTGC encourages the Board of Direclors to receive
the training and development of additional knowledge,
which includes the important fundamental courses that
are a basic duty of the Board and other specific expertise
courses. PTTGC organizes activities for the Board
of Director to exchange opinions with people having
diverse experiences in both national and regional levels,
Moreover, PTTGC conducts the Board performance
assessment annually. Comments and recommendations
from the assessment will be used as guidelines to improve
the duty and development of the Board to be more
effective in the following year.
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Performance Assessment of the Board of Directors

PTTGC conducts an annual performance assessment
of the Bord of Directors. Assessed topics included duty,
structural composition and qualifications, practices,
development and teamworking of the Board of Directors,
as well as dedication in attending meeting, general
knowledge and expertise and effort 1o the discharge of
duties as per their responsibility. PTTGC assesses the
performance of the Board of Directors in accordance with
Board's Key Performance Indicaters covering economic,
enviranmental and social dimensions, which align with
the company’s sustainable development targets, such as
EBITDA, customer satisfaction score, greenhouse gas
emission reduction, Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR],
community satisfaction, etc.The result of achievements
for these KPls affects the variable remuneration of the
Board's members. PTTGC disclosed the compensation
of the CEQ, president and executives on the company's
website hitp:/fwww.pttgegroup.com/en/sustainability/
sustainability-economic.
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DIRECTOR'S PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

Unit : psarcent

2.0 08.4

=

ASSESSMENT OF SPECIFIC COMMITTEES

B Group assessment score

B Self-assessment/Individual
ossesment score

B Cross-gssessment score

Audit Momination and

Committeg

Linit - percant

Information Disclosure and Transparency

PTTGC has a policy for disclosure of financial and
general information that are critical to the business and
financial performance. The disclosed information must
be correct, complete, adequate, reliable and auditable.
In order to ensure that stakeholders can have access
to correct information conveniently and instantly, the
disclosed information is made available in SET Portal of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the company's website
{www pttgegroup.com) and other public relation channels
of the company. Additionally, PTTGC has disclosed Tax
Strategy and Policy as well as reported the Corporate
Income Tax (CIT) by countries according to the company’s
operating areas in the Annual Report and on the company’s
website since 2015.

More cetalls can be found in the Annual Repon. pags 118 and
on httpwwaw. pitgcgroup.com/en'sustainabilty/strategy
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Business Code of Conduct and Corporate
Compliance

PTTGC has defined the principles for business operations
and compliance with business ethics in the Corporate
Governance and Business Code of Conduct Handbook
and communicated to the Board of Directors, excutives
and employees to ensure that everyone is awared,
understood and signed an agreement to adhere to the
Code of Business Conduct. Additionally, PTTGC has set
the Corporate Compliance Policy with the commitment
to comply with the laws, rules and regulations, which
are related to its national and international business
operations. This encourages all level employees of
PTTGC and companies in PTTGC Group in a clear and
substantial expression of effective business practice to

comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

BUSINESS CODE OF CONDUCT

Chsenvance of Relevant Laws,
Rules ond Regulations,
ond Resped of Culturol Differencas

Connected Transoctions
and Conflicd of intesoas
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Mip:iiwenw. piigogroup. comthigovemance/'cg-handbook

Use of internal Information  Intemal Conirgd, Indemal Audit,
and Safeguanding Risk Monagermenl,
of Confidendial Information  Accounting and Finandial Repons

Recenving and Offering Procurarmant and Intedlectual Froperty and Felifical Rights Emphoryees
of Gifts, Assets or Treatment of the use of Infarmation Technology ond Meutraliy Code of Condud
Arvy Orhaar Benafity Business, Poriners and Communacation

Recognition of infernatonal  Acknowledgement of Incidence,
Human Bghls Grisvance, Suggestion /
Channels for knfiormants
ond Prosection of the Rights
of Infermants

More detals can be found in the Coperate Gowemance and Businass Code of

Conduc! Handbook of on the company’s website

tpfweew pltgogroup comien/povernancecg-handbook

Responsibilitg 1o
the Stokehokdess

Guidefing for the Compensation
of Sakeholdars
offected by Viokation of Rights
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Complionce Management System /

Program

PTTGC has established systems and procedures for
the efficient control of operations complying with the laws,
rules and relevant regulations. This aims to promote and
serve as the best practice to prevent the risks from failure
to comply with the laws, rules and regulations, which
the Board of Directors, executives, employees and all
stakeholders could encounter.
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o RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT o

VALUES AND OBJECTIVES

FPREVEMTION

DETECTION

RESPOMSE

COMPLIANCE ORGANIZATION

Whistleblower

Whistleblower is a part of corporate compliance to follow
laws, rules and regulations. PTTGC pays attention to
complaints, suggestions and comments submitted by
all stakehaolder groups, by establishing the whistleblower
palicy and opening channels for complaints, such as
on the company's website, telephone, fax and mail.
PTTGC will protect the information of persons submitting
complaints according to international standards
(Non-Retaliation), including anonymity and personal
protection by concealling name and personal information.
PTTGC has Internal Audit and Corporate Compliance
departments work together as complaint administrators.
In 2016, PTTGC's compliant process has been improved
and audited by an external agency, in order to examing
and present facts to complaining persons efficiently,
correctly, ransparently and auditably. In addition, PTTGC
has also disclosed informations, such as total number

Integrated Sustainability Repart 2016 | PTT Globol Chemical Public Company lil\jﬂ
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and cases of moral and ethic violations, corruption and
bribery, antitrust as well as the monitoring resulls and
management guidelines on the violations occurred, which
is a regular monitoring system carried out by Corporate
Compliance Department,

More deftails can be found in the Annual Report, page 129 or on

the GEIFTID-H"'I}"h wbsile: hitpdiaene, pitgogroup.comien govarnance’

whistieblower-palicy-policy and hitpcwaww, pligogroup.comden'sustainability
su:,l:||r|at]:i|'r-¢1:\;r'-:;-|'|||:;

WHISTLEBLOWER SYSTEM

Corporate
Governance
Committes
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Besides the application of good Corporate Governance,
Business Code of Conduct and Corporate Compliance,
PTTGC is aware of the risk factors that may affect
the business operations and has established measures
to prevent and mitigatethe risks 0 an acceplable level,
In order to sustain business growth. More details can

be found on the section of Risk and Crisis Management.

RISK AND CRISIS MANAGEMENT

PTTGC hag realized that various uncertainties arising
from internal and external factors, such as global
economic slowdown, demand and supply imbalance in
feedstock and products, drought, etc., may affect its
shori-term and long-term business operations and
imeastments. Therefore, PTTGC has analyzed and prepared
mitigation plans and established a monitoring process
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to identify emerging risks that may occure any time, in
order to manage business and sustainably achieve the
company's target.

Risk Management and Risk Governance

PTTGC has applied the international risk management
standard from the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COS0) and 1SO 31000 of
the International Organization for Standardization as
reference standards in its corporate risk management.
PTTGC's risk management structure consists of three
levels, which are the corporate level, business unit level
and operational level. This is to ensure that major risks are
completely identified, suitable and sufficient measures
are available to mitigate risk and the effectiveness of
risk management can be evaluated across PTTGC's

organization.

More delails can be fowund in the annual repord, page 48 or
on the company's wabsite hitp2fwenw. pitgegroup.comfen/govemance/
risk-managemant

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
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Risk Management Committee ¥
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Management Commiltes
AMRONS

Enterprise Risk Management Committee
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Business Group / Enoblers
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Operation Unit/ Subsidiaries/ Department
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PTTGC has analyzed and identified the critical risk
factors along with the mitigation plans as described in
details in the “Risk Management and Risk Factors™of
the Annual Report 2016, page 49. Critical risk factors also
cover emerging risks that may cause a broad effect to
the company and/or industry during the next three to five
years, for example, long-term feedstock risk and water
management risk.

Business Group / Enablers

Operation Unit / Subsidiaries / Department A
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EMERGING RISK
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More detalis on Risk Manasgement and Risk Factors can be found in the Annuai Report,

Page 49 and hitp:iwww.pttgegroup.comlen'governance/risk-management
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Risk Culture

To ensure stable and sustainable growth, PTTGC has
established a nsk culturethrough out the organization
at all levels by creating a risk culture guideline and
upholding it. The risk culture guideling has six compaonents:
1) Risk Govermnance, 2) Leadership, 3) Risk Structure,
4) Risk Technigue, 5) Risk Communication and 6) Risk
Management Knowledge.

RISK CULTURE
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Risk Technigue
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Crisis Management

In addition to the risk management, PTTGC has an
emergency and crisis management plan, which covers
the supply of devices, materials and equipment used
for incident response, severity assessment of the event,
taking control of the situation, defining the functions of
person responsible for event termination, continuous
practicing emergency and crisis response plan and
the review and improvementofl emergency and crisis
management plan to keap it most effective.

PTTGC has implemented the Business Continuity
Management (BCM) in accordance with ISO 22301
(Societal Securily - Business Continuity Management
Systemn - Reqguirements) throughout the supply chain.
PTTGC focuses on practices which reduce the impact
of incidents on the business and shorten the time
spent 1o manage emergencies and crisis, so that the
business can returm to normal operations as quickly as
possible without an effect to the business operations
of its customers. PTTGC has continuously conducted
areview on performance, efficiency and effectiveness of
the Business Continuity Management (BCM) system to
protect the interests of all stakeholders associated with
the organization.

EMERGENCY AND CRISIS MANAGEMENT
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EMERGENCY LEVEL 1

i

Mo violent incident,

The situation is controlled by
the employes that is
responsible forthe area.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT (BCM)

G EMERGENCY LEVEL 2 CY LE
....... e .-.;---'..'--.-.-.--.-.-..-..-.'.-.-..-.......................-...4-.

Violent incident,

The situation is controlled by
the PTTGC Emergency Duty Team.

Violent incident that may affect
the plant and the odjocent community.

The situation is jointly controlled by
the PTTGC Emergency Duty Team
ond external ogencies.

Emergency or crisis event that

may affect the business,
for example feedstocks shortage.

° Impact to Business ° FTTGC hos o business confinuity plan which

defines procedures of operation in response,
follow-up and restoration. In addition,
the responsibility of each agency is defined,
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In 2016, PTTGC has improved the structure of emergency
and crisis communication to cover associated persons
both inside and outside the organization. The purpose is
to confirm the situation and to clearly define the functions
of persons responsible for communication, monitoring
and restoration of the situation,

1T 2559 viin finnlfudgalassairanisienisninginga
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EMERGENCY AND CRISIS COMMUNICATION PROCESS FOR

ASSOCIATED PERSONS BOTH INSIDE AND QUTSIDE THE ORGANIZATION

Intermnal
Communicalion

YES

{‘ﬁgmo o

Emergency & = Communicating Emergency
Crisis Case to employees by Level 2
. 5MS ond alarm
in plant

Exdernal
‘Communication

Communicating to PTT,
EMCC ond Industrial Estote

Remark: - Emergency level 1 : Able fo control by shift employees

| —

?
“iow © =
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Press Sending to Related Communicating
Release Departments in PTTGC to Board of
to execute with Directors, Office

internal and external af the President
stokeholders & CEQ, Employees

L3
e
Monitoring and Communicating to Media,

responding to PTT Corporate Communication,
external stakeholders neighbour communities,

public sectors, shareholders,

Stock Exchanges of Thailand.

- Emengency level 2 : Require suppor from PTTGE Emergency Duty Teom
- Emergency Level 3 : Require support from FTTGC Emergency Duly Team and external agendes

= EMCC stands for Envirenmenial Monitoring Consrol Cendes
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CARE AND MEASURABLE BENEFIT
o wldaTRIa:aSANIANUAIAUIAAVID0ADU

SUSTAINABLE RETURNS

We deliver the best
business performance
through trustworthiness
to create fair and

sustainable value for
shareholders.

to cultivate proficient
workforces with
profound engagement
and commitment to
professional
excellence.

HAPPY AND SAFE WORKPLACE

uperior solutions
from Innovative
products and service
to be the best ce
for business partners,
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= Balonce Business with Sustainability
CARE AMD MEASURABLE BEMEFIT

PTTGC realizes the value of natural resources, which is
one factor for our business operation as well as operations
that could impact the environment, communities and
stakeholders. Therefore, PTTGC aims to do business with
regard to human rights, along with caring for society and
the environment throughout the value chain by deploying
environmeantal management system, climate change, and
sustainable social responsibility, to create value for the
stakeholders across all sectors. This is consistent with
the PTTGC strategy, Balance Business with Sustainability
together with Creating Shared Value between the
organization and society, in order to move towards
a role model of sustainable growth,
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6 CAPITALS INPUT
1

Financial Infellectual Social
Capital Capital Capital
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Manufactured Human Natural
Capital Capital Capital
™
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GHG emission reduction 315, 431 Tons of CO, equwulan'r {2013 201&]

Eem Wusta to Lundﬁli

Total Environmental Expenditures 1,385 million Baht

Eummumw Satisfaction 83.65 %
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Churifuhle Donations 31 49 mu!lmn Buhi

PTTGC has both legal and social licenses to operate which keep
the company operations on schedule ond running smoothly.

SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Limited resources, more stringent environmental laws
and regulations, stakeholders' expectation toward
environmental protection and conservation, as well as
the investment cost of the project to reduce the
environmental impact of operations present a challenge to
the PTTGC's operational and environmental management.
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The policy and integrated environmental management
systern canceming air, water, waste, energy and resource
efficiency of PTTGC are built on it's commitment to
comply with both national and international laws and
regulations. This also includes controlling, preventing
and continuous monitoring to cover the entire valug
chain of the company. The purposes are to improve
efficiency of the environmental management system
and to create confidence for the stakeholders to ensure
that the company business is supervised and has
minimal impact on the environment and community and
is in accordance with applicable laws, standards and

best practices related to environmental management.

More details can be found at
mipeifwew pltgogroup.comien/sustainabilily/sustainability-emsironmen

PTTGC implements the Environmental Management
Accounting (EMA) project, which is a tool used to analyze
and manage the environmental accounting i.e. the
investment cost, the cost of environmental management
systems etc, The analyzed result will be reported to
the executives as well as to help the enterprise making
decision on environmental projects. The pilot project
started its operations in 2014 and has been expanded
since then to cover all plants in the year 2016, PTTGC
has been setting up the Environmental Return an
Investment (EROI) project to measure the effectiveness
of its environmental investments. In 2016, FTTGC has
initiated two environmental projects by using EROI for
the Purge Gas Reduction Unit project and the High
Performance Heat Exchanger project. Furthermore,
PTTGC aims to expand the EROI to other projects in
the future.
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Annuetwreilies ArourquARemitslIAuATI0ILTENY
Wl furgsuasimunssuurimsdanisdudunadey
Wildssaninmetiane wienfuaieanudeiusetiido
Wiy dansAniugiiaveiing axlimetifuguassia
dananszvusisdondenuargurulieniign naeaswuduly
Audan MUANYUNIY NIATTIY soufARUfAT duida
(Best Practices) fiRuadasfussuunisinsdanasdu
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{Environmental Management Accounting: EMA) %ﬁl.ﬂu
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wenannil viEny IdnenemiteldifunadnsAidaiay
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ﬁlqmnﬁ'ﬂu (Environmental Return on Investment: EROI)
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Gas Reduction Unit uazlmsan s High Performance Heat
Exchanger uazFanlmuaensrerusan1sAfiney
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ENVIRONMENTAL RETURN ON INVESTMENT:EROI

TAsumismdnsinournuINNIsaunUAILAYIINADL

© PURGE GAS REDUCTION UNIT PROJECT

PTTGC instolled the Ethylene Recovery Unit (ERU) to extract ethylene.which is presented in the flare
goses from the gas flow system, and brings it back into the manufacturing process prior send fo bum
in the second Waste Heat Boiler. This recovers the omount of ethylene gos being bumt and minimizes
the impact on air quality, which can affect the community.

UEENY didumstinmunLisaLanAuNAUNTaTHU (Fhylena Recovery Unit: ERU) ilatumsienfunuuseiufias:uneny
nsuuiaruudsusonedainaullTEiuns:waumseAndnasunaunm:Avidnindslatnonuioun 2 Waste Heat
Boiler BudopanUinrufaiafifune:dasaeidioniyos:anuans:nudiuntunmwemARe T saaRio U

More than more than G800 tons Reduced costs of new-feed 448
20 million Baht of ethylene ethylene production for
budgeted to gas per year recovered the manufacturing process

install ERU and excess ethylene flare by
11.3 billion Baht per yeor

© HIGH PERFORMANCE HEAT EXCHAMGER PROJECT

PTTGC changed type of heat exchanger to a highly efficient, which increases heat transfer rate,
reduces fuel gas consumption in heat exchanger ond reduces costs in the production process.

USGN dndumsivAButnnS swEnUABUATUSBUIdUATNAGUSANBMWAY snsneanausaulifau ide
anUSuirunstiimafowivdhriuindouanidounausou iaacridswiuns-usumsedio

More than O million Baht Reduce the fuel gas Reduce costs of fuel gas 4069%
budgeted to install consumption used in the manufacturing

the new heat exchanger by 104 megajoules process by more than
28 million Baht per year

Mote: ERCH = [(Environmental Benefits + Economic Gains)/(Capitel Investments + Cperating Expenses)] x 100%
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The business operations of PTTGC comply with
both national and international envrionemental laws
and regulations. As a result, in 2016 PTTGC had no
violations and did not break the environmental laws or
regulations. Moreover, all PTTGC's plants received the
Green Industry Level 5 cerification from the Ministry of
Industry. It is apparent that PTTGC operates business
with a conscious awareness and commitment to reduce
the environmental impact to a minimum throughout
the supply chain.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND
CLIMATE STRATEGY

Climate change and energy efficiency are important
global scale issues that stakeholders pay close attention
to. As witnessed at the 22" Session of the Conference
of the Parties (COP 22) to the United Mations Framewoark
Convention on Climate Change held in Marrakesh,
Morocco, where approximately 200 participating
countries, including Thailand, agreed to fight global
warming. This emphasizes the importance of the issue
and worldwide move for transition to a low-carbon society
in the future, which may, directly or indirectly, impact
PTTGC operations. Possible effects of climate change
could include water shortage due to climate fluctuations
and regulations to control greenhouse gas emissions,
which arise from intemational agreements. Accordingly,
PTTGC aims to contribute to the country and the
international community in mitigating climate change and
promating the development of energy efficiency as well
as studying the use of renewable energy. This aspiration
has been integrated into the PTTGC business operations
to ensure minimal impact on the environment and as
a mechanism for driving business praclices to reduce
the impact of climate change.

Energy Efficiency

PTTGC operates in accordance with the energy
management policy and all plants of PTTGC Group
received 1SO 50001 certified in energy management
systems. Energy saving projects and enhancing
energy efficiency have been implemented in the

- .

Yl NIANTUGIIATBITENY ABRRAGBIAINN)UNIBLAS
fesiunniawandanilussiulssmauasssdusang
Rasanalilull 2559 ity Lifinsdlacdimidalanguunouas
FatiAudnRawinden uensanii v SelFunsfusasns
Wugaswnssu@dies seAy 5 (Green Industry Level 5) 370
nasmEagmaNgsl AsunTssau Sadufilszdngn s
fdiugsiafuanusssnin ldla uasduiulunmesauanssny
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enterprise to achieve the defined Energy Index and finmue weziinisAnAueteAelies TallAnuaesnrdes

are continuously monitored, which is aligned with fudlsneniaimuetiisiiui 7: ndsuaretaiinnau
the Sustainable Development Goal 7: Affordable and dintiald (UN SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy) 184894073
Clean Energy of the United Nations (SDG 7). awlseerd

ENERGY INDEX :El

iWruIgnIsanadasedainisiawdvau

5.78 Reduce by | U%
3.04 from 2015 based year

Unit : GJton of produdicn 2016 Target for 2020

HIGH EMISSIVITY COATING AT HEATER PROJECT

TAsun1s High Emissivity Coating at Heater

© PTTIGC improved manufocturing equipment by cooting the furnace pipe and wall with ceramic, in order
to enhance the heat capacity, reduce the fuel gas consumption and reduce costs in the monufacturing
process as fargeted.

UEENY UEulsaUnsndmsadn Tnomsnfoudanonauimanniendoomsiin |ﬁaup‘juds:ﬁnﬁmwTums?ﬂnmuﬁau
AUANMSTAURNIUTINMSTAFRIWA nA-AnATTETwiuns:uaumsaAnarnuithrnoRrnun

Budget of 74 million Baht Fuel gas consumption Fuel gas saving reduced costs
for ceramic coaling decreased approximately
by 89,8223 million British by 24.52 million Baht
thermal wnit (BTU) per year, per yedar,
which is more than the target set which is more than
(75,830 million BTU per year) the farget set

(20.70 million Baht per year).
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CONVECTION ZONE CLEANING AT FURNACES PROJECT

Insums Convection Zone Cleaning ot Furnaces

© PTIGC has optimized convection coils in a furnace by cleaning coke that coated a wire. This resulted
in a reduction of fuel gas consumption and costs in the manufacturing process as fargeted.
uEEN Iamuls:Ansmwmsiunanusauzavanraniumian doomsimanuranifnnimeaguuacnan Auualhan
UBunrumshifadawdy ia-aofitiswluns:uaumseaaldcuihnunefiimun

Budget of 2.2 million Baht Fuel gas consumplion Fuel gas saving reduced
for opfimization decreased costs approximately
by 2,100 tons per year, by 26.7 1 million Baht
which is more than per year,
the target set which is more than
the target set

(1,995 tons per year).
(25.38 million Baht per year).

CHANGE MEW TYPE OF AIR COMPRESSOR PROJECT

Tnsuns Chonge Mew Type of Air Compressor

€© PITGC improved production process by changing to o more efficient type of air compressor and
thereby reducing electricity consumption. It is expected that the new type of air compressor will reduce
electricity consumption ond hence reduce the costs to the compony in the future.

UsEN4 lumsUEuUsIMsEan dosmsiuAuurtinues:uudnaimaiivs:Ansmuwaviu sa:aomstiwdanu Tou
mnas:usanamazinirisaunsnrnmsiEih irrnaTFoHauUEEn Tuaunn

Budget of 1.8 million Baht for Expect to reduce Electricity cost saving
changing air compressor the electricity consumption by is expected to
63,234.60 kwh per year approximately by

0.27 million Baht per year
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SOLAR CELL SYSTEM

s:uuluidhwasuavenag

© PTTGC infends to promote renewable energy within the enterprise by installing the Solar Cell System to
street lights in the PTTGC 1 area. This systemn provides lighting 50 lux average per day, confinuously for
12 hours a day. This reduces electricity cost for the company.

SN DrowidleiaAviasumsTaudanunmuEenmeiusvens Tauditumsaodus:uuaAnTUEhNuENIUIAANG
(Solar Cell System) fiulunuufuduf PTTGC 1 TouamwnsnTRiiavad wiody 50 anddedu deiteviluioan 12 Foluvdedu
wvdoganidhonnmsds:naaldhThiuusen+

am O alf O 2w

Budget of 2.035 million Baht Reduced CO, emissions Electricity cost
for installing approximately by saving approximately
the Selar Cell System 30 tons per year by 174,000 Baht per year

ENERGY SAVING PROJECTS IN 2016
Tasunisduus:nagawavviunvkua ful 2559

Supporting Budget 62 Energy Reduced energy Reduced greenhouse Reduced costs
225 million Baht saving projects consumption by gas emissions approximately By
1.1 million 6 approximately by 319 million Baht

68,930 tons of €O, equivalent

ENERGY TARGET AND PERFORMANCE
asuitnuIgIA:wANISANTUIUATULATIU
€ ENERGY EFFICIENCY | Us:Andniwnasidwauu
© Energy efficiency at the first Quartile © Total energy consumption
CO l&? EEAG'F 0 : g
UMPTION . .
| 1 'H- =
ap- _ -
B oin S
U ) U U O (|)
106.37 !
Target Target 12042 11525 11997
Unit < plant Unit : million Gf
Muore details can be found at dowdmansFussnnRnaaaRuE
it/ fwww. pligegroup.comien/sustainabllity/sustalnakility-environment hitp:fwwnw. ptgegroup.comith/sustainability/sustainability-environment
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CLIMATE STRATEGY

PTTGC has developed the five-years strategy for
managing climate change (Climate Strategy Long
Range Plan, 2016-2020) to set the climate change
implementation framework of the company, PTTGC's
greenhouse gas inventories records have been
calculated based on ISO 14064-1: 2006, the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard, American Petroleum Institute (APl 2009),
IPCC2006 and Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management
Organization (Public Organization) which will lead tothe
greenhouse gas emissions reduction. These implementation
are aligned with the Sustainable Development Goal13:
Climate Action of the United Nations (SDG 13).

ACCUMULATIVE GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION REDUCTION

msanomsuaaunigiSauns:anazau

290,413
237,233
)
Reduced by ten percent
i ) 0‘; s 10% (700,000 fons of
30,573 CO; equivalent)
i — i 2015 ol 2022 from 2012,

F =] °
"Msl:_ 2013 2014

im

Unit : tons of CO, equivalent

RAW CO:2 TRADING PROJECT

Tnsunisgeanefizmsuaulneaniad

nagn$msiasunavaniwnioina

UMY navuakkunagns 5 1 dmfuuinnsdanisnig
Lﬂﬁiﬁuuﬂﬂmquﬁmmﬂ (Climate Strategy Long Range
Plan 1l 2559-2563) LaRNMUANIEUNTANTIINUAUNNS
Lﬂﬁiﬂmtﬂmaquﬁmmﬁﬂﬂdﬂ?‘ﬂ'ﬂﬂ duazildgnis
SavatiyTnnsdesfnaideunsyantetesdng H81eaedans
AunuiiulnuINAs§LISO 14064-1:2006 The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
American Petroleum Institute (APl 2009) IPCC2006 Wazad#/n13
U199 ANTINNGTaUNTEAn (84ANITHNUITY) LaXAanssy
nsasnstdesaieunszan 3ennsdniiunisiingnonnii
aanndeaiuitlmunanisimwretinafaiuivuned 13:
m35"1_|ﬁamsLﬂﬁ'ﬂuuﬂmaquﬁmmﬁ (UN SDG 13: Climate

Action) 18984ANIANLsZT IR

Target based on BAUs

BAUs = Business As Usual Scenarios

@© PTTGC reduces carbon dioxide emissions to atmosphere, a byproduct from the production process, by
continuously implementing the Raw CO, Trading Project with manufacturers outside the PTTGC group
who use it as a initial substance in the production of sodium carbonate. This corresponds to the principle
of Circular Economy, which is using waste from a production process as raw material in another

production process.

UsBN4 aomsUdesfiamsuaulaseniad Fuluwanntuiwassldeinns:usumsaaneongusscINA daumsaitu
Tnsumsznumsuaulneenlzdiinugus:neumsuannauusEN egwdeidey drsuthiUidlumsduduluns:uaums
wanlzIduumSUeIun (Sodium Carbonate) FuaonAABVAUILIANIASYINHYUIBHU (Circular Economy) Tngmsth
FoviAINNSUaUMSwANNAULTEITudonaUTHUTUBOAKNSSU

Reducing CO, emissions

by 37,815 tons

I,

Generating revenue of
17 million Baht
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Agreements in the 21% Sessions of the Conference of
the Parties (COP 21) to the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change held in Paris, France in
December 2015 and the 22" Session of the Conference
of the Parties (COP 22) to the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change held in Marrakesh,
Morocco in November 2016 came into force, which the
agreement aims to limit global temperature rise well
below two degree Celsius above pre-industrial levels
and to pursue efforts to limit the temperature raise to
1.5 degree Celsius by 2100. PTTGC recognizes the role
to support projects addressing global warming by
participating the Science Based Targets Initiative project
as well as global projects and organizations which
support the goal of COP 21, including Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP), UN Global Compact, World Resources
Institute (WRI)and World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF).
PTTGC has established guidelines forreducing greenhouse
gas emissions along with setting target of reducing
greenhouse gas emission intensity in line with the goal
of COP 21 and conducted monitoring continuously.

v =l Pl i
annsdszguignipeydyqrandszangifdnnaennsg
o - o o J
wasuulasanmgieinia adein 21 (COP 21) Nilesla
Uszwmaelfaaa Weameusuanean 1 2558 uazaded 22 (COP
li. = a -3 Aﬂl 5 -
22) Mllasnndang dseinalufenin Waimeungaaniay
. P - > P

1l 2559 Munn Gedennasinsiadivanaiarsuaunis
Wnrasgamiidniedlanliningt 2 asasadeailedioy
o 1 1 Al X

AUEANBUYAAINNTIN UAZHINEIETNAILANNITANTIUTDY
gunniieduaeslantalliiiin 1.5 asaaadua nrelul
W.A. 2643 (A.A.2100) UTEMY Aszuindaununuazilumu

i o o al al il ar

wuufalunisaiiunisaduayulasanisiiioailesny
nsfutlatuninzlaniau agladndulasesnisiiuuanlavang
ﬂrﬂm:nJﬂ'ﬂtJﬁﬁﬁtﬁ?ﬂunsmngﬁuﬁwﬂ’lmaﬂf (Science Based
Targets Initiative) nulAsNsuazasAngszAaulan @19 Tasenig
CcoP damnaslanumsanilszana1d (UN Global Compact)
anntiuninennsusslan (World Resources Institute: WRI)
wazavAnsnasudndlalandna (World Wide Fund for
Nature: WWF) Baiflulassnisariuaydavisnaaes COP 21
Tnetseny it muauuamslunisannisddesfnaizaunszan
wiauanatlmunenisansuinisddesfnsFeunsyan
sandaspani gl Waanndesnuitinuunaees COP 21 uaz

AAMINHANIIANTIRIULNIARLTeY

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION INTENSITY

nisaausuirunisUaaumaiSauns:anaanuagwanicun

) Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity

Reduced by

52 percent

from 2012,
based on BAUs

349.23

Unit : kg CO, equivalent / ton of production

BAUs = Business As Usual Scenarios

,M"‘"
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THAILAND VOLUNTARY EMISSION TRADING SCHEME: THAILAND V-ETS

Tnsun'lss:un.iﬁaaw?uaqmmdﬁiaaﬁwa@auﬂs:'anmﬂaﬁﬂshaauds:mﬂTnu

@ PITGC has joined the pilot project of Thailand Voluntary Emission Trading Scheme, which was organized
by the Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (public organization) to develop
implementation approaches fitting the context of domestic industry. PTTGC has set the target of reducing
carbon dioxide infensity by two percent of the narmal business operations during year 2014 to 2016
compared with those average in year 2012 and 2013.

usEN4 Tarnsaulnsumstihsaus:uudaaolusunnaldassiisouns=anmnadnstzouds:nafnoRdalngeudms
USHISTOMISAAISaUNS:AN (SuAMSUHIEL) IEu;auinJtnuu:Jm\imsm|Uu\nuTr%En:nu|hLn:ﬁuﬁuuﬁunzsauqnmhnssu
Tuds=na Toausens mnuaithhunganUsinumsuauineanladdontotaFnnn (carbon dioxide intensity) Avsoua:
2 ;inmschitugsivmuUnaludovd 2557 - 2559 TnoifouminAioAulaiu 2555 - 2556

Greenhouse gases emission 2016 Data gathering Greenhouse gas (GHG)
in 2014 - 2015 and verification process emission permits under
Reduced by 48,401 tons of CO, equivalent, Thailand V-ETS system

which is lower than the tartget set

GHG EMISSION TARGET AND PERFORMANCE

ihrugiazdamsaduuIunsUaagfigiSauns:en

[+]
@ GHG EMISSION SCOPE 1 @ GHG EMISSION SCOPE 2
10% Reduction 1.82 10% Reduction
(Scope 182) i (Scope 182)
: 1.71
oy 3.57 357 from 2012, 1.62 1.65 from 2012,
based on BAUs § ; based on BAUs
¥ = X
2013 2014 2016 10% 2073\2{]}4\3—. 10%
2015 . 2015 2016 é
2022

Target

Unit : million tons of CO, equivalent e Unit : million tons of CO, equivalent

BAUs = Business As Usual Scenarios BAUs = Business As Usual Scenarios

L.
e, —
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© GHG EMISSION SCOPE 3

3.83

3.13
2.82

2014
2013 2015

Uit = million tons of CO, equivalent

Mo Setails can bea found at:

hitpeifwsow pltgegroup.comienisustainabiliy'sustainatility-anviranmienl

WASTE MANAGEMENT

PTTGC realizes the imporiance of waste management.
PTTGC ensures that waste from manufacturing process
does not affect the community and the environment.
The company focuses on the resources management
and resources efficiency to achieve maximum benefit
and minimize waste, which is in accordance with the
Waste Management Policy of the PTTGC Group.,

10% Reduction
(Scope 3)
from 2012
2.81
10%

dmfurmasBuanroRseuafiviu R

mitpewow, pltgegroup, comihisusiainabilitysustamabiliby-ermironment

NISY0N1SYOVIAY

Widny arsminismauddyreanisdanmenfeduiies
wrannszusunasudnly s nansenud eguivuas
Auweden Jajarfuninidunsdanis uaznislinineins
atnailussnEn e lemlgage WasmFunuseads
fazifindy Jsassadatuandulunuulourenisdanig
188 (Waste Management Policy) 18anguuis

TARGET OF REDUCING WASTE INTENSITY

ihrensanUsuiruan Ao corU a0aAnfum

€ Waste intensity

Uit : kg of waste per ton of produdion
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Reduced by 10 %
212 from 2013,
O L based on BAls

BAlls = Business As Uswal Scenorios
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To achieve the target of reducing waste intensity, PTTGC
has appliad a systermn to manage, monitor and prevent
the impact of waste on the environment and community
beginning from the process of separation, storage,
transportation and disposal. The company is committed
to use resources efficiently and to reduce waste amount
to a minimum in order to reduce waste disposal, which
is aligned with the Sustainable Development Goal 12:
Responsible Consumption and Production of the United

U rzuunisdans maRan waznmsleaiunansnu
inpduseuanden ua:‘qu‘auﬁ'qupim FAALLN NFIRLTL
nsudAs waznarindem wesAniiunuldusrgulsnonig
antiunuasdusesnBnsusivmue ¥ kel
fiarldnineansetneliss@ninm smBunninfintesde
Iiesfiamieannsznisindarendy Tellauaenndes
futisnenaimustadsiudueneit 12: mauiing
waEnIsLBRRGE {UN SDG 12: Responsible Consumption
and Production) 18489An AUz 197A

Nations (SDG 12).

PTTGC WASTE CONTROLLING METHOD

JEmisAouRuzeuiAUaaaUEEny
Efficient use Wasle management Alternative fuel Zero waoste
of resources followed 5Rs from waste to londfill
i REUSE | REPARE
® REDUCE @ RECOVERY L @

RECYCLE

CIRCULAR ECONOMY CONCEPT

NDAOIASEINTILLY r‘llll..l:l-!i]l]

© FTIGC is in the process of studying the circular economy concept to tumn monufacturing waste into row
material. This concept will be integrated into the design ond monufacturing processes, which will
decreose the cost of waste disposol, optimized the use of row moteriols ond reduced pollution to
the ervironment and community.

US4 EIQTLIS n:ﬂumsnnmuu:}nnlnsuﬂnﬂlluurluumuu lLuE}U'iﬁ*Elﬂ}ﬂU?'II'H‘IS uaunwsmannﬂumrmﬁu:bnnnuTu
G0ANNS5LU Tresa: UJUJHIIUJF]('IUI'I'-JIII'IEUI'IE]I.IH 15&.'IIEJHHUUIIEL1‘I'ISDJHITI Ef'd AwAIRUSEN AnsnanATaTwiumsien
o ITuUs:AnsmwiumsTadontu anualisdaRaianfoulR:zuaL

DESIGN

PRODUCTION,
REMANUFACTURING

DISTRIBUTION _

RESIDUAL WASTE
COMSUMPTION, USE,
COLLECTION REUSE, REPAIR
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ZERO WASTE TO LANDFILL

InsumisaoUsuruseviAviUdunauliiDugud

€ PITGC has implemented the Zero Waste fo Landfill project since 2012 by reducing the amount of waste
and changing method of waste disposal from landfill fo other environmentally-friendly methods,
such os reducing woste generation and using waste as alternative fuel. As a result, the company hos
been able to reduce woste to londfill to zero since 2015.
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611 Reduce landfill waste
134 to zero confinuously in
] tonis 0 all plants of the PTIGC group

Total waste to londfill

WASTE MANAGEMENT TARGET AND PERFORMANCE
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© TOTAL WASTE FOR DISPOSAL FROM NORMAL OPERATION
37,733

20,388
26,946

10% waste inf2nsity
reduction from 2013,
based on BAUs

25,236

Unit : 1ons A Hazardous Waste A Non-Hazardous Waste
More details can be found at AnR AR AT AR R
bt et ke roup, comdensustainabililysustaimability-givironmienl il iiweens pligegroup. comviivsustainabilibyrsustainanili-emvaranment
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WATER MANAGEMENT

Since water shortage could affect the amount of water
used in the business operations, water consumption
and community agriculture, PTTGC has implemented
a sustainable water management policy, including
guideline for intermal and external water management,
which the scope expandead to include the protection and
caonservation of upstream areas and natural water sources.
This is to maximize efficiency of water consumption and

to promote the upstream area conservation.
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TARGET OF W%TER INTENSITY REDUCTION
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Internal Water Managemen’r

PTTGC has evaluated the risk of water shortage both
water quantity risk and water quality risk in Map Ta Phut
area by using a Water Risk Map, which was prepared
by AQUEDUCT Water Risk Atlas, which is a tool to
plan efficiency in water consumption and to develop
the intergrated water management based on this
risk assessment result. As a result, PTTGC focuses
on the implementation of the “3Ws", which are Water
Stewardship, Water Saving and Water Innovation. This
is in ling with the Sustainable Development Goal 6: Clean
Water and Sanitation of the United Nations (SDG 6).

2013
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2016

Target for
2023

L3

Reduce by 10 percent
from 2013, based on BAUs

AALs = Business As Usual Scenarios
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INTERNAL WATER MANAGEMENT

nsuUsHIsTonsUIMeTuadAns

© WATER STEWARDSHIP

o PTTIGC assessed direct and indirect woter consumption throughout
the product life cycle. By calculating the Waoter Footprint of
the Products, the company con identify the hotspot of water
consumption and plan to reduce water consumption in the
production process more effectively. PTTGC focuses on
implementing the Woater Stewardship in occordance with the
Water Saving and Water Innovation,

Goal of extending to all products by 2018

WATER FOOTPRINT
OF PRODUCT GRADES
2015 & 67 Product Grades
2016 ‘ ?B Product Grodes
Sl ‘ Q0 product Grades

2013‘ 98 Product Grades
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© WATER SAVING © WATER INNOVATION

o FTTGC hos implemented the water saving based on

the principles of the 3Rs: Reduce, Reuse and Recycle. |

s USENT GmsdutumsanUsuIunsiadinukAnns 3Rs -

(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) mstathan ismstthnAuuai
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Reducing water Reducing costs to
consumption to approximately
022,401 4.0 willion Baht
cubic meters
iy -

External Water Management

PTTGC cooperates with the PTT Group Water Management
Team (FTTWT) to formulate on effective water management
plan, to support business expansion and reduce water-
related conflicts with the community. Furthermore, PTTGC
also joins forces with the government and stakeholders
to develop a Sustainable Water Management in
the Eastern Region through War Room Committee.
The developed plan will manage water usage in the next
20 years (2015- 2035). In addition, the company intends
to recondition water resources to reduce water shortages
in the community by implementing the“2Ws", Water
Related to Community and Water Conservation,
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» PTTGC has been using technology 1o assist with woler
management by installing the Seawater Reverse
Osmosis System to produce fresh water from seo water
by separating sodium chloride out of seawater and
using this freshwater for the business operations.
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Reducing
raw water consumption
to 3.59 milion cubic meters

MsUSMSTamMsiNeuanevens

1iFHNY EhLﬁmﬂuémﬁunm:ﬁwwﬁmﬁmmfﬁﬂmnfin
lan. (PTT Group Water Management Team: PTTWT) dain
wumsnEwsan et el Ansnm fesesumstey
ATTBIGINS WATAAATINER uﬁqmi’l‘ﬁﬁwﬁu‘quw TR
iy usediglddeynnauanausunininsdansn
atiediihulutuiinarsfusentduansine War Room
esasfunms Wi ludn 20 Tt (@ 2558 - 2578) wananis
UTEN 1§~1ﬂ;ll1uﬂ‘11#mﬂu‘l-'lﬁ#ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬂn"ﬁ"ﬂﬁﬂuﬂﬂuﬁﬂu
quIUAMLMIMN 2Ws T nsdanistinieuey (Water
Related to Community) uﬁzmmqi’nﬁ%uﬁﬁuﬁwﬂwé’qﬁu
(Water Conservation)




WATER MANAGEMENT FOR COMMUNITY

misTamstibeguau

© PTIGC confributes in solving the water scarcity in the eastern region of Thailand by collaboration with the
Department of Irrigation and the Eastern Water Resources Development and Manogement PLC (East Wafer)
and other enfrepreneurs focusing on the infegrated water management and priorifizing the importance to
supply water for consumption, ecology preservation, agriculture and indusiry, respectively. Addifionally, fo
assist communities in remote area, which are sufferring from drought and lack of water accessability, PTTIGC
has implemented the “InnoPlus™ Water Tank Project fo store clean water for consumption. The clean water
fank is made of Llinear Low Density Polyethylene (LLDPE) branded InnoPlus. In 2016, 40 fons of LLDPE were used
fo produce clean water fanks with a capacity of 1,500 liters and distributed fo communities in all regions
of the country.
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Target Target
KPI 2013 2014 2015 2016  for2016  for 2017
Number of water tanks distributed (tanks) | 86 | 120 | 407 | 1,083 | 535 450

SUSTAINABLE UPSTREAM WATERSHED CONSERVATION
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© PITGC implemented the Reforestation and Water Conservation Project at Huai Ma Haad mountain in Rayong Province,
fo promete integrated sustainable water monagement. The plastic flapped sacks of PTTGC are used in the construction
of check dam, fo restore water sources, to increase: moisture to the forest, as well as fo raise awareness of environmental
conservation in the communities. The aims of this project are to restore and sustain ecasystem infegrity in watersheds
ond to increase biodiversify.
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Supporting budget of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) srolis 135%
650,000 million Baht e 90 Rais forest restoration
e 90 check dams construction

Mare details can be found at dwiumuesBaseur o Baananfa i i
hittpwww.pligtgroup.comien/sustainabiiity/sustalinability-society http:/www pttgcaroup.com/thisustainability/sustainability-society
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WASTEWATER REVERSE OSMOSIS PROJECT

Tnsunisfndundaoiidienduuitaihu

© PTIGC hos recyded the effluent with Reverse Osmosis (RO) system to improve water quality up to the standard
that can be used in cooling water systems, in order 1o compensate and reduce raw water consumpglion
from natural resources.

usin dubumstiithfichus:uusihdodwloda vidius:uy Reverse Osmosis (RO) iliauSuusurarumuwhiRasn
thnaAuTamdlus:uutihmAaibiu (Cooling Water) Suvdosanizuir:romsiathaumnimauthsssuznala

In 2014, increasing reused reated
wastewater up to 922,407 cubic meters

m : or 37.4 percent.
2 ) B
2

6 T e
Installing the RO system Targef for 2016 was fo g
in O plants. recycle treated wastewater Reducing effluent discharges to
by 35 percent. Target for 2017 is or 37.4 percent.

40 percent and to install
the RO system in one additional
plant, which will increase quantity
of recycled wastewater up to
100 cubic meters/hour. Reducing raw water costs used in
production process by opproximately
4.6 million Baht.

WATER MANAGEMENT TARGET AND PERFORMANCE
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© WATER CONSUMPTION e © WATER RECYCLING

10% water consumption
redyction from 2013,
bosed on BAUs

Target

015 | 2016
Target «  Target
35% & 35%

20013 2004 2015 206
Unit - million cubic meters BALE = Business As Usual Scenarios g
Linif : percent
More detads can be found al purredsnmruasuadindu LA
hitpdfeew. piigogroup.comiznsustainabiliy'sustainabliby-ermaronmsent nitpsfanw.pitgogroupocomdthisustainability/sustainabiity-envrcnment
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In addition, PTTGC implements various social activities
to create value for the community and society including,
the development of water management in the community
and marine resources conservation. More details can be
found on the section of Contributing to Society.

CONTRIBUTING TO SOCIETY

Since business operations of PTTGC may have impact on
the environment, community and society, PTTGC intends
to build enterprise value while improving economy, quality
of life, education, environment and living conditions of
the community, based on the principle of sustainable
development, which is in line with the company's strategy
and aligned with the Sustainable Development Goal 17;
Partnerships for the Goals of the United Nations (SDG 17).

PTTGC has implemented the Creating Shared Value (CSV)
project according to the G-BESTguideline. The guidsling
was developed for selection of the Corporate Social
Responsibilities (CSR) project and undertake to achieve
highest value for society and business.

G-BEST GUIDELINE
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FLAGSHIP PROJECT

© Flagship projects are pilot projects, which help PTTGC and society to grow and go forward together. This will
even lead to an enhancement of the economy, society and environment of the country.

Tsums Flagship 10ulnsumsdunuy deAvealiuson ia:duauimsiuiom:moniiudoonu Sus:iuniugmsons:au
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PTTGC’S FISH AGGREGATING DEVICE PROJECT TO CREATE

AQUATIC ALNIMAL’S HABITATS ALONE.'-) RAYONG COASTAL
Tnsunmisarotoduidan PTTGC aswinavafigandunggdun:ias:oey

© PTTGC initiated the PTTGC's Fish Aggregating Device project fo create aquatic animal’s habitats and
revive the marine ecosystem along Rayong coastal covering a distance of 120 km. With the company’s
innovation, PTTGC’s High Desity Polyethylene (HDPE) resins are used for making Fish Aggreating Device
ropes, while Polyethylene (PE) resins are used for making buoys, both of which are of a strong and

durable quality.

usGn4 Taddulasumsangloguiden PTIGC 1GoasWInAVAUAIMSUANSUN Iagouiiuujs:uudinnnasniuoengdy
n:aeNas:uey Us:itu 120 flauns Togwauudnnssuzavustn dosmistaidowanatnglolwaiofaunUHUILUAY
K$o HDPE 2auustny Livuduluuidenia:iuduiuorneusny Fubnouidisy numuiadiogmsiinuReonudU

HDPE resins contribution
of more than

4,000 kilograms

Another marine conservation project has been initiated,
called Upcycling the Oceans, Thailand project. The
project’s goalis to transformthe Polyethylene Terephthalate
(PET) plastic bottles found along coastal areas and in the
sea at the eastern and southern Thailand into threads to
produce fabric. This project helps reduce plastic waste
in the ocean of Thailand and reduce the harm to marine
organisms from ingesting plastic. Both, PTTGC's Fish
Aggregating Device and Upcycling the Oceans, Thailand
projects contribute to the sustainable environmental
conservation, tourism development and income

generation of the local communities.

Target for 2016 was to make
70 fish aggregating devices

Covering 19 artisanal fishery
communities in Ban Chang district,
Muang Rayong district and Klang district

covering a distance of 120 km.
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UPCYCLING THE OCEANS, THAILAND PROJECT

Tnsunis Upcycling the Oceans

@ PTIGC has implemented the Upcycling the Oceans, Thailand project in cooperation with the Tourism
Authority of Thailond and the BCOALF foundotion of Spain. In order to reduce plostic waste along the coostal
oreas and in the sea of the Eostern and Southern Thoiland, the plostic woste is reprocessed info row
materials for the garment produdiion. This project will decrease the use of new raw marerial, effidenty
utilized the existing row material and promote Green Society of thailand.
uSEN dululAsums Upcycling the Oceans SaufumsnsufioaHUsnalng ia:yads ECOAF UsanAaiu iilo
AnUSLINBVIRBUSInNWAATNILn:AIA: uSiaruodnng: ﬁuaﬂﬂm mirlisauls:inaing Inothaoudawaadin
AL ﬂ|U|uuﬂmnwmwdsguﬂmnqnlﬂuns vaumswaniFadn aomstanswennstl Kyudoumsianswenns
fidegifmaus:AnEMunnAdn rAursunsluAveuAiEsosaulsinAlng (Green Socicty)
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Expecting to reduce the plastic waste ;
at the coastal areas : o :
ond in the sea by approximately Transforming plastic waste

?5 e ithia 5 veors into thread to maoke fabric

CSR PROJECTS AND ACTIVITIES IN YEAR 2016

Tnsunisia:nanssuibodenutuld 2559

O jiii: O gl

Community Investments are Implementing CSR projects Employees voluntesred during
more than 47 .62 million Baht covering three dimensions: paid hours infor
é economic, social and environment 27,224.5 hours
Commercial Initiatives are H wwun;:n{ii:hzls PIojechs
more than 58.76 million Baht In 2016, PTTGC implemented

é. AB6 octivilies.
Charitable Denations are

31.49 million Baht
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COMMUNITY SATISFACTION

aawiivwelvlnesouasvgLay

© FTIGC conducted o community satisfaction survey on the company’s operation aspects. In 2016, the
community safisfoction score in Rayong province wos 83.65%. PTTGC is committed to improve the community
satisfaction score through Creating Shared Volue projects that covers economic, environment and sociol
dimensions as well as in occordance with community expedtation, in order to sustainably improve the quality

of lite of the communifies and society.
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More detads can be found at
htp s ptigogrosp. comdensustainatility'susteEna Lilty-socialy

Apart from conducting business with social and
environmental responsibilities through Creating Shared
Value projects, PTTGC promotes respect for human
rights and ensures that the communities, society and
stakeholders are treated with respects. More details can
be found on the section of Human Rights.

HUMAN RIGHTS

Human rights mean the rights that all human should
have equally, in particular the rights relating to dignity of
humanity, freedom and equality of individuals in opinions
and actions without harassment. The violation of human
rights is currently an issue that has received much
attention from everywhere around the world. Problems
arising from viglations of human rights may affect overall
business operations, such as termination of trading
agreements, refusal of customers to buy products from
companies facing human rights issues, and it is also
affecting the public image of the grganization, PTTGC
is aware of risks associated with human rights violations
and therefore implemented principles according to
the Ruggie Framework, which is the United Mations
guideline on protecting and respecting the human rights
and remedies their viclations (The UN "Protect, Respect
and Remedy” Framework).

85.15%

a 9 —+a & ¢

2014

86.02%

86%

a 83 ﬁf‘.u 2% ﬂ

86%

' Target for Target for

2015 2016 2016 2017
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PTTGC has established the human rights policy that is
internationally recognized, prepared a due diligence
process and implemented the human rights risk
assessment to prevent violations of human rights of
stakeholders associated with the company’s activities

throughout the value chain.

Human Rights Policy

PTTGC has prepared guidelines on policy and respecting
international human rights based on several rules,
including the Universal Declaration of Human Rights of
the United MNations, UN Guiding Principles on Business
and Human Rights and ILO Declaration on Fundamental
Principles and Rights at Work. The guidelines apply
to the whole PTTGC Group, joint venture companies and
other external groups for which it may be relevant or
which may be affected by the company's activities
throughout the value chain.

HUMAN RIGHTS POLICY

uloungANSULEEEU

EMPLOYEES
R SUPPLIERS

To show its commitment to prevent human rights
violations of stakeholders associated with the
activities of the compony. PTTGC Group and
companies cooperating with PTIGC Group,
including joint ventures, suppliers ond customers,

" must strictly comply with this human rights policy.
- ilanamacuLviulumsJauiunsaiinAnsuYoaU
F’ genglirauldfoninuodeviufivnssuauusEn Tng
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Mose details can be found al

hitpfheenw, pigogroup, comien/sustainabilitysustainability -economic
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AtUAT (Value Chain)
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COMMUMITIES, SOCIETY
AMND THE EMNVIROMMENT
CUSTOMERS FuEUAvAY
anf1 sA:Aunandau

SCOFE » #oUIAN '

e Employees

AT

s Suppliers

A

o Customers

anFi

e Communities, Society and the Environment

AL SanUmaEEanAoL

i1uﬁmnn§|;ﬂﬂu’dﬂﬁnl1mﬁu;ﬂuﬁ
hitp:fihwwew pigogroup.comdh/sustains baitysustainability-economic




PTTGC has prepared a due diligence process to analyze
the potential impact of human rights on stakeholders.
The due diligence process helps identify and prioritize
the human rights risks in the enterprise.

DUE DILIGENCE PROCESS
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The result of last year human rights risk assessment,
which identified and prioritized the human rights risks
in the enterprise through research information from
secondary documents, showed that PTTGC had a low
residual risk in all business areas due to PTTGC's
implementation of standard guidelines and measures
ta handle human rights violations. This includes Human
Rights Policy, Corporate Governance & Business Code
of Conduct Handbook, Handbook for Process of Risk
Assessment on Human Rights, etc., which can be used
to manage human rights issues in the area of operations
to reduce the likelihood and severity of a potential
negative human rights impact. Mevertheless, PTTGC
has foreseen that the risk assessment in the enterprise
by using secondary data alone may not be sufficient to
effectively address the issue of human rights. In 20186,
Human Rights Impact Assessment (HRIA)} in operational
and functional levels has been implemented in the Map
Ta Phut operating area by organizing conferences,
interviews and gathering feedback from relevant
agencies and stakeholders, to prevent and mitigate
the potential negative human rights impact from business
operations of the company. The implementation of this
assessment is expectad to be completed in 2017,

Integrated Sustainability Repart 2016 | PTT Global Chemical Public Company limied

q*unr..|an'mJr:nﬁuﬁhm'mLﬂuaﬁﬂunﬂ?aznﬁmﬂnﬁuqm-ﬁu
(Human Rights Risk Assessment) ﬂﬂ'mn %uﬂun'ﬁ'wquﬂz
dndnduntudrAyresnnudedudniuyseeulussdy
24An? dumsAnmAuadrfayasiniangismiogiinuda
Uitine ﬁﬁﬂmﬂmﬁmﬁmﬁamj {Residual Risk) Tuszdusn
Tunniwiinsaniugis Wesanudsn fuama HARTTI
ugzuAsn T lunssanisd udniuyruty 1By ulsue
ansuysury gflentsiifuguaisnisfiAuazassuussm
gifa uasilofunauninlanfiuaruBusduiniuyeee
Wudy Aaaursnir 4 lunnidwrsdanasdssifudu
ﬁn’ﬁqumu‘mﬁuﬁﬂﬁu’ﬁmnﬁaﬂa’iamﬂuﬁxmmiuum
11114n'wLﬁmuﬁnf:*m_ld’wﬁﬂﬁuuﬁﬂw'ﬁ'mmﬁﬁu atinals
Anne v @adludanistlssfiuacadesussdussdng
T liFayanFunfatrninadueslifisamasenisdanas
ToyssnuninyweruetiafidssBninon Tl 2559 344
Gusnfduninlsnfiunsnsynud TUANTUYRETY (Human
Rights Impact Assessment: HRIA) 1ui:ﬁu%uﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂu
(Operations) WATIEALMUTEN tFunelinns}'Luﬁuﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmr
wruAa Tnenasdsegy dunwol uasfuiaAomAniiuan
wirsrnuagiidoulfiduiifioates Wetastuuazuszma
usnssnududvEuyssmuiiensfatusainmedndugifiaves
iy Famadnasudaiadalull 2560




HUMAN RIGHTS RISK ASSESSMENT IN ALL AREAS OF BUSIMNESS OPERATIONS
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© In 2016, PTIGC hus ossessed humon rights risk in six countries of the PTIGC Group, ond ot the enlerprise
level with o coverage of 100 percent of the business operations.
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Human Rights in our Organization

In order to ensure to employees that PTTGC is operating
fairly across all organizational and operational levels and
in according to the human rights policy, the human rights
related to PTTGC's gperations have been audited by
external agencies according to Thai Labour Standards
(TLS 8001-2553) every year. All PTTGC's operations
have been certified at the highest level of the applying
standards.

PTTGC has a policy in place for hiring employees in
a fairway by considering the capacity of employees and
suitability of the positions as well as considering diversity.
In 2016, PTTGC has hired an employees with disabilities.
PTTGC has improved the facilities for persons with special
needs, such as the preparation of ramp areas in the
company's offices, etc.

100x 100%x 100% 100
© © © ©
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INTERVIEW WITH OUR EMPLOYEE
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PTTGC has provided courses and training sessions on
the company's human rights policy including international
and Thailand labour law s0 our executives and employees
are aware of the fundamental rights, which they and
those involved in the operations should receive, including
practices to prevent human rights violations in the
workplace. To date, 50 persons of interested persons
and related employees paricipated in those courses and
trainings. Additionally, we plan to continuously conduct
the human rights training as well as develop measures to
enhance awareness of human rights, such as the human

rights checklist for further evaluation.

Furthermore, PTTGC provides various channels
to receive comments and recommendations from
employees, for example the Whistleblower system,
communication channels and online system within the
company. In addition, employaes can make comments
and recommendations through the Welfare Committee,
which PTTGC has established in accordance with the
Labour Protection Act B.E. 2541. The Welfare Committee
is a mediator receiving commeants and recommeandations
from employees, discusses and manages the suitable
weilfare for both employees and the company. As a result
of care and attention from the Welfare Committee, PTTGC
received Outstanding Awards in Labour Relations and
Welfare Relations for the fifth consecutive year,

EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT CHANNELS

?m M 1 llu, [1] 2] |lJ|'||'|I]"|IJIH .1 SIAUDNURINW |ur|-1 U
e A
Welfare Committee Whistleblower System
ANENSSUMSATATMS s:00 Whistleblower

TuAnuUs:naufiems (ARA.)

In addition to managing human rights in the organization,
PTTGC also takes into account the rights of stakeholders
outside the organization, such as the rights of supplier,
customer and community, society and the environment,
This cowvers related human rights issues. PTTGC has
developed management measures to prevent human
rights viglations in various forms and reduce the risks,
which may lead to human rights violations.
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HUMAN RIGHTS FOR EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS
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Human Rights lssues
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which is one of the Envirenmental, ! likewise the company checks ¢ and recommendations Ihrough
Social ond Governance (ESG) : suppliers i Whistleblowers and Hotline
assessmenls + e Provide channels for comments
o Develop a Vendor Crilicism : and recommendations through
process 50 that the relevant ogencies ! Whistleblowers of the company ¢
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Mote: References of standards and scurces of human nghls issues as follows:
(1) International Bill of Human Rights
(2} International Labour Organisation (ILO)
(3) Database in websile, Business & Human Rights Resource Center

(4] Guice to Human Rights Impact Assessmant and Managaement, Intermational Finance Carporation (IFC)
i5) Office of the High Commissioner for Human Rights (OHCHR)

(6] United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (LNEP FI)

(7] Workd Report, the Human Righls Watch Organization

wwms U SBarmpuasuriirssdid i Reeluil
i1y mrssimagerausswinlis A (Intemational Bl of Human Rights)
(2) mnsessTerswiTszing (International Labour Crganisation: L)
(3 gasdnynluduled Business & Human Rights Resource Center
(4)  AfamnssduesirdemsaneuiuinEinseny sesusninisRurswialszne (nemational Finance Corporation: IFC)
(51 At e Andagsrmuiimnlizrmi (Office of the High Commissioner for Human Rights: OHCHR)
(6] United Mations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI)
(7) Waorld Repor Tnusadng Human Rights Watch
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INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
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SUSTAINABLE RETURNS

We deliver the best
business performance
through trustworthiness
to create fair and

sustoinable value for
shareholders.

creates,.
a learning
organization and
a happy workplace
to cultivate proficient
workforces with
profound engagement
and commitment to
professional
excellence.
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with responsibility and
care for sustainable

& 1S

development

CARE AND MEASURABLE BEMEFIT

in order to maintain its competitiveness among the
challenges and rapidly changing situations nowadays,
PTTGC focuses on the supply chain management and
innovative products and services, which integrated social
and environmental responsibility to be the best choice
for business partners and customers as well as
empowering business growth for new product
development to both domestic and international markets.
Those are in accordance with the PTTGC's business
strategies, namely the Sustain Core Strategy and
the Accelerate Growth Levers Strategy to drive the
excellence in manufacturing, marketing and distributing
products as well as researching and developing current
operation to support opportunities for the new businesses
in the future, which create values by cooperating
investment with business partners and expanding
destination markets to both local and nearby regions.
The implementation of these strategies will enhance
_strong foundation to accelerate sustainable growth.
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Supplier Satisfaction 89.53 percent

SUSTAINABLE INNOVATION

Due to an increasing trend of competition in the
petrochemicals industry and the rapid changes in the
technological development as well as the consumer
demand for the environmental-friendly and health-friendly
products, PTTGC has altered the development of new
innovations, both in the manufacturing process and
in the product development that increases commercial
value, with regard to the reduction of impact on the
environment and society as well as the creation of
stakeholder satisfaction throughout the supply chain.
These efforts support Thailand's strategy for developing
its Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) to enhance potential
economic growth in biofuels and biochemicals.
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Innovation Management

In the past year, PTTGC has transformead the Research
and Development (R&D) strategy, in order to enhance
creativity for developing technology and innovation to
meet the consumer needs and to be in ling with the
business development plan. A dedicated team has
been set up to work closely with customers and the
upstream and downstream business units as well as
the innovation team that develops new products to
suppaort a growing busingss and enhance the sustainable
competitiveness.

INNOVATION STRATEGY
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Growth Business
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Mew Business

PTTGC has a clear plan and target for the innovation
managemeant and allocated budget for the process
technology development, empowered the R&D staff
and supported the collaboration with business partners,
in order to establish internal and external R&D networks
in varipus fields and to bring the innovative products
and services to domestic and global markets faster,
This resulted in its expansion of the product market and
custemer base, including getting good rate of retums.
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INNOYATION DEVELOPMENT OF PTTGC
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Bringing innovative products and
services to domestic ond global markets
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to the company and meetfing consumers’
needs based on sustainable development
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PTTGC OPEN INNOVATION CHALLENGE 2016: “SMART-ECO INNOVATION"

Insgnmsus:naowiudve PTTGC Open Innovation Challenge 2016: “Smart-Eco Innovation™

€ PITGC initiated the Open Innovation Challenge 2016: *Smant-Eco Innavation®by focusing on innovative
ideos to co-create a sustoinable future by encouraging externol researchers who have innovative
concepts for commerciol success. PTTGC emphasizes the researches of product development and
production process to meel the compaony's business development and balonce environmental
sustainability. The winner will receive the Royal Trophy from the HRH Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn
and a cash prize. Winner will be supported for the researches on commercialization for the global maorket.
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INNOVATION PERFORMANCE
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RESULTS OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
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The innovative development performances in 2016
showed that PTTGC achieved the target as presented in
sales revenue of new products, number of prototypes,
new patent filing, patent utilization, etc. Futhermaore,
PTTGC intends to continuously improve the strategy of
R&D to be appropriated with the current situation and
the company’s challenging targets, as well as constantly
listen to comments and suggestions fromits customers to
improve innovative products that meet the demand and
create the highest customer satisfication.
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FOCUSED INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS
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© PITGC hos developed a salad troy made of biedegradable plastic for the Royal Project Foundation.
This product is durable, tough, eosily molded ond environmental-friendly. The functionality of the
product is comparable fo the salad tray made from conventional plastic. The biodegradable plastic
reduces greenhouse gas emissions in the production process and disposal process.
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Involving customers
in product development

Remark:

Producing the salad tray
made of biedegradable
plastic for the Royal
Project Foundation

Generating revenue Reducing greenhouse

of 1.93 Million Baht gas emissions
in 2016. by 18,471 kg Co:e
in 201"

(1) Source of emission factors and assumptions refered to NatureWorks LLC's researches. More details can be found at
hitp:fwew natureworksiic.comiThe-Ingeo-JourneyEco-Profile-and-LCA and

htip:waw.ratureworksiic. comi~mediaThe_Ingeo_doumeyingeo_vs_rPETAFEU_LCA_Ingeo_Full_Repor_D12708_FINAL_pdf pdf
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(1) Heayn emission factors uaz sy $refisrniAdureniin NatureWorks LLC arsnimansnsidunfudu 1
hitp:ffwww natureworksiic.comiThe-Ingeo-JourneyEco-Profile-and-LCA and
. hitpfwww. natureworkslic. comi~/mediaThe_ingeo_Joumeyingeo_vs_rPETAFEL_LCA_Ingeo_Full_Report 012700_FIMAL_pdf pdf
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
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PTTGC integrates sustainability into its innovation
management, in order to create more value to the
business, society and environment by developing
products which are environmental-friendly and safe for
consumers. In addition, PTTGC is responsible for its
innovative products and services. More details can be
found in the section of Product Stewardship.

PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP

Currently, consumers have increased awareness of
the dangers and consequences resulting from the use of
unsafe or non-standard products and tend to consume
goods and products that are safe for health and
environmental-friendly. Consequently, PTTGC has
continuously invested in organization development to
become a leader in product stewardship with regard to
health, safety and environment throughout the supply
chain, whichis in line with the company policy and strategy
as well as with the Sustainable Development Goal 7:
Affordable and Clean Energy (SDG 7) and the Sustainable
Development Goal 12: Responsible Consumption and
Production of the United Nations (SDG 12).

Product Stewardship Management

PTTGC has planned a Five-Years Product Stewardship
Strategy by focusing on three main areas, which are
production of green chemicals products, production of
safe products and consideration of the environmental
impacts throughout the product life cycle. The product
stewardship taskforce is responsible for the target
achievement.
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FIVE-YEARS PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP STRATEGY
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PTTGC has studied Life Cycle Management, which aims
to minimize the impacts on the environment, society and
economic throughout the product life cycle. In particular,
the production process and final disposal are the stages
which have the highest impact to the environment.
Implementation of Life Cycle Management policy will
result in improving and developing holistic production
processes based on Eco-Design. Consequently,
resources are used efficiently and at the maximum
benefit. At the same time, waste and pollution to the
environment are reduced and safe products are produced
by eliminating the use of chemicals and hazardous
substances, which are classified as harmful chemicals
under the national and international standards/regulations.
These will lead to a sustainable product development.

PRODUCT LIFE CYCLE ASSESSMENT
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@ PTIGC has conducted LCA for all produds (in tofal 98 product grades) according fo the target sef in 2016.
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In 2016, PTTGC has developed the Eco-Design guideline
and initiated the Eco-Design for products, in order to
response o customers' needs for environmental-friendly
products. PTTGC studies Eco-design for producing Bio-
based compound to meet customers requiring products
made from natural raw materials and for producing lighter
weight packaging for home and personal care products to
respond the customers who required more light-weighted
packaging, but its functionality is comparable to general
packaging.The new packaging can reduce resources

and energy consumption in the production process.
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ECO-DESIGN CRITERIA
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Flanning Design
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Additionally, PTTGC aims to disclose environmental data
of preducts with a focus on minimizing greenhouse gas
emissions from production process. PTTGC has received
cerfification schemes including the Carbon Footprint of
Products (CFP) Label and the Carbon Footprint Reduction
(CFR) Label from the Thailand Greenhouse Gas
Management Organization (Public Organization) (TGO).
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ENVIRONMENTAL-FRIENDLY PRODUCTS

wAnAuMRIDulnsTuAuanAaU

© Number of product cenified with Carbon Footpring of Products and Carbon Foarprint Reduction Label

in 2016
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CFP Lobel

“All main products (in total 107 product grades)”

CFR Label

“44 product grades”
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INNOYATIYE PRODUCTS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

: BIODEGRADABLE COFFEE CUPS

gfnfAruiudnnssuilannuivd@oravasfaiandaw: afanunwdasaaold

© PITGC has developed the bio-based plastic PLA, which is 100 percent plant derived and is naturally
biodegradable. The molding formulo was developed and improved for @ proper utilization in order to
produce a biodegradable coffee cup, for both hot and cold drinks ond its durability is compaorable to
a generol plostic coffee cup. This product is eight fimes™ safer for the consumer's health compared
to the general plostic coffee cup. Currently, the biodegradable coffee cup hos been sold to the
entrepreneurs of various coffee brands nation wide.

usEn Idduuibowmatindamuwain Pohdactic Acid (PLA) Ny Seus: 100 Amwisndesamuldnusssuni
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i s -mr
a b
Degraded faster compared Benaruhng revenue Reducing GHG emissions
fo conventional plastic coffee cup of 22.5 Million Boht in 2016 by 722,249 kg co.e
in 2014"
Remark: (1) Compared Polylactic Acid (PLA) plastic resing with Polyethylene Teraphihalate (PET) plastic resing

based an the database of USLCI 2015,
(2} Source of emission factors and assumplions refened to NalureWorks LLC's researches. More details can be found at
hitpeffensw natureworkslic.com/The-Ingec-Joumey/Eco-Profile-and-LCA
woemr: (1) GersdiFaudrusiamasindnmaiin PLA e s Rn indenSRumuerrin e (Poly ethvylens terephithalate: PET)
angudieys usLel 11 2015
(2) ¥eyn emission faclors uAz AUNAT U] Srflarnideran i NatureWorks LLC anoRasmazdaniasuld
hittp:ifeaew. natureworksiic.comThe-Ingeo-Journey Eco-Profile-and-LCA

RESOURCE EFFICIENCY PACKAGING
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© FIIGC hos developed plastic resins which ore extruded into thin film with excellence characteristic for
the food industry in order to serve the customers’ needs as well os to reduce the use of raw material
and production costs. PTTIGC has sold this product to various leading companies in the food industry
for food packaging.
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Reducing plastic Reducing Generating revenue Reducing GHG emissions
used by 25 percent  the production of 4.1 Million Baht in 2016 by 193,740 kg coe
cost for the customers in 2016™

by approximately 60 Baht/ton

Remark: {1} Source of emission tactors refered to Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (Public Organization) (TGO
wiwme: (1) Feyn emission factors 190 sAn RN FansThadeunTzan (safmmer)
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GLOBAL WARMING REDUCTION PACKAGING

ussyfinianiansou

Q PITGC responses to the needs of customers who want products thot reduce global warming by
developing plostic resins for film pockoging uses with Royal Project Foundation products. The newly
developed packaging material is thinner thon general food packoging ond, of the same fime, shows
the same quality, durability and tronsparency which results in a reduction of row materials use and
production costs.
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Reducing plasfic Reducing GHG emissions
used by 25 percent by 25 percent

PERFORMANCE OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL-FRIENDLY PRODUCTS
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@ Revenue generated from envirenmental-friendly products (Million Baht)
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More details can be found at hitp:ifwww, piigogroup.com/end
sustainability'sustainability-economic

Besides the implementation of product stewardship by
producing environmental-friendly and health-friendly
products, PTTGC also follows the policies, regulations
and standards related to the disposal of chemicals or
hazardous substances for further lower toxicity product
development. Likewise, PTTGC has prepared a database
of Product Safety and Toxicity Disclose and communicate
the above information internally to various departments
and externally to business partners.

AmFurmesEuadmnnRaenAnEu LR Mipiwew pitgogroup.comd
thisustainahility/sustanshility-economic
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

1)

1

2)
2)

3

3)

4)

4)
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PITGC ocquires chemicals and substances with the total of 162 items, which are in accordance with the considering
list of chemicals banned / regulated nationally ond internationally, including:
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i Mofificafion of Ministry of Industry, B.E. 2556 (2013), Re: List ! Monfreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Dzone Layer
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P | for Certain Hazardous Chemical and esticides in Infernatianal Trade
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PTTGC has registered fo the Registration Evoluation and Authorization of Chemicals (REACH)

usEn4 dudumsran:adoumeitnnsadouzounnd:nssLIEmsannuwalsu

1
13 products in total 10 products
in 2013 - 2016 will be registered within 2018

PTTGC hos studied the guideline for improving production process to discontinue and restrict the use of
harzordous chemicals, such as the cancellation of heavy metals used in cooling & boiler water treatment
ond the pilet plon to chonge the use of heowvy metals in cooling & boiler woter freatment in 2017.

uBin4 AnmusnmsUiulsunsusumsadnlfonfnisddomsTimsainDudunsis @u msonnnslamsianrini
Cooling & Boiler Water Treatment iudiu sa-lsuumsditurahsaunmsifRaumsTamstanssiiniu Cooling & Boiler Water

Treatment Tul 2560
Qs

PTTGC has prepared the dotobose of Product Sofety ond Toxicity Disclosure and communicated to its business
partners. The project started in 2015 and has been scheduled for completion by 2017.

usEN' FormTudayanuaoulrsniors:rowilulvasvedniious (Product Sofety and Toxicity Disclousure) sa:Aarns
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7 products Project will be completed
in 2015 by 2017 with a fotal of 23 products.
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Besides focusing on the innovation development with
responsibility to environment, social and community,
PTTGC is committed to develop a high quality and
efficient supply chain management. This is to reduce the
risks and costs arising in the supply chain, which can
directly affect the PTTGC's stakeholders. More details
can be found in the section of Supply Chain Management.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

At present, natural resources are depleted continuously
and business partners who operate regardless of
envrironment, social and safety concems postimpacts on
raw materials shortage in the production process, higher
production costs in the supply chain, compelitiveness
and on arganization long-term growth. Therefore, PTTGC
aims to improve supply chain management and customer
confidence to become the number one business partner
being recognized and trusted by both domestic and

international clients in the chemicals industry.

Supplier Risk Management

PTTGC has risk management systems for both feedstock
and non-feedstock suppliers, which cover supplier
selection, supervision, capability determination as well
as monitaring and evaluation of suppliers' perfformance.
PTTGC encourages employees and suppliers to strictly
uphold and abide to Supplier Code of Conduct.
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wiaidudrdusuwiflafunmseniuuazlianelasnyisddn

L3
uargnAt lugaR Nl i luuasinaseine

MISUSHISTONISAIIABIZOURM

vismy frsuuuiwisdanisanundnenes Aialungu
fauning#u (Feedstock) u.ﬂ:nfiuﬁ’ﬂmﬁuﬁﬂuﬁ:u?msﬂu'}
(Non-Feedstock) imseuaquiausinsdniangAn nsaauay
AuA NeRsaeuAnen M uasRnsulssdfiuuanisdniivam
o9 Tauduainbiwinauazadn Dateuasdfjudinm
asstusrdlunsdjiRresd1eaLTEny (Supplier Code of
Conduct) athaadania

TARGET OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

I HuemsuimsionisHagidadniu

O

20164 | 2559

50%

Active suppliers who occepted and followed the PTTGC's Supplier
Code of Conduct (%)
fifi (Active Vendor) leuSusm:inilunmsniusssuussi
TumisUflnnadfeowEEn

Target for 2017 | ihnuned 2560

100%

By 2017, dll PITGC's octive suppliers will occept ond follow
the PTTGC's Supplier Code of Conduct
Afnnsieaeuding peulustdmlunmsniu

wsstnussnulunisUfianoAfweausEny
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GUIDELINE FOR SUPPLIER RISK MANAGEMENT

UM ISUSHISTONISAIIUIA DUABUR AT

Supplier Relationship
Manogemen? &
Davelopment program

- - Spend Analysis
- : in the Supply Chain

e i e S e

ﬂ._.__________.____.____.___.______

Annual

E;; Ferformance i %
Evakuation
E Suppty Chain

Risk Assessrment

Yearly Vendor's =

Performance Evaluotion %
and AVl Non-Transaction .5

Manogement

Vendor Registration

end Application Vendor Qualification/

Asspsement

e e ST D e iy

VENDOR QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

rANINURTUnSUsIGURA

@ PITGC evoluates vendors by using Vendor Questionnaires Form to ensure that vendors are qualified
occording fo PTTGC s aiterio prior the Approved Vendor List (AVL) criferio. Moreover, PTTGC also monitors
vendors' performance by using Yearly Vendor's Performance Evaluation Form.

USEN DmMsnsavAausR:US:DUArUALDTaaUAA TnaTSIuuFaumU (Mender Guestionnaire) IDaTROUTYARTRrUALGR
Dulmundninturfizeaustng fiosuditunsaunbourdn (Approved Vender List: AVL) fiUruSEn is:OnisuUs:iou
UssAnsrmwwamscilunuegiiluls:sinnd

Yendor Qualification Criteria

g2 i
- &

Technical copabdities Guality assurance

; Financial aspect including
and quality confrol health and environment  an ossessment on business ethics
(G GC) (5HE) and labour law compliance.
E Mew Supplier Qualification E Existing Suppher Assessment
250 suppliers Torgef for 2018 >3,200 suppliers
330 suppliers h-o-- Targef for 2017 '"°" >3,200 suppliers
n f
New Supper 249 supplies Existing Supper 3, 309
Wil Wi
3,558 number of existing suppliars in AVL 3,1'ﬁnNumbaroprp.i;mpmdﬂummnl

et ("
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Besides of consideration of supplier risk management UBNINLTHENY ﬂ:ﬁﬂﬁaﬁqHﬂmﬂm'{ummﬁmﬁmmsﬁﬁ'ﬂ

regarding effective supply of raw materials, PTTGC “m.ﬁwunwﬁwﬁmqﬁuﬂﬁﬂ?:ﬁﬂﬁmﬂ Uiy deaqdiu
also focuses on green procurement policy along with a u'iumﬂmﬁﬂ%ﬂ-ﬁ'ﬁwﬁﬁm (Green Procurement) H"Juﬁlﬂ
green network and supplier sustainability development funsaiaTetefides uﬂzm'rﬁmmPjﬁmti*lafi'aﬁuﬁ'ﬂu
in commercial, environmental, social, human rights and Fmudavadied Rannadeu Kaau AnSuysuTy waznIInaiy
governance. Quﬁmﬁniﬂﬁ

ENVIROMMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) ASSESSMENT

misnsavUs:adugANUENINABL AdAU IR:NISANUOIATINISAO

) FPIIGC has initiated the E5G audit of critical suppliers in 2015 and plans to condudt every year.

usen+ TassulnsumsnsavUsatuamaingluiiu ESG Tul 2558 ia:druulumsnsamUssiudiaitiounni)

Number of audited companies Audit criteria Audit results
2 e S . & :
! companies | 1] ] ! = 5
al company | company company company | Continuty :
: ' : of business '

2014 Target  Torget  Torget
for 2015 for 2016 for 2017

1 PTIGC's critical
Bl o3t e g el { ey ol
companies cmpuiﬂs:mmuias companies companies v i ;m;;;,“
: - X

Camdanes | ws
TAFARFAREE 09
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BUILDING A GREEN NETWORK

msaswinsadwdidoa

ﬂ MEMBER OF THE INTERMNATIOMNAL ORGAMIZATION ECOVADIS
13sauluauI@nAvedAnss:HITUS:INA ECOVADIS

BUYERS

SUPPLIERS

s~
ecoyadis

¥ HATIMGS

FITGC has parficipated in the EcoVadis sustainability assessment and has been owarded
the Gold Recognition Level medal, with an overall score in the lop one percenl.
usEn4 IdsumsusadudwAvinnday Aua mRMsTRUIRSANSAT
Tnw EcoVodis fus:dunev Tow PTTGC fAinfundu Top 1%

@ CERTIFIED BY THE GREEN INDUSTRY LEVEL 5
IaSuswiagnamnssudiduas:aun 5

@men Industry
TS SO I S

Green Metwork
INEEEEAGUD

level 5

Green Culture

P SruusssUAERID
een B
SRR Level 4
A Ay level 3
= . UfAmsAEu0
:;:uwfjufiuﬂﬁrz;m Level 2 PITGC has been certified as a Green Network of the Green Indusiry Level 5,
level 1 which is the highest level, under the Ministry of Industry. Green Indusiry Level

5 means to expand the scope of the green industry from within the company
lo the oulside throughout the supply chain. PTIGC hos shared knowledge,
experience and achievements in the green indusiry level 5 cenification to
the PTT Group.

udsn TaenumsSusananains sud@uas:aun 5 msaaediEug 1euns:nso
anAwinssuBudus:Auavan iDumsatnusaurn saumsilugnannssudizug
TnfuaAnssneuennReoioudaUmU TneuSiEn DTmsitaduamuUsAaumsnd
irpuehiEe TumsaasusesanrrnssuRiduns:Oun 5 TAMUUEEN Tundu Uon,
© SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT TRAINING
msausunsusmsTanmisHavldoumuetwiudu
In 2016, PTTGC conducied o susioinable supply chain management fraining
on Octaber 207, 2016 for 121 employees in the procurement deparment
in order 1o provide knowledge, understanding of efficient supply chain
management and fo be able to opply this knowledge to the operation and
supplier developmen,

uSlnT Fomsousu Fada “msudmistomsHadldaUmuatiuiuiu” dnsu
wiinaulurtissuindediuau 121 Auludiul 20 nanau 2559 idelAwlinanulu
lssnuInAeiAUSIRAWETwNouUMSUSHISTomsHavldaUmuai
UssAnsmusa:AmusnLhuUSuTEunscitunuiA: B idoas wnouiibu
SOUTIU

| e T
R
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HAPPY AND SAFE WORKPLACE

ANUARWUNASASSARWATIAAIWUADONY

SUSTAINABLE RETURMNS

sustainable value for
shareholders.

EMFLOYEE

HAPPY AND SAFE WORKPLACE

We engage ond integrate soca
s and environment to our business
. ] with responsibility and
: core for s
developn

uperior solutions
from Innovative
| products and services

> | to be the best choic

S321A43S ONY SLONOOYd JALLYACHNI

CARE AMD MEASURABLE BENEFIT

PTTGC believes that consistently providing safety and
caring for their employees is a driving force of sustainatle
business practices. Therefore, PTTGC is committed
to ceate a safety culture within the organization, while
developing the potential of employees at all levels, and
establish a safe and happy workplace for employees,
contractors, environment and society. This is in accordance
with the company’s strategy, namely the Strengthen
Enablers strategy. PTTGC implements this strategy by
developing persongl capacity, promoting knowledge
within the organization and creating enterprise security,
in order to promote excellence in business management
to meet both business direction and changes of business
environmeant to achieve the short- and long-term business
goals,

1y @edfudamsguanslseaftuaznisenlalaminegm
stnerediesduussiuaioulunisdinfugrisettadeiiu
Jujuunssheimusinenlsaadumeluasdng ey
Amnndnunmesariniunssdy afassdanmuandau
mstelilaruguuazlaandy vaseminaw GFumun
fowandey unzdennlinenadasfunaynduiiny Ae
mnguaierruiunieinduARBuANTTILE YR I09ANS
(Strengthen Enablers) faunisimuinaa uaiuisnnes
yasnng msdasiussdagneluesdnmisuiiaieesing
faeady Wedudaududalunisuimgsiaseudu
WmeuausntafiAniagsiazesesdng uaranmurnden
megsianfoulashl suussadihwnglumsddugsia
wlusverduuarszoven
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6 CAPITALS INPUT

== U O H

o
Financial Intellectual Social
Capital Capital Capital
L ] L ] ‘

Manufactured Matural
Capital Capital Capital
L ] L ]

Employee engagement score 87.52 percent

Turnover rate 2.03 percent

Cost saving in recruiting external candidates 2 3.7 4 million Baht

Total Recordable Injury Rate, TRIR | .04 cose

VALUABLE AND HAPPY EMPLOYEES

Employees are the extremely valuable resource
for PTTGC. They impact the development and
improvement of the organization and drive organizational
competitivenass. Recruiting competent employees,
empowering employees with the oppaortunity to grow in
the future and retaining those valuable employees with
the company in the long term, are major driving forces
for the sustainable growth at PTTGC. In 2016, PTTGC
has improved the employee development strategy with
a focus on developing employees to be qualified and
potential personngl with leadership excellence, which
supports PTTGC to be a top performance organization
and support business strategy in creating new business
opporunities in the future,

Integrated Sustainability Repart 2016 | PTT Global Chemical Public Compary Lim
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PEOPLE DIRECTION AND STRATEGY

AANIANAENS MSWnLIwany

PTTGC'S STRATEGIC
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
FOCUSES OM FIVE
FOLLOWING ASPECTS:
nAynNsMmSW
WINILEeUEEN™
uwdu 5 fnu Tonr

SULguhpar
Usta g cyunmops™
’{I’.'E‘.Fqudnj Buimo’9

In 2016, PTTGC has driven corporate culture to conform
to the modified employee development strategy through
the Shift Mindset and Culture project. This is done by clear
defining the Core Behaviors of the GC SPIRIT value and
focusing more concrete on practice. Characteristics of
the Core Behaviors are: (1) take initiative to create better
results, (2) keep improving self and inspiring teamwork,
(3) work proactively lo serve cuslomers’ needs, and
(4} strive for the greater good. PTTGC has fostered
corporate culture with a focus on implementations that
promote the Core Behaviors compliance to happen
concretely and has assigned the executives and Change
Agents to drive the Core Behaviors compliance. Various
programs and projects have been developed, such
as the iWisdom program, the Max project which were
established to improve operational efficiency throughout
the arganization and the Start-Stop program for behavioral
changes. The goal is to establish the People Brand
Identity of the PTTGC's employees.

Tull 2559 uieny Tuiedisuimusirnesdnsinesiuiu
nisdfunlfuunagndnisimuiwingeu naeldlasanas
Shift Mindset and Culture Taafinwuannfinssuwdn (Core
Behaviors) va4ffiny GC SPIRIT Tdmiauuazyuiu
- e al A - " 1
nmstfiAnduglsssuaniu Taaunmaglaudnensisu
apangFnsssmdn 1A 4 A ldun (1) ndade ndinic afrased
fafAnd (2) Wennau it (3) udgnausirey
i i P e P -
ANHABIMTIBAGNATUAE (4) iR nudiedsslonidumn
. e g
yanndndaunu el uisve Wlinseiusfeimusseeadng
; T al - -
TrajsniunisinifivauigdaaiunisU s unginssy
2 X k.
winlifiaruetraduglsssn sostiaeumunsWiduimsuas
Change Agent YnwlinfiudnsunisUfifammgfinssumdn
TntiFdn Wmunlazanas 899 Trsenng Wisdom Tazenns
UAnlgnlss@vEnmnisaniiuemuionaesdng (lasans Max)
uaznisFungFingsu (Start, Stop Program) e doadaueiali
AanslfunReungiingsy el Hdhvanafeaiedndneod

PEINUNITUUTENY (People Brand Identity)
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DRIVING ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE THROUGH
“SHIFT MINDSET AND CULTURE PROJECT"

nsFuInAauiruusssuauAnsNTaTAsunIs Shift Mindset and Culture

Take inifiative Keep improving
to create self and inspiring

iWISDOM PROGRAM

Insunis iWisdom

© The iWisdom Program is a platform thot allows employee to take inifiotive to create better results.

The: objectives are:

1} To motivate and encouroge employees to extend their copabilities ond develop themselves in
knowledge application for new ideas o improve their work and create innovations, such as guidelines,
processes, senices or products as well 0s new business models, efc;

{2) To put the concept concretely into practice in the organization, in order fo incrense efficiency and
improve productivity with consistent and serous monitaring and evaluation; and

{3) To establish the sustainable innovative organization

Trsums iwisdom DusiritolomalfuinnundniodEy ndivdingg Tnolsonus:au ol

(1) iBens-dua:aussulRwinauznEBnnowmnsta:Grurausdumsihnauiindoeuanunowdolius ums
RIS LUBA:AS WASSALATILUANNSSU 13U BUIMY NS:UIUMS USMS MEauAninm nRaniusUnm
gsiTRiHL 10U

{2 iBadiusfalusmsURiRsuluaAnsatilusUsssy ilaTAmoUsAnsmwa:DupRaEn (productivity) Tnalns
AOMmUIA:MSSnEABEAILETSR IR:

(3) 1eadwavAnsTADUaNANSAILAANSSL (innovative Organisation) o uiNEU

248 project submissions Submissions increased 14 awards
fram individuals and for the best idea
groups of employees by 0 3 -parcent compared of the year

to the previous year
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MAX PROJECT

TnsunmisUsudsads:AnEmumisaudununanuedrins

€ The Max project aims to develop employees to work ot full copacity with the purpose of enforcing
PTTGC to be the most highest performance organization. PTIGC has established a working group to
evoluate the effectiveness of the functions in the project and has implemented the projects fo enhance
organizational productivity. Result of the project implementation is that employees improve their works
creotivity and are able 1o collaborate successfully. PTTGC has set o targel to reduce the cost of
business operations, followed by a project period of three years, and has confinuously implemented
the projects to achieve the target. FTTGC will be parially allocated the reduced cost as a reward 1o
employees, in order to build a long-term incentive (three ta five years). The reward is divided info three
levels: individual, team and organizational levels.

Tasumis Max DithronefumsdonwdnnulRlgonuldfuanoansn ileaduayuliuson iduavAnsni
Us:AnsmuwsvaaloomsFnduanemindimnnisusaouls:Ans mumsivuasuniasui oglulasunis
iszchidulnsumsidonbuls:Ansnwsevevnns wadwézaumscitiulnsumsavaaliudnnulnnuioaswasse
Tumsufifnunfdu Ansamwiusauuitiluadd usEn+ duhrnonmsacadvolumsailussie
mws:esaaedinsums 3 0 Tnousiny Induiulnsumsatwdeiewdaitldusmuithmnatirnun ol Al
Ausan anlisdount s-09sturioassiDuswiatfmuinnu idoasnsviules:uen (3 - 5 1) Toomivdnsou
swdroaniu 3 s:u T s:iuedns s:ufiu sR:s:fuyAna

Criteria

Achieving his or her own froget or KFI

Making outstanding contribution fo the crganization
Fresenting new ideas

Adhering to all four Core Behaviors

in the Shift Mindset and Culture praject

level

Team level buted to the cost

PTTGC's target
to reduced
cost throughout
the duration of the
Max project

n and confribution

Crganizaticnal

lewval
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BEHAVIORAL CHANGE (START-STOP PROGRAM)

nsUsuvunfinssy

© Stan-Stop program is a program that determines the behaviors, which should or should not be executed by our
executives. The objectives are to creafe an environment thot facilitates the compliance with the Core Behavior
“Take initiative o create better results™ as well as to promote the corporate culture and potential of team working
and to build trust and encourage the presentation of new ideas for work which lead to o confinuous improvement
of work performance. Additional abjectives are to promote the exchonge of knowledge ond to increase employee
engagement within the organization. This program is implemented through encouraging Yice Fresident or higher
levels to listen fo employees’ opinions without jumping to conclusions, compliment employees for o good work
performance and not to be reactive or blome others.

msthruwafnssuiinosUswndnesunosUswnf (Start, Stop) AwSugusmsidialilumsusmsau Tnolbnnus:avdndaadw
amuwiandauliBademsUs:unimuunAnssunin “ndAn nAM ASWASSARINONIT IRATUARTARONSAS MAULESSY
auAns saufvdvABuAnomwmsitnusaufiuduiiu Aswroulsasrslffomsiiausns Aol Tumsitnu foms
Usuusemsrinweshudailoms:fitududall dussumsisndsugoussnawiu soufiabardivs:durmugniiusfivendns
aavwinnu nosuRsulRanu:gumsnmds:augiomstheaull SulaawamudaRurnuinnuinalitouasy Fuzuwim
AOMSURIaWAG ma:iitdosunindarniinugdu

STOP
START  ngaugud
ISUURQUG Jump fo
—_— conclusions
thoroughly R
ihlAau d
Emotion responses
Téonsund

Courage to share
different views r
NAIAMIAYIUANIRUGY A

Blame others
fndinugbu

Admire others _
Busugdu Idea Killer
MALAIILADN
Be a role model ASTIASSH
Updaauusuuat

In addition to the projects or programs mentioned above,
PTTGC has implemented various other programs to
support the adaptive strategy for personnel development
in four directions, including Leadership Development
program, Strong Start in New Roles program, the
Productivity Improvement and Innovative Creation
Training by Leamning Concept of Chemical Engineering
Practice School (PI-ChEPS) program and the Vocational
Chemical Engineering Practice College (V-ChEPC)
program, etc,
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uenwilasanlasamsfindranuds 1y Wandulasnas
finaanuaaitesiy ayunarifunl ﬁﬂunﬁq NENITNRIU
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Halw (Strong Start in New Roles) lasenisafnassAuinngsy
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s
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LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Tasuniseuuigiin

@ The leadership Development Program aims fo develop the leadership skills and abilifies of employees
at all levels to become good and falented leaders end to be prepared for future management or
executive positions. This is achieved by a combination of diverse methods and processes such as
learning. applying. coaching / reinforcing and evaluating. in order to meke the learning and
development process proceeding efficiently and most effective when implemented consistently.

Tasumsluunguy TiThAusibeduuinuanaumusadumozasuBugiiiudnviufunns:au TRidudii
Atz aroasulAUWSsURv:AuNancIniNaaNgINALTNKSeqUSHSS:AUATUBLIAN TaswAVWATUIEMS
IRNS:UaUMSBBUSHHANHATY o1 MsTARaLS (leaming) MsUs:NATRILLSY (Applying) MSTAFILG NNt
rSowiduamnty (Coaching / Reinforcing) liasmisiinmuusauwa (Evaluating) IMelins:usumsBuuSiAmsdaun
digulvegwiUsAnsmuaDatTUURIRsg WHaitevIdovRcUsANSuALINAAN

_ 2015 2016 ;
® ® ®
423 participating 46 persons, who participated Reducing the cost
employees the program got promoted. of recruiting new employees
Froportion‘ct emplayeds who of 25.2 million Baht in 2016

were promoted |1 percent

INTERVIEW WITH THE PARTICIPANT
undaumunigauwinuiu

s that "the |_'L.
rc-ri (
at l'can uppl //in the waorkple 2
with empathy. o be a proactive le ay controlling my ‘emotional and bady
d encouraging 'my team moere invelvement: in !crqnt and action pl.mmng f0.mang
sordinates and talsupgon the tearm for their leaming and

ACEOURTING Gne
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STRONG START IN NEW ROLES PROGRAM

Tasumisiiruuguinisiaind

@ The Strong Stort in New Roles Progrom is o development program for supervisors or managers who
haove been appointed to a new position. The program aims fo educate, build understanding and frain
to develop skills ond knowledge required for performing specific ossignments, in order to help them
gain more confidence and able to work smoothly and quickly. The program is o combination of
diverse learning methods and developments, such os clossroom workshops, coaching, applying and
evaluating behavioral changes.

Tnsumsiruungusmsiiot Dulnsumsirungfuingmnsagusmsilasumsicduauiudiminnulag Loy
Tinowg adwanuiily nasosudnaluna:dnuninu:cweg AfuludemsUgotnan sunnnudolusa:ansn
Ufifviuldodwsuduss:soniSa TnoBumsuauamudsmsiSougiadinunisentas o3 msSougiudusou
(Classroom Workshop) mstRFmusnAaminnsedEuomny (Coaching) msmnunithruiar:auanmmstiil
UfIOR (Applying) nRanwUMSTomUIA:US:Duws (Evalugting) MSIURBUILAUNNMMULOANSSUGY

Obijective of o F__' to Prepare ond develop confidence for "new leaders”
the project to occomplish their duties smoothly and quickly within the first 100 days
Initial Expert Reporting

Mmeet ce0 @ Meeting © Workshop @ foedback @ and Evaluation

Stages of @ ® © © )

the project
Improving Job Reducing Becoming Effective

Satisfaction : Tensions _ Leaders

Engaging Raising Work
Expected ? with Colleagues ¥ Effciency
result @ @

Raising Work

PI-ChEPS PROGRAM

TAsUMSAS WASSALTONSSUNA: IIJJIJIII‘II'I Tneion I"ISFlLJ"III JUJSTUNMTS f'l"llrlF||+F|1T‘-‘1-‘-TllJSI.LIrJ"‘I‘TI'-JHS?FI"'I"IFJLII'I.ITI.H

& Since 2007, PTTGC has the PI-ChEPS project in ploce fo improve knowledge in chemical engineering
and develop skills and leaming processes of the operator to be oble to optimize project productivity.
The project is bosed on the principles of integrated learning, leaming by doing and knowledge
integrafion and invention. This results in froubleshooting or creation in a proper way bosed on
principle and reason.

UEGN+ dilulAsums A-ChERS fuidl 2550 illalirnna U$MudnanssuIRDSIUMBRRNANGEIRENS:UIUMSEOUS
senwinURiEmsiunisomIswan (Operator) ilalRmusoAnfAuTnsensuUs AnBnwmseinalnalnsems
HnRANMSISLUAILUYSTLINS MSEEUSTINMSURITTSY (leaming by Doing) IfUSANMGATGHS RS TIADLETkL
(Knowledge Integration and Invention) idariifiRomseiladnyrinsamsas wassAatugnaaddaunannsia:

MO
58.5 30 ]

4 20.7
] E 15.8 ‘3’
a ° h 2013 2004 2015 2014 &

A Unit : programs .?P.":‘..E‘!‘.’: .“R‘:". Sk E

Unit -

Investment of Learning in the Programs that have Expense reduction from

6.4 million Boht/Year PI-ChEPS program opplied the knowledge the production efficiency
(2013-2017) from this program improvement program
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VOCATIONAL CHEMICAL ENGINEERING PRACTICE

COLLEGE (V-ChEPC) PROGRAM

Insumsdcuungwinadadaanssuind InmAavinadauiuoiyn

PTTGC together with government, academia and industry has established the V-ChEPC program in
2008 1o enable students to take action, leam and analyze from real working environment for a period
of one year. This pradtical learning covers maintenance to the production process with PTTGC's staff
serving os mentors. The students who passed the V-ChEPC program and met both requirements and
gualifications of FTTGC are considered qualified as PTTGC's employees.

usEN Ihsaulefiunuosnunindd mAMSAnUT IRMmAanAmANSsy Sntuinsanns V-ChERC dusrdd 2551 ilafh
anAnunadaugifnua:dnmssuusmsanseRnningmsissulus:oaom 1 0 daiddumsdauisesnin
IUsufivcnuns:uaumsedn Tnelwdnausaeuseny mrhiaboudFonaslfmUEnnineindnnfaulasams
V-ChEPC AlAZWUALNSDsA-RTUALTONSIMUAUGaMSA0UUSENY Ansnadiemsanfdondurlundni o

USiEN egcediay

Investment

J:3.3:5° 3.3 3.5
® e o e

W13 M4 2005 Wb

participating students

12 12 12 12
2013 2004 2005 2016
Unit Porsons

More details can e fownd at
hitpaveww. pitgocgroup.comfansustamability
sustainability-soc ety

In addition, PTTGC plans to improve individual
development by adding more communication channels
as "Own Wish” in the performance management system.
This is to allow employees to expression their career
interests during the next three years and to consider
further job rotation, career development and internal job

opportunity continuous employment within the company.

TRAINING
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PTTGC has not only been recruiting qualified and
developing high-potential employees, but has also taken
care of employeas’ Work-Life Balance. Various programs
have been implemented, such as the Fit@work program
that aims to provide health care for employees and the
Happy Retirement program that promotes better quality
of life in the near retirement age. Those who retired in
2016 and 2017 have attended a seminar with expert to
prepare the financial management and health care upon
retirement.

More details can be found hare:
hitpc e pltgegroup. comiensustainabiliy’sustainability-society

HAPPY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

TAsunis Hoppy Refirement

em | Uado:And mudinu
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Due o implementation and development of the above
mentioned programs, the result of the employee
engagement survey is at a consistently high level every
year and employee turnover rate is reduced year-on-year.
PTTGC has targeted corporate branding and intends to
be Thailand's Best Employer. Also, PTTGC considered
differant methods to evaluate and calculate level of
employee engagement in the organization, to improve the
currently used method. The result from new method can
be compared with other companies both in international
arena and Asia Pacific region, and chemicals industry.
In addition, PTTGC has considered the comparison of
internal employee groups to reflect results more efficiently
and in more details.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

rsAsasRUgnluasswingu
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84.82% 85.70%
80.98% s o

OVER RATE

B Employee lumaover rate (percent)

According to PTTGC's commitment to create happiness
and security for its employees and the relevant
stakeholders, and besides the recruiting, employes
retention and development as mentionad previously,
establishing a safety culture within the organization and
carefully orienting occupalional health and safety to cover
all stages of the operation is significant and indispensable.
More details can be foundin the Occupational Health and
Safety section.

87.52%

W Response rale
B Mon-response ofe

B Reduced hiring new employees expenses {million Baht)
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I nidsadraunivuazrrsnass’io (Occupational Health
and Safety)
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

PTTGC is aware that there is a high risk of occupational
health and safety in the petroleums and petrochemicals
industries as its business operations may affect
employees, contractors, community and asset. Therefore,
PTTGC has set a policy to encourage the culture of
occupational health and safety to executives and
employees at all levels. The safety scope has extended
to relevant people outside the organisation and has
consistently developed safety management in production
processes and employee safety with the purpose to

reduce the risk of accident and loss to a minimum.

Process Safety

PTTGC's operation is based on the safety management
system of production processes, which are part of the
Operational Excellence Management System (QEMS),
according to the company's strategy. The system covers
all stages from dasign to operation whera risk assessment
is evaluated by the method of Hazard and Operability
Study (HAZOP). The purpose is to define a proper
plan for risk manangement, prevention and control in
production processes, both in the normal operation and
the emergency, as well as to develop efficient and safe
production process.

Employee parficipation

Emergency management
and Response

Incident investigation

« Complionce audit ek

-
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PROCESS SAFETY PERFORMANCE

wamsdniuwudurudasnfaiunsuaunisuan

& Process Salety Event Tier 1

2casEs  2CASES

Target  Target

Due to the number of events in the Process Safety Event
Tier 1 which happened in 2016 was higher than the st
target, PTTGC implemented various programs, including
the Process Safety Management (PSM), Effectiveness
KPI and the Process Safety Benchmarking, in order

for 2016 for 2020

aadiaelatl 2559 v Aawmanisaiiu Process Safety
sepy 1 (Process Safety Event Tier 1) ﬁﬂumﬁ’hﬁs“.ﬁuﬂ'ﬁ
dmneild Uisny Sedniumslasanaseing vy PSM,
Effectiveness KPI, Process Safety Benchmarking WiaLia
Usz@nEnmnisaniivausuarulsesnslunszuaunisg

(B3
to optimize process safety operations to achieve the Nﬂm'l.mrrﬂnfmu'dﬂﬂﬁnuaqﬂmm:usmtﬂwmuﬁﬂa’h

maximum safety and achieve all the targets set.

PSM EFFECTIVENESS KPI

misasrusaiulsAnsmuanulasnfioluns:usuniseaamuidmuienriinun

& FIIGC implements and fine-tunes the PSM Effectiveness KP consistenthy. It is monitored on a monthly
basis by o responsible funciion and the annual verfication is done by the PSM Effectiveness Audit Team.
This is to reassure to oll stokeholders that the company production processes ore safe and comply with
the lows and infernationally recognized standards.
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Incident Investigation

Recommendalions

Permit Compliance Required Training
Sessions Complefed

with Skill verification

g N
o g Los Y

o e b
[y { ’ L

Percent Overdue  Percent Prassure Safafy

3

Inspection Valves (PSVs)/ Pressure of change (MOC) kesponse Drills Saofety Compliance
Relief Valves (PRVS) and Compliance Completed
sofety Instrumented lincluding temporary as Scheduled
Systems (5I5s) Compliance MOC overdue)
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PROCESS SAFETY BENCHMARKING

msilEoufisunnsupnudasonsiuns:uaumsefAn

@ PTTGC benchmorked PSM to the standards of leading chemical companies and used the results of this
analysis to improve the process safety management to moximize efficiency. The results of the analysis,
conducted by the Phillip Townsend Associates, illustrated that the process safety of the company wos
comparable to those of the werld's leading chemical componies (First Guortile).

UEN UssiumsusmsiomsiuamuUranngluns:usumsuan InoMuununnsTuzaUSENIRDRRgEn e
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Phillip Townsend Associates IamiRIRUZIATLUASOBTURS:oUMSARnBeuUSENY MOUTARUUSGNIRDHAnREU
s:fulAn (First Guartile)

EVALUATION CRITERIA
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21 Cultu vill: Standard x ) : EsUTes

and Malrics

In addition to various programs that aim to strengthen
the process safety mentioned above, PTTGC initiated
the Safety Management Systemn Assessment program
with advisory from DuPont, a leading company which
is internationally renowned for safety, to assist in
empowering the system. PTTGC is striving to be at the
forefront of the petroleums and petrochemicals industries
in the field of occcupational health and safety at the

international level,

usnanlasenazsine Rstuairensnuudaundsdruannu
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SAFETY MAMNAGEMENT SYSTEM ASSESSMENT

aunaumsdndulnsems Safety Management System Assessment
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PTTGC continuously improved the capacity of personnel
in the: quality, safety, occupational health and environment
functions by organizing a training program, called SHE
Academy. Its purpose is to enhance knowledge and
understanding in the field of process safety, as well as
safety in utilization of basic equipments and in production
area so that they can operate more efficiently. In 2016,
the safety training was organized for 18 engineering
employees for a period of eight months (May - December),
Moareover, PTTGC focuses on creating a safety culture to
promote personal safety, including PSM along with the

general operations of the organization.

Personal Safety

PTTGC aims to be an organization that operates without
injury and accident by promoting the development of
standards for safe operations, providing understanding
and encouraging the contribution of employees and
contractors at all levels. Executives are encouraged to be
aleader in safety operations and established a strong and
sustainable safety culture throughout the organization.
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LOST TIME INJURY FREQUENCY RATE, LTIFR
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TOTAL RECORDABLE INJURY RATE, TRIR
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As a result of Total Recordable Injury Rate being higher
than its target set in 2016, PTTGC emphasized the
B-CAREs culture in order to encourage all employees to
practice safe operation habits. The B-CAREs culture is
implemented in such a way that employees are able to
identify, prevent and resolve the risks associated with their
responsibilities, and to communicate safety issues every
time before starting their operations and stop operations
immediately in case of unsafe conditions.
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B-CAREs

Sruusssy B-CAREs

“Safe Behavior,
Caring Each Other,
Stop if Unsafe”

Safety Behavior

stands for sofety behavior in the
workploce, Employees and contrachors
ol all bavels must sirictly comply with the
niles and the safety requirements.

fia Behavior HEawnfnssufivaanfiy
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Safety Care

is @ safefy concem in,

1} Caring for Yourself: To promote
the process of *Think Belore Act®,
comiemplafing about the work ond
possible associated risk or occident

) Caring for Colleagues: To promole
the process of “Friends Halp
Friends®, to warn and loke care of
colleagues 1o stay sale

3) Caring for Company: To encourage
averyone to prevenl incident in
process safety
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wAn K5o Process Safety Incident
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Stop If Unsafe

stands for Stop if Unsafe. PTTGC
authorizes everyone (employees ond
conlractors) 1o stop the work, if such
operation is unsafe or may affect the
environment, Bafore resuming the work,
the conditions shall be manoged or
mitigated until it is safe.

fiognme fio Stop if Unsafe USGRTAANS
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PROACTIVE SAFETY FOCUS PROGRAM

TnsumisUvaAs wAnuUaBnfFesn

@ PTIGC promotes the safety contribution for employess and contractors by establishing the Prooctive

Safety Focus Progrom. The guidelines are:

usGN4 AvesuTininnurgsurnddousaufumsgurnouUaantio TusUuuasdlnsursivas naoulaanta
1@usn (Safety Focus Proactive Program) Toadiuammcidums dui

_—

=~ @) 2

l

i Everyone participates in
; the responsibility of safety ;
i according 1o his/her role |

rz-

and has a common
understanding of
the working procedure.

(ol employees of oll

Responsible

Identifying the risks
ond the control
measures in the

work permit

Providing guidance
for control and
protection

Moreover, PTTGC conducted the Safety Cullure Survey on
employees and contractors. The survey coverad policy,
operating procedures, monitoring and revision. The
results of this analysis are used to determine guidelines
for continuous development and improvement of security
management. This is to reduce the record of injuries and

accidents that may occur to the personnels.

Everyone focuses sericushy
on the work associoted

with proactive risk and has
knowledge of risk prevention

departments taks fum to
conduct safely focus acivity).

Person

Checking the work
to improve performance
an the next day

©

Eliminale the culture of
blame ond crilicize toward

The supervisor has an
i unsafe behavior and

undarsionding of the risks
and is on-site af all times.
' establish the cullure of
¢ encourage and care for
safe bahavior (No Name
Mo Blame Culture).

Target for 2020

LTIF® is reduced by
25 percent
compared to 2015

Aiming to be
an organizafion
with zero LTIFR for
employees and
contractors
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT AWARDS

swdadiuardreundo anudaanionaAunndau

G INTERMATIOMAL SAFETY AWARD 2016
5134 International Safety Award 2016

@ PTIGC received the Internofionol Sofety Award 2016 from the British Sofety Council, one of the world's
leading consulting firm in organizational health and safety, This award is illustrated that PTTGC cares

about the health and well-being of employess.

UEEn+ 65usieda intemational Safery Award 2016 snamdu British Safety Council Builuruze WAUS UL
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yr & 4

7| %

International
Safety Awards
2016 Winnar

€ THE PRIME MINISTER'S INDUSTRY AWARD 2014
7 swiaanAnnssudiou 0 2559

© PTIGC Group received the Prime Minister's Industry Award 2016 in total of seven awards, in the
categories of Froductivity Improvement, Environmental Management, Energy Monogement, Guality
Management and Satety Management, from the Ministry of Industry,

NAUUSEN TAsuswiagnarnssufiiou Us:910 2559 MuAu 7 5wdA 9INNS:nsmanminnssy Tulsannmsiliu
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In addition to process safety and personal safety in
the organization, PTTGC pays attention to the safety
of stakeholders outside the organization, including
sumounding communities and society, in order to promote

safety in the Map Ta Phut and Rayong Province area.
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RAYONG INTEGRATION MONITORING (RIM)

Tnsun1s Rayong Integration Monitaring

@ PTIGC poys attention on the sofety both inside and outside the organization, hence, RIM program is
implemented to review and plan the working process, which focusing on safety communications,
engogement and building good relationships with stakehalders from all sectors. This hos been
succeeded through various programs, which involve safety, social and environmental aspects of
the company.
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OPERATION & CONTROL

DRIVER Managing Environmental QUTPUT
Safe Work Stewardship
» Complionce « Emission
. Itagulm‘lnn . Em Indusrrlul Town ™ @

il i . Complmm report “
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< Performan i Stakeholder o
Relevant . Italmbllw Engagement Stakeholders’ Trust
Stakeholders” Need # Efficiancy » Relations
and Concerns

° » Communication

PTTGC's Programs

o
Internal Organization

4]
External Orgonization

SAFETY PROGRAM

ENVIROMMENTAL PROGRAMS

SOCIAL PROGRAMS

The purpose of the Mangemen
Safety Walk Program is to reduce
the accidenl rale, which may
offect the safety inside and outside

The goal of the Eco Industrial Town
Program is to reduce resource
consumplion and promole
emvironmental-fiendhy produchion,

The intention of the Communiry
Relations Frogram is fo communicole
and provide knowledge and
understanding to the communiry

of the orgonization, as well os to creote safety for  on sofety and PTIGC's business
employees and the community, in operalions.
order fo develop Map Ta Phut os
an eco-indusiry cify
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MANAGEMENT SAFETY WALK

TnsunisasovAsupdwUaenfoTnoguinis

@ Executives ranging from Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents and Vice Presidents parficipating
in the weekly process safety walk, and monitor the correction continuously, which improves the
efficiency of inddent prevention and reduces emergency shuldowns of the produdion processes.
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6 o o
Conducting 5 1 Reduce the number Aiming to reduce
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"..there always is an obstacle to every operation. Once the pl‘DbiEl'l’i
ascended, it must be resolved. Do not accumulate
until it has become too difficult to solve. Take info account
that there’s a solution fo every problem. If the problem cannot be
solved by a person alone, then assemble a group
of people to collaborate in generating solutions.
Then, the problem is no longer an obstacle, which may impair prosperity

¥
and achievement...

ROYAL SPEECH OF HIS MAJESTY KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADE]
Given at the Commencement Ceremony at Chulalongkorn University
On 13 July 1990

... JumsupUanudy geulrymew q Ra3uldiaue lﬁaﬂmmlﬁnﬁu
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FouNUINKATYY AUKAIYY NWAIYADIUSIUD
UsSeunovunu drymincsuliuinialinareiualassninzarviaiuneu
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LESSONS LEARNED FROM SAMET

noaUNISYUINIADA

v .w—w—um

BACKGROUND OF THE EVENTS
awiIduuevinansnd

July 27™, 2013 | 27 nsnp1AU 2556

On July 27", 2013 there was crude oil leaked from an offshore pipeline in the area of single point mooring (SPM) released
about 54,000 liters of oil info the sea. This spill amount was considered a small quantity when compared tfo other cases of
oil spills around the world and in Thailand. In case of the Gulf of Mexico oil spill in 2010, the estimated fotal discharge was
at 779,000,000 liters and in case of ail spills in Thailand during 1997 and 2010, there were nine cases with spill amounts reaching
from 20,000 fo 270,000 liters of oil (according to the statistics of oil spill from the Marine Department). As soon as the emergency
alarmed, PTTGC and the related government agencies immediately reacted and jointly solved the problems according fo
infernational practices for which they were trained for. To prevent further leakages of the crude oil, the situation was taken
control and ail was stopped loading immediately. However, the crude oil spread rapidly and widely due to inclement weather
with strong winds and waves, putting obstacles to the oil spill cleanup and causing the il slick to wash ashore at Ao Prac beach
on the island of Koh Samet.

ms3athansuliiechdusuncuties Demoununstithiusolnausioruerabingntul 2553 FuDUSLCUMS3aTkATY 779,000,000 A0S IAAISU
TuUsanAlng nstthiusas:Ha Wl w.A. 2540 - 2553 RIRAIUDTIUOU 9 ASY USLIUASUA: 20,000 — 270,000 ANS (SWBNMUATAIKANISN
thijusaThagaunsum) SulunurRmataniaudu usEnY Ia:RUseUMASTRIMYIZey TasoutuIATadrymeguASUAYRSIURANURURANG
ATsUMsAnduingoununiingnaan Tagldngamsavthiula:AouAUANNUMSTIRURA IMelUTRDtJuauSaThaImUBNIdITavInANMWeINIA
IUsUSOUNIa:AALALISY AvaaTRthuuaudmsns:odiduonoiiuaindwegusaniga natkifnauassatumsadnnsiuthiu mIRDIuUAIU
FualuRuSIDrUNYAIeVEOWsND IMHaln

The Minister of Energy ordered on July 31%, 2013 the appointment
of a commission to investigate the facts of this crude oil leak
info the sea.

SYUUNSININISNS:NSINWAWIUIGAIMSTUSUR 31 nSNAW 2556 THlie
MSICNONATUENSSUMSAUAIUTBIRISUIOMSUhTUAUSaTHATUN:A

The investigation showed that the company’s operations
before the incident were in accordance with the standard process
at every stage and no external factor that caused the pipeline
to crack. Topic areas which were investigated are the operations,
asset maintenance, marine protocol, certificate of operator, and
weather. On August 14™, 2013 the investigation committees
disclosed the results of investigation to the public.

wAMSABUAOUWUI MSURUBNUZEVUSEN™ feufaikamstdiulumu
NS:UaUMSNNYUNBU IATUWUTRFIMuUaNArMFnieInNFunsaauAoU-
AsauAAUTiv MSURUENIU (Operation) MSUISISNUNAUNSWY (Asset
Maintenance) N1sUQUANISNIN:IA (Marine Protocol) Us:mATduUNS
o URUTVIU (Certificate of Operator) 1a:AN10:01MFA (Weather)
Fuarunssuns Td10aveN010016YwANSABUAIUNDATSISTUTU
TUSUR 14 AUMAU 2556
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2 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM SOLUTIONS AFTER THE INCIDENT

NsaNduNISMEKAVIAaInANIS NNSIATITYHS:9:AU 1A:5:9:819

¥

@ SHORT-TERM SOLUTION | msiATadnymns:g:dau

PTTGC applied an immediate-term solution by collecting the oil slick
completely within seven days dfter the incident.

- /JA
Seven Days dfter the Incident
7 JunaunINInanaMsnu

Wt

msiATadoyrTus:esIsuaou UsEN TaditumsifuasiuthouiaeAulu 7 3u :
navinanaMsad ‘

Three months after the incident, the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment announced fo open Ao Prao beach. Due fo physical
characteristic, water quality and aquatic life refurned to normal
conditions.

MYhAVINIAOIKGMST 3 1FU NS:NSIUNSWHINSSSSUANAIAAVIONAOU
Three Months after the Incident Tads:mAIdag10wsHadogdNStuNIAdIRUIENWNIIAMSNMW AUMWUD
3 I0dUrAINININAIKAOMSTU la:anNuYUIaVANIIANAUgMa:UNTIAD

To alleviate the suffering of people affected by the incident, PTTGC
assisted 11,500 persons with 514 million Baht. The fotal costs related
fo this incident were 981 million Baht by which PTTGC received
compensation according to the insurance policy with the amount of
432 million baht. 1

Duing the Period of Three Months
(1A90S:0:19/ 3 Itiou

PMNIFAMSUTILU 11,500 $19 1TUTUOUITU 514 Auuin AvTATET oA
INgadounuingMstuauNa100yAAISIUNVAU 981 Auuin Tagusun Tdsu
YaRYMAUTRUMUNSUSSSUUS:AUNaITuTUUINU 432 Au

© LONG-TERM SOLUTION | misifiTadnyrns:o:010

PTTGC has established a long-term economic, social and environmental recovery plan.
UsBN+ TavarmiuduymuiAsugie- AuAu - AviDadey IMemsIAlas:u:010 Ao

usBN TaTRAWYonInAIuoleussimacwItonseuInigldsuuans:nu !

Social Aspect Environmental Aspect

40 projects were implemented for restoring 1 31 projects were implemented for supporting
fourism and promoting a positive image of 1 education, creafing jobs and other related
i Koh Samet, which resulted in an increasing | qctivities.

number of fourists according fo stafistics of & msaTuAYUMSANIMSASETEW IAFINSSUCYY
the Tourism Authority of Thailand (TAT). nd1 31 Tasums
mstiugmsriovfvalia:auasuMWANsNIIN:abo
Fuoun3n 40 Tasumswuduou tnreviReadidu
(SNBIMNUATTRIOY MSravRUIIFIUSINATNG (NNN.)

13 projects in which PTTGC has cooperated
with government agencies and specialized
institutions to developan integrated
restoration plan.
SOUAURUIEUNASTIA:ANUURTIAO RIS 0Y
Fariwu ysanmsnisuusiuou Avau 13
Tnsums

PTTGC always operates on the basis of good governance with the processes according fo international practices. Moreover, PTTGC has also
developed additional preventive and corrective measures to deal with future events in order to support the effective norms of the country.
USONY UGUANUGOURANSSSUNALIA DNs:uaumMsmuranUguaanansudounioonasn souviGons:GUIBUIAULIASMSENY AuunnsmsUevnu
Ia:iTamssudonuramsnilueunan 1eidudourtviumsatuauuTiinaussNngIURTUSANS MWZoUs:INFRAG
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RECENT PROGRESS AND GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION IN THE NEXT PHASE
AIUAUKUNANAN AzuaNWNIsaNdunstus:g:ciald

0 MONITORING RESULTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION DONE BY THE PUBLIC SECTOR
wansaamumisduwaviondeulooninsy

The Pollution Control Department of Ministry of Natural Resources

and Environment has appointed specialists to monitor the environmental

impacts. The assessment results have shown that the status of natural

resource and environment has refurned fo normal conditions. Therefore,

the Pollution Control Department decided to discontinue the monitoring
rof environmental impacts since October 2016.

e,

TS

Snce Ocober 2016

NSUAJUAUUAIUNSNSIINSWIINSSSSUNAIAAIINABUIANAVE FY030Y
A0Mu@ans:NUAIDNADUIVIATNMSSIOULAaNSUS:IDUANIUNMWNSWIINS

© RELATED LAWSUITS | AGR9WAIRYIFOY

& o CRIMINAL CASE | atioanyn
= The prosecutor's office of Rayong province has notified "statement is not filed" fo the Natural Resources and Environmental Crime
[ Suppression Division (NRECD) of Royal Thai Police since October 2016.

AMUNNUSYMSIIHINS:uaVTAIR “Aaviuley” TUSINauVAUMSUSIUUSUMSASTAUENIRUINUNSWNSsSSUNBIaANIa0dauAINIU
chsavrvntileitiounmay 2559

e CIVIL SUIT | Adiuiv

iseomsinauwsAiesa aeledodon PTTGC The court ordered PTTGC tfo take the following actions.

oy b e (1) To implement four environmental resforation projects which were approved
by the court, including Fish Aggregating Devices Project, Crab Bank Project,
Mangrove Forest Plantation project, and Shell Bank Project. Total costs for
these projects are 5.2 million Baht. In addition PTTGC is obliged fo report
the results of the restoration project to the court and fo Rayong province
18 every six months for a period of two years.

(2) To pay compensation fo some affected people who the court considered
fo have been affected. An amount that PTTGC previously paid fo plaintiffs =5~
the court allowed to be deducted from the compensation it had ordered ;
PTTGC to pay out. The additional costs of about six million Baht together
with inferest was paid for 188 persons

Fish Aggregating Device Project

MaY TWINKITAUSENY ditdums

(1) chiuAsumMsTuynSweNnssssuNaIAANINAURENUAUIRUZOUZAAY TIUdU
4 TasumsTannTasyms#une Tasumssnmsy Tasumsthangiau Tasumsivadros
I0UTIUOUIIUAVAU 5.2 Auun IadAs1ovuwanisdidulasumsuucoma
Ia:9vn3as:wevnn 6 deulus:g1om2 U

(2) TAUSENYNTEAIEUMoAKSUGIRUMYUIISIORMAY DNSOUIAdIRUITASUAI W
Aomoesy TngiithsusuRUgEosRIRNAiIcA:WIASUIUIAOANAUIA=AOURIED
wSsuivaenUuTuou 188 $19 [DUATSMUITUIALUS:UITY 6 AUun

e RAYONG PROVINCIAL COURT -

The lawsuit with a group of small-scale fishermen s sfill proceeding
with the hearing. With a group of resorts, the lawsuit was dismissed
by negotiation for compensation and the accusers dropped the case.

NALUS:DUUISIANATIIEYSHINNS:UIUMSDNSUNYOVFA 8gS:HI1
msavweuland ArsunausaasnatyfidogMsIvsNNUNUITUINI

naulay Rayong Provincial Court




@ THE RELATED PRACTICES | WANURUARIAYIFOY

e In collaboration with government agencies and private sector, PTTGC has implemented the following:
SOUAUKLIONIUNIASY lAzNAIONBU GITUNS VG

>/ RoyoJ Tlloi Navy
navnuwisso

», Marine Department of the Ministry of Transport
NSUITININSNSIVALUIAY

Standby of aircrafts for immediate use Increased practicing frequency of the national

plan, in order to effectively handle with emergencies

3L

INSUANUWSBUaVIAZOVTU IKewsauthnuldiu
JSupowdlumsdouliound iious:ansmuiumssule

Oil Industry Environmental
Safety Group Association (IESG)
auiAuaySNYANWIINABY
FOUNAUYNAINNSSUUITU (IESG)

Implementation within PTTGC
nsaudunisngiu PTTGC

)

e

~—
IESG

Readiness of the accessories for preliminary oil
slick assessments, such as paramotors, drones,
and radio-controlled airplanes from
the PTT Group Seal club, efc.

(‘)GLOBHL CHEMICAL

Technology development and improvement of
equipment, systems and tools, adjustment
of operating measures under condition of strong )
wind and waves to have higher security,
increased personnel and routine staff fo enhance
resolving efficiency when an accident occurs,
increased amount of equipment and fools and
have them prepared for use. In addition,
providing preventive measures and emergency
frainings during day and night fimes.

IN3PUANLWSaLYaYaUNSNIUS:NeUMsUs:DUASULhIU
[Uavdu [RU unswaines, Drone IASaVTUTNAUINY
NYUSY PTT Group Seal 10uciU

Wewuia:usuusuinAluTagarsugunsnl
S:UU lladasSavDocve USuuninsmsunuanmsiuanio:
AAUAUTADADIWUARNNYAIU IDUUAAINS

IRITUITHNAUS: T 1GeITuUs:ANS MwiumsinTa

AMUMSNUNURRIAIKG 1MUISava aunsd
Ia:03uulAwsaudeomsianu sounbnnsmsdevnu
lazgauIwUgNIRUNYNANIUIA:NA AU

SN
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“...if one thinks and acts wisely, one will find
a solution to every problem, regardless of its size.
A wise contemplation cannot be obtained from using on abacus or a
computer, because no matter how many evolutions the world has
been through. still, there is no extraordinary fool that can be used fo
cerfectly solve problems. TO analyze a problem, one
must use infelligence. A conscious intelligence will prevent
and keep careless mistake and prejudice from happening. It also helps
one fo accurately consider problems ond visibly perceive the entire related

»

[E050M e

ROYAL SPEECH OF HIS MAJESTY KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADE]
Given ot the Commencement Ceremony at Thammasat University
On 1 August 1996

“ .UryrnnegwivananndefnnyTnwnnTala
ﬁ']gfﬂﬁﬂ'fhﬁ UﬁUﬁTHQﬂ misAnldadubTaMsAnidhopanAanse

dogauauna IwstlanisTiudeydue:adounmsiinmidsdofmufiuluiinsavis

sudAuatiotoAmusnauARciiTadngmc Tdegwauysnd NISY UANJUNaY
Uryn SvnevigandoynyiAennnagansnoogiaue
liongnduiia:Usviiunanuussnnaawann liaendcnn DIARcEU douTimstadounn
Dnstudnyriiun iduileeningunsuriidfuraRues Afoatauiuluns:uounms

”

Ifns:9wdnnnaunal...
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited (PTTGC) is comprised of three
independent directors with experiences in the fields of law, management, finance, accounting and
economics. Our expertise allows us to carry out our duties with efficacy. The current Audit Committes
consists of the following three members:

1. Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Mr. Amnuay Preemonwong  Director to the Audit Committee

3. Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich Director to the Audit Committes

The Audit Committee's composition and qualifications are based on the announcements of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. As Ms. Ruenwadee Suwanmongkol completed her term as Director to the Audit
Committee on April 57, 2016, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich to replace the
position on April 25", 2016,

I'he Audit Committee has performed our duties mandated by the Board of Directors and our charter; these
duties are consistent with announcements made by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and
Exchange Commission. It has been our policy to focus on good corporate governance and on compliance
with the laws, rules and regulations that apply to both our domestic and international operations. We have
also put an emphasis on the adequacy and effectiveness of PTTGC's internal control and internal audit
systems, as well as reviewing the performance of all business groups and major investments.

In 2016 the Audit Committee held a total of eight meetings. All of our directors were present at all of these
meetings. We performed our duties with independence. The following is a summary of opinions and key

activities that we undertook:

1. Review of Financial Reports: The Audit Commiltee reviewed PTTGC's 2016 quarterly and annual financial

statements, as well as any possible conflicting interest transactions. Relevant members of management

and the auditors attended these review sessions to give explanations and respond to questions pertinent

to their accuracy and compleleness, significant adjusted entries that affected the financial statements,

ol the sufficiency of information disclosure and the auditors’ notes. It is our opinion that PTTGC's financial
statements present all entries fairly in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards. In
addition, a meeting between the Audit Committee and the auditors without the presence of management
was arranged to allow for independent discussions on the preparation process of financial statements
and reporting, namely the auditors’ annual audit plan and framework, risks, internal control, internal audit,
allegation, fraud and other related issues that the auditors have not raised elsewhere. Itis our opinion that
the auditors received good cooperation and suppaort from management, independently performed their
duties with sufficient knowledge, experience and an appropriate audit approach.
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2. Review of Risk Management: The Board of Directors, the Risk Management Committee and PTTGC
management have given priority to risk management. PTTGC has assessed identifiable internal and external
risk factors for their impact and likelihood, as well as developed and executed a risk mitigation plan that
prevent or ensure that these risks remain within the boundaries of our tolerance levels. PTTGC has
established key risk indicators to monitor the ever-changing risk factors, and put measures in place to
enhance the effectiveness and timeliness of the company's responses to these risks. The board has
eslablished the Risk Management Committee to oversee PTTGC's risk management. The progress of risk
management activities is reported Lo the board on a regular basis. Additionally, the Audit Committee began
receiving an assessment of emerging technologies' risks in order to ensure that these risks remain within
our risk tolerance levels, reduce loss and the likelihood of damage to the company and ascertain whether
our control of information technology was tantamount with international standards. Moreover, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management based on business groups’ performance
reports, internal audit reports and auditors’ reports. Itis our belief that these mechanisms could reasonably
guarantee that PTTGC is capable of maintaining risks within its risk tolerance levels.

3. Review of Internal Control Systems' Effectiveness: The Audit Committee reviewed PTTGC's intemal control
system by examining the results of intemal control assessment performed by management in accordance
with the guidelines set forth by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), as well as the internal
audit reports and the audifors' reports. We discovered no imegularities that could significantly affect PTTGC.
Moreover, management has continuously improved the internal control system based on suggestions from
us, the auditor and Internal Audit. All of this leads to the conclusion that PTTGC has prioritized internal
control, which could reasonably ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

4. Oversight of Internal Auditing: The Audit Committee approved the amendment of Internal Audit’s charter;
the risk-based internal audit plan for significant control activities of PTTGC and ils subsidiaries; the
strategic plan that focuses on the development of internal audit capabilities, alignment with the company
strategies and fostering good relations with stakeholders; and the key performance indicators (KPIs) for
major tasks of Internal Audit. From monitoring and assessing the execution of established plans, the Audit
Committee found that Internal Audit succeeded in carrying out its tasks as described in the aforementioned
plans and KPls. The International Standards for the Professional Practice of Intermal Auditing has been
adapted, along with other best practices. They have emphasized the adherence to the code of conduct
for internal auditing and remained independent according to the established structure. In 2016 they have
developed a Continuous Control Monitoring System (CCMS) that screens and monitors irregularities and
fraud in the procure to pay process. Moreover, an independent auditor also assessed the internal auditing
with an aim to evaluate its quality and provide suggestions for improvements based on the Intarnational
Standards for the Professional Practice of Intermal Auditing and other best practices. The results reveal that




maost of the findings complies with standards. The independent auditor found no nan-compliance that would
significantly impact intemal auditing. Furthermore, there are good coordination with the management,
the auditors and also strongly support to the Audit Committee. These signify that PTTGC have an
independent and effective internal auditing with international standard practices.

5. Compliance with Securities and Stock Market Laws, Regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
andfor Other Applicable Laws: The Audit Committee assigned Intemal Audit to examine PTTGC's
compliance with laws pertinent to our operations. Internal Audit concluded that PTTGC has a system of
contral in place to ensure compliance, which includes the compilation of applicable laws and monitoring
of legal changes and new provisions. PTTGC has also appointed individuals to oversee and monitor all
matfters of compliance. Internal Auditors did not find any non-compliance issues that would significanthy
affect the company. Furthermore, the Audit Committee did not receive any reporis from the auditors,
allegations from oulsiders or management's information disclosure that indicated PTTGC had breached any
laws or regulations that would have a significantly impact on us. It is our opinion that PTTGC has effective

control of legal compliance and there is no non-compliance issues that would significantly affect us.

6. Review of Connected Transactions or Possible Conflicting Interest Transactions to Ensure Compliance
with the Law and Stock Exchange of Thailand's Regulations: The Audit Committee assigned Intemal Audit
to randomly review feedstock and service purchase and sale transaclions between PTTGC and related
parties. Internal Audit concluded that no connected transactions showed signs of irregularities from the
approved contracts that were processed in accordance with the announcements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). Moreover, the Audit Committee reviewed the auditors’ report on connected
transaction or conflicting interest transaction disclosure. The auditor reported that PTTGC complied with
the laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and that no irregularities were found.

7. Appointment of 2017 Auditors: The Audit Committee nominated the following auditors to the Board of
Directors, who proposed these names at the shareholder meeting for appointment as the 2017 auditors:
Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert (Auditor #4068), or Mr. Waiyawat Korsamamchaiyakij (Auditor #6333) or
Mr. Natthaphong Tantichattanon (Auditor #8829) from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. These auditors were
selected from a pool of auditors who proposed their service to the company for three years, using 2016
as the base year. Taken into consideration were their qualifications, competence, service fees and dis-
tinguished auditing performance in 2016. All of the nominees were from the list approved by the SEC;
they possess sufficient experience and hasn't audited or expressed their opinions on PTTGC's financial
staternents for more than five fiscal years conseculively.

8. Review of Good Corporate Governance: It is the Audit Committee’s policy to focus on systematic
management that brings about good corporate governance. We promote anti-corruption and corruption-
prevention awareness among executive officers and employees through constant seminar and training
sessions. We also acknowledge whistieblower reports of the PTTGC Group, which have been compiled
according to the established procedures. The Audit Committee reviewed the PTTGC's anti-corruption

lic Company limited




self-assessment form for accuracy and adequacy. The form's 71 questions are divided into the following
categones: 1) principles, 2) development of anti-corruption measures, 3) forms of corruption and 4) measures
to implement. We have reviewed and updated our existing anti-corruption measures and corruption risk
assessment, as well as the 71 questions. In 2016 we added the PTTGC Way of Conduct and improved
our director nomination criteria by adding punitive measures for directors who fail to comply with our
anti-corruption policy according to the assessment form of CAC. We initiated control self-assessment and
added corruption as one of the risk factors in our fraud risk assessment. We also added an anti-bribery
clause into our suppliers’ contracts. All of this shows our continuous commitment to compliance with good
corporate governance and anti-corruption measures.

9. Reviews of the Audit Committee’s Charter: The Audit Committee reexamined the charter to ascertain
its alignment with the Stock Exchange of Thailand's 2015 announcement on the scope of responsibilities
of an audit committee and qualifications of its members, as well as the Audit Committee Manual of 2010
and gave the opinion that the charter, which was approved by the board in meeting numbered 3/2015,
is still suitable.

10. Assessments of the Audit Committee’s Performance: The Audit Committee evaluated our 2015
performance as a whole and as individual directors. The results of these assessments were reported to
the board and are disclosed in this annual report.

11. Performance Reports of the Audit Committee: The Audit Commitiee provided reports on our activities
to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. In 2016 a total of four reports were made.

Based on the aforementioned activities throughout 2016, it is believed that PTTGC possesses good
corporate governance, adequate internal control that suits its business, effective risk management,
accurate and accountable financial and accounting reporting system and compliance with all laws, rules
and regulations pertinent to its operations.

The Audit Committee received good cooperation throughout 2016 from the Board of Directors, executive

officers, auditors and all other relevant departs. We would like to express our gratitude here.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

(Signed) Somchai Kuvijitsuwan

(Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan)
Chairman of the Audit Committee




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
ACCOUNTABILITY TO FINANCIAL REPORT

e e W e ——— P ———e

The consclidated financial statements of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries was prepared in accordance with the Securities Exchange Commission under the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting
Act B.E. 2543 Section 11 paragraph 3 in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions’
Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for financial report of PTT Global Chemical Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries in providing reasonable assurance that the financial report present
fairly financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The accounting data is sufficiently and
accurately recorded to preserve the Company's assets and prevent fraud and irregularity. The financial
report has been prepared accordingly to appropriate accounting policy and consistency practices, and in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards. Significant information has been sufficiently disclosed
in notes to financial statements, where the auditor expressad an opinion on the financial statements of PTT
Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries in the auditor’s report.

(Signed) Prasert Bunsumpurn {Signed) Supattanapong Punmeechaow
(Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun) (Mr. Supattanapong Punmeechaow)
Chairman President & Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of PTT Global Chemical Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) and of PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited
(the “Company"), respectively, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
pasition as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated and separate statements of income and comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidaled and separale financial stalemeants present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively, as at 31 December
2016 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements section of my report. 1 am independent of the Group and the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation
of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the King that is relevant to my audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my
audit of the consolidated and separale financial statements of the currenl period. These mallers were
addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole,

and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Impairment of goodwill, property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets and investments in subsidiaries
Refer to Notes 3 (k), 9, 12, 14 and 15 to the financial statements.

[ THE KEY AUDIT MATTER ]

Due to price pressure on Petro-based succinic
acid from the continued low level of crude oil
prices, the Group has undertaken a change in the
operational plan for a foreign subsidiary (Myriant
Corporation). The change in operational plan
indicated that related assets may be impaired and
that the carrying amount of assels may exceedils
recoverable amount and therefore a provision is
required as a result of impairment. The recoverable
amount of assets is based on fair value less cost
of dispasal and value in use. The value in use is
derived from discounted cash flow projection,
which is reflecting a number of assumptions and

estimates.

In planning my audit procedures, | performed
an understanding of the Group's strategic plan
and detailed testing of recoverable amount
of the related assets in accordance with the

strategic plan. | assessed the independence and
competency of the external specialist engaged by
the Group for the valuation of fair value of relating
assels. | assessed the assumptions made by the
management with reference to internally and
externally derived sources and taking into
account the historical forecasting accuracy.
| tested the accuracy of the calculation and
consulted with valuation specialists when
considering the appropriateness of the discount
rate. | considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in respect of the impairment.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Notes 3(g) and 8 to the financial statements.

[ THE KEY AUDIT MATTER ]

Inventory is valued at the lower of its cost and
net realisable value. As a result of fluctuation in
crude oil price may cause the net realisable value
to be lower than its cost. The measurement of
inventories together with their net realisable values
are based on assumptions about the production

yield of crude ail.

| assessed assumptions used in the key
measurement of inventory by evaluating the
production assumptions and comparing to the
actual production in the past and checked the
selling price of each finished goods with reference
market price. | assessed the calculation of net
realisable value of inventory whether the net
realisable value was appropriately calculated.
In addition, | assessed the adeguacy of the
disclosures relating to the valuation of inventories.

bl Chemi

il
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements
and my auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information
and | will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge oblainad in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibiliies of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicatile, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altermnative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company's financial

reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

Infagrutaﬂ;ﬁ Sustainability Rapurt 2{:1{5 | PTT Global C!lermwl Public Company Limf
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As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's and the Company’s internal control,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in
my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consclidated and separate financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concermn.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separale financial statements

represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

| am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain solely

respansible for my audit opinion.

lic Company limited




| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | delermine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in
my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected lo
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

@

{Charoen Phosamritiert)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration Mo. 4068
KPMG Phoomehai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
14 February 2017
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Assels

Crirrent assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade accounts receivahle
Oiher receivables

Invemories

Short-term loans to related parties
Receivable from Oil Fuel Fund
Value-added 1ax receivable
Derivatives

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term loans to other parties
Property, plant and equipment
Land leasehold righe
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Derivatives

Deferred 1ax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa finand

Neater

I
4,6
4.7

34

4.9
410
4.0

i

13
I4
15
34
16

Consolidated financial statements

31 December

2016

31,143,384 207
14,168 554 037
40,982 613,321

3.551,258,902

2015

Separate financial statements

31 December

06

finr Hahy)

11,482 803,936
36,258,195 511
32,148,157.836

6.125,513.333

27949661, 787
13,195,207 881
34,318 805,032

2.974,132.762

2015

6,948 680,839
35,106,047 000
26,565 809 697

5,542,075, 140

35753675748 29930018935 26,250 815,101 23,392,590,733
- - 655,000,000 591,000,000
13,428 346 17,505,196 13,428 346 17,505,196
713,959,743 10464, 676,284 440,142 500
57,755,829 22,804 440 52,501,637 20,768,417
1,128 843 780 B350 914 937 379 118257 718,860,278
127.513,473,913 1175400, 5940, 408 106,297, 760,803 99343, 569,809
54,343 205,600 54,706,000, 180
10,297 828 778 11,109 689 855 042 B40 400 1,152 840 400
13,026,186,055 12,392 623078 9,322,699 060 9,322,699 060
5.586,683,107 573,614,909 5,003 806,590 290,738,392
734,650,566 730,978 684 . .
221.514,174,171 220,212,777.529 170, 166,576,127 171.521. 410,627
362,329 692 400,939 481 362,045 450 400,262 401
931,328 672 1,267,501,158 = =
8130575418 £,837,070, 464 5,232,936, 780 5,338,539,740
7845653 7,845,653
306,067 907 304 832159
4,462 864 803 3,797 391 879 2088 805,042 2521062530
265.652,729.174 150,644, 264.849 248962916298  245261,399.508
393,166,203,087 377,544,855.257 355,260,677,101 344.604,969,407

ial statements.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Liabilities and equity Neare
Current labilities
Short-term loans from financial institions I7
Trade accoums pavable 408
Other payables 4,19
Payables to contractors 4
Short-term loans from related parties 417
Current portion of long-term loans

from financial insumutions 7
Current portion of long-term loans

from other parties 7
Current portion of debentures 17,34
Income tax pavable
Derivatives 34
Short-term provision
Other current liabilinies
Total current liabilities
Nog-current labilities
Long-term loans from financial institutions I7
Long-term loans from other parties i7
Debentures 17,34
Deferred tax liabilities i
Emploves benefit obligations 20
Derivatives 34

Long-term provisions
Other non-current liahilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

The SCCoOMpPpanying notes are an

Consolidated financial statcments

31 December

2006

562,609 893

27,727 469 853

2015

Separate financial statements
31 December

2016

fir Baiu)

601,668 697

19,650,224,134

23885752801

205

15,873,557 469

9,004,921 375 7.779.235.029 7,816,954, 585 5625059921
1,909.117,797 2.131,516,025 1,842,693 528 2212474187
. . 1,513,795,970 £80,120,417
7,091,451 997 7456,254,643 4,948 450,000 5,.968,226,000
746,906,105 754,909 442 - -
2,798 938,302 1,058 000,000 2,798,938,302 058,000,000
1,873,402,849 642,529 493 1,670,555, 166 557,003 488
166,696 995 431,666,704 155,250,926 425 768 667
456,694,976 B90,032,897 - -
29,392,511 24,753,092 - -
53,267,602,636 41.220,790,156 44.632.391.278 32,601.110,149
35 088 001 066 44.010,299.423 19471550000 31,588 854 000
1,168,372,202 1,158,090,527 - -
47.786,239.921 50,807 499 956 47.786,23992] 50,807 499 956
2.238,629.584 2,227.324.764 807,050,827 | 608,628,604
3.067,176,745 2.018,651.764 2.113,277.613 1,963,199 810
23629 844 97,080,566 23629 844 97 080, 560
458 180,989 397,827 667 - -
499,321,107 442,529,194 351,987,162 320420217
91,229.841.458  102,059,303,861 71,553,735,367 86,394.683,153
144497444014 143280094017 116,186,126.645  118.995.793,302

niegral part of thess inancial statements,

eSS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Liabilities and equity

Equity

Share capital

Authorised share capital

Tssued and paid-up share capital

Treasury shares
Share premium
Share premium

Surplus on treasury shares
Difference arising from business combination

under commeon control

Retained eamings
Appropriated

Legal reserve

Loan repayment reserve
Projects expansion reserve

Treasury shares reserve

Unapproprated

Other components of equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Nearg

Consolidated Minancial statements

31 December

2016

2015

Separate lMnancial statements

31 December

2016

i Bahi)

2015

24
45,088 491,170 45,088,491,170 45 088,491,170 45.088.491,170
45088491170 45 088,491,170 45 088.491,170 45088 491,170
o (2,409,544 289) (2,104,534 625) {2,409 544, 289) (2.104,534,625)
23 36,936,829,684 36,936,829 684 36,936,829,684 36,936,829 684
22,23 T.490,764 - 7,490,764 -
23 (1,658,035 683) (1,658,035 683) 450,500,000 -
23 4,512,930,269 4,512,930 269 4,512,930,269 4,512,930,269
807802564 807,802,504 807,802,564 807,802,564
12,446,994 126 12,446,994 126 12,446,994, 126 12.446,994,126
2223 2,409,544 289 2,104,534 625 2409544 289 2104534 625
147,220,167,889 132,503 486,704 138,850.652,172 125.816,128,292
633078970 913,050,544 (37,140,293}
246,015,749.753 231.551.549,378 239074550456 225.609,176,105
2,653,000 220 2.713.211,862 - -
248,668,758,973 234.264.761.240 230,074,550, 456 225.609,176,105
393,166,203,087 377.544,855,157 355.260.677,101 144.604,969,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa inancial statements.



STATEMENT OF INCOME

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Nate

Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services 4
Cost of sale of poods and rendering of services 4
Gross profit
Investment income 4
Orther income 4
Selling expenses 4,25
Administrative expenses 4,26
Less from impairment of assets SI2 14,15
Met derivative gain (loss)
Met foreign exchange gain (loss)
Finance costs 429
Share of loss of investments in joint ventures i
Share of profit of investmems in associaes in
Profit belore income tax expense
Income tax expense ki
Profit for the vear
Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Former shareholder before business restrucuning

Mon-controlling interests
Profit for the vear
Basic earnings per share 32

Consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2006

349,1001,084.612
(307,063,589 917)

015

Separate financial statements

For the vear ended 31 December

2016

fin Hahi)

403,440,229, 574

(366,168.005 889)

307047 821,209

(270365 868.015)

2015

359,155,731,950
(328,405,897 582)

42,037, 504,695

B4] 6ER DEG
2,201,200,418
(1.996,872,055)
(9.502,779.442)

37,272,223,685

1,212,296,615

2,394.866,238
(1,283 957 458)
(10139562 451 )

36,677.953,194

3.6%6,703,445

2.522,303,707
(1.352.040.121)
(7.006.620.06%)

30,749,834 368

4,668, 199 642

2,198,247 816
(6706529100

(T.140,327.804)

(6355338117 (2530904 888) (3,847,721 ,967) (281,551,026)
(602,230,698) 2,595,388, 702 (653,999,504} 2,636,950,356
275,253,424 (2,288 ,507,809) 157,257,649 (2,333,249,469)
(4,220,049,355)  (S,177,793.631) (35288106130 (4.616,400,343)
(488 585,352 (14,482 835) . .
1,10%,550,289 725,371,261 . -
28,905,146,199 22,764,937,399 26,604,425,721 25.211,050,570

(3,025,002 480)

{1,984 085 210)

(2,783,719, 580)

(2.011,732,717)

15,880,053,719

20,780,852, 1 89

23,820,704, 141

23,199,317, 853

25,601,632,867

20,502,497.777

105,156,553

23,820,706, 141

23199317853

278,420,852 173,197,859 - -
15.580,055,719 20,780,852, 189 13,820,706,141 23,199,317, 853
5,74 4.55 5,34 5.15

The accompanying nobés are an integral part of these inancial slatements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated financial statements

For the vear ended 31 December

Separate financial statements

For the vear ended 31 December

Nore 2016 2015 2016 2015
fin Berkath
Profit for the year I5.880,053,719 20,780,852, 189 23.820,T06,141 13,199.317.853
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
Defined benefnt plan actuanial gains {losses) 20 {34,655 608) 41,349 867 - -
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
Investments in joint veniunes i (70,407 622) (46,053,175) - -
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
INVestments in Associaes 1 1165992 (9.241,006) - -
(103,897,238) (13,944,314) - -
Ttems that are or may be reclassified subsequently te profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences
for forcign operations (282.426,107) (309 304,170) - -
Met change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments (20,398,751} . (20,308,751} .
Effective portion of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges (86,362,650) 41,165,191 (36,741,542} -
Share of other comprehensive income of
INVESIMENs in joint ventures i 68,006,896 471,215,203 - -
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
INVESIMENS in AS50Ciaes 1 19742171 (40,156,002 - -
(301,438.441) 162,920,222 (57,140,293} -
Diher comprehensive income (loss)
for the period, net of income tax (405,335,679) 148,975,908 (57.140,293) -
Toal comprehensive income for the year 25474,718.040 20,929.828,097 23,763,565,848 23,199.317.853

Tmal comprehensive income attributable to:

20,644 825,847
105445111
179,557,139

23,763,505,545

23199317853

Oraners of the Company 25242 891 872

Former shareholder before business restructuring -

Mon-contralling mterests 231826168
Twal comprehensive income for the year 25474,718.040

20,929 828,097

13,763,565,848

23,190.317.853

The accompanying nates are an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Llimited and its Subsidiaries

Cuash flaws from operating activities

Profit for the vear

Adjnsimemis for

Depreciation and amortisation

Investrent incoms

Finance costs

Unrealised (gain) loss on derivative

Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange rate

{Reversal of) allowance for doubtiul accoums and bad debis

Laoss from written-ofT of assets

Reversal of allowance for decling in value and obsolesence of
INVEnores

G [rom capital distribution of subsidiary

Allowance for impairment of assets

Loss on disposal of propeny, plant and equipment

Provision for emplovee benefit

Realised deferred pipeline income and equipment
and other income

Share of loss of investments in joint venlures,
net of income 1ax expense

Share of profit of investments in associates,
net of ineome lax expense

Fealised gain on dilution of investment

Income 1ax expense

Consolidated Moancial statements

For the year ended 21 December

Separate financial statements
For the vear ended 31 December

2006 05 6 2018
fin Raltey
25880053719 20, TROBSD, 189 25,820,706, 141 23, 199,317.853
17304363, 382 16,384 825 932 12,974,904, 595 1 2,400,904, 368
(B4] GHR 0RE) (L212296.615) (3,696,703 .445) (4668, 199 642)
4,220 (49 355 5,177,793,631 3528810613 4,616,400 343
(383,61 859) 176,302,754 {391,492 ThHi) 179,048, H57
(71, 798.117) 3 TREGOR BT (18850.722) 376329152
4,202 68 77896128 - (20,870)
6, 163 921 Q427,742 3,295 892 20,053,149
(289 077 254) (2002 358 278) (167,427 386) (25451 56,445)
- - - (42,302 503)
567,374,531 26190048, 168 3,759,562 687 369,710,306
538507991 224,334,435 303,405,701 166,956,619
202,737,353 2RS 587,782 214493012 205,766,997
(7,660, 7T51) (8,535,925) (9,024,478) (10,080,842 )
48¥ 585 352 14 42 835 - -
(1,105,550 280) (725,371,261) - -
- (432,350,338} - -
3,025,002 480 1 E4 085,210 2,783,719 580 011,732,717
49,627 393,766 46,242 439 306 43,305,399.424 30,367, 506,956

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Cash flaws from operating aetivities (comtinge)
Changes in operating assets and liahilities
Trade accounts receivable

Other receivables

Inventones

Value-added tax receivable

Oither current assels

Onher non=current assels

Trade accounts payable

Other pavables

Shert-term provision

Other current liabilities

Employee benefit obligations

Long-term provision

Other non-current liabalities

Cash generated [rom operating activities
Income wax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from fnvesting activities

Interest received

Dwvidends received

Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment

Sale of property. plant and equipment

Purchase of land leasehold right

Purchase of intangible assets

(Increase) decrease in current investments
Increase in debt securities available for sale
Increase in other investment

Proceeds from shor-term loans to related parties
Proceeds from long-term loans 1o related parties
Increase in short-term loans to related parties
Increase in long-term loans to related parties

Cash inllow from capital pay back of subsidiaries

Cash outllow for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures

and associale

Cash inflow from disposal of invesiment in joint venture

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Consolidated financial statements

For the yvear ended 31 December

2006

(8.912,734,133)
2387, 1449 592
(5,285 408, 150
(100, KR4 205)
(439,242 B57)

(1L ATE S 699

2005

separate financial statements
For the vear ended 31 December

2006

fin Halr)

GA10986,025
{1078.736,516)
4 515 B0 556
(1TO980,5]3)
434,060,255

(855,900,569}

(7,747 460,329)
2,295, 124,645
(2,703,002 574)

(156,207, 190)
(1,003,033 282)

2003

4923 577,727
(RT9417.172)

5323, 155,031
(163,834,022)

627162251

(357,171, 260)

B AS1,0402.491 (2,047,744,344) ROI0513513 (2.736,823,77TT)
2564, 710623 (464,738, 130} 2.643,575.273 2,760,416
(210,667 389) (608,21 6) {9,608.916)
4412792 658,207 634 - -
(149 803 S86) (1001,773,673) (6,415 200 {60445 639)
80,132 805 - -
B2 IR 06 (770367, 1%3) | 5,495 450 ¥6, 235 567
46, 349072411 52684650232 A4 585 W12 455 45923 10d1, 162
{1 B3R KIE624) (1. B62 288, 7TTR) (1,472 645 6800 (1308, 370,320
44,490,253, 787 50822361454 43,113.256.775 44.615,720.842
1,004 570,733 1,173,340 957 1,075 549 631 1,932 460,594
46,590 Th1 52635015 2,503 624,761 2.003,005 015

(15,105, 561,374)

(17.745.812,935)

{11,280,550,748)

(9407 8T1.513)

15199917 64028179 14,061,672 44,702 208
- [LECR. R ] - -
(384, 367.976) (1,233,178,337) (336, 1 14, T80) (BE6,656,205)
23643437 551 (4,183,697 715} 234064035197 (3,527,040, 0001
(7,213,907 470 - (7,213,907 470) -
(S00,000) = [ 500,000 .
- 2 000,000,040 TG, MO0,000 2,706, e, (00
R - - 6425 967,752
= {2,000, 000, (M) (H 50,000, 0060) {2, 560, W0, D40y
= = o (563, B0, 230)
- - 50,000,000 42 302 503
(16,650075) (U6, 950, (00) (3,534927 386)  (12,522,695.271)
- - 0, 500,000 -
(111,178.933)  (22.344.731.698) 5768370877 (15.353.601,057)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa inancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Cash flows from fivancing activities
Finance costs paid
Dividend paid
Finance lease payments
Proceeds from short-term loans from (nancial institutions
Proceeds from short-term loans from related parties
Proceeds from long=term loans from financial instinstions
Proceeds from long=term loans [rom other parties
Repayment of short-term loans from financial instittions
Repayment of short-term loans from related paries
Repayment of bong-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of bong-term loans from other parties
Proceeds from increase in investment in subsidiary

from nen-contralling interests
Repayment of debentures
Repayment of treasury shares
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalems at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate changes on balances held in
foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Neore

3

Consolidated Nonancial statements
For the year ended 21 December

2006

(4,144,827 ®45)

(I0LR73,172.597)

(192.415921)
4,775,863 580

14,828,845 971

2005

separate linancial statements
For the vear ended 31 December

2006

fin Bale)

(5,157,565,245)
(11,764 915 ,33%)
1209 649 874)
5,000, 100

26,433 837,503

(3,494,930, 459)
(10481,172.509T)
(120,566,621 )
640,926,520

70050, (0 000

2015

(4,627,6581,731)
(11.270,015,535)
(135,122,897)

20,842 500, (400

50,745,266 51,572,818 - .
{4, 798,070,957) (250450,153) - .

- - (7.250,96T) (1,134.502,413)
(229164064110 (227985674418} (20,056, 900,000 (19.362,339,332)
(51,819,156) (43.546,974) - .

92717076 374,359, 680 - -
(LOSE 0 0G00) (14,643 180,000} (LOSE 0000000 {14,643, 150, (40)
(330,081,400)  (2,104,534,625) (330,081 4000 (2,104,534,625)

32,562,500 - 32,562,300 -
(24,584,059, 894)  (30,027.746,823)  (2T.B25419.024) (32.A434.876,513)
19,795,014,960 (1,250,117,067)  21,056,208,628 (3,174,747, 748)

11,482,803 %36

{134,434 689)

13 519656, 200

7RG T35, 266)

3, K R K39

(55,227 6800

140,136,107 441

(12,678 854)

31.143,384,207

11,482,803,936

27,949,661, 787

6,948,680,839

The accompanying nobés are an integral part of these inancial slatements.

w:
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UNITED NATIONS GLOBAL COMPACT:
Communication on Progress for the LEAD level

f“-
-'.?5 United Nations Global Compact

e

PRINCIPLES OF ADVANCE PROGRAM PAGE NUMBER
Bt et SR e L e R R e L e L L A L e R L e s SR S L L S i B S R L itk AT
1. The COP describes mainstreaming into corporate functions am:l 4-5 24-29, 32-33, 38-39, 48-51, 54-113
| businessunits
The COP describes value chain implementation 34 35, 50-51, 89-95, 110-113

3. The COP describes robust commitments, strategies or policies inthe area = 38-39, 54-62, 89-95

. ofhumanrights i

4. The COPdescribes aﬁectwe managament systemslomtegrate the human 38 39 55 GCI-EE EQ 95 11{]-113

rights principles :

5. TheCOPdescribeseffective monitoring and evaluation mechanisms of human - 38-39, 61-62, 9495

| rights integration |

6. The COP describes robust cummltments str:atagms or pnhmes inthe a area | 3869 84- 95 123

: of labour

g""i"'fr'ié&ﬁ'&%&ﬁ&é’éﬁé&ﬁﬁé'ﬁ’éﬁ%&ﬁéﬁi’ﬁ%ﬁéﬁé’i&ﬁéﬁféié'ﬁié’ééﬁaﬁ'r'"Ei'-'éﬁ'ééléli"'ﬁij"i'i'é.' """"""""""""""

~ principles A

8. The COP describes effective monitoring and evaluation mechanisms of - 93-94, 110-113

. labour principles integration 5

9. The COP describes robust commitments, strategies or policies inthearea | 24-29, 31-32, 60-61, 68-70, 96-8,

| ofenvionmentalstewardship 0%

- 10.The COP describes effective management systems to integrate | 62-64, 68-70, 76-77, 82-83, 105-106

the environmental principles

11. The COP describes effective mumt-:mng and evaluation mechanisms f-:)r 3&39 E&E? 6&35 136-139

__ environmental stewardship b

12. The COP describes robust commitments, strateglas or policies in the area uf 5462

. anti-corruption ;

| 13.The COP describes effective management systems to integrate 54-55,6062
the anti-corruption principle :

14 TheCGPdaacnbeseﬁecwsmommﬁngandavaluahonn‘rachamsmsfurthe 55, 57, 59, 61-62, 102-103

' integration of anti-corruption

1 5. The COP describes core business contributions to UN Goals and issues | 14‘15 20-21, 24-29, 32, 48-51, 76-77

16. The COP describes strategic social investments and philanthropy - 86-88
 17.The COP describes advocacy and public policy engagement |- 114-15,24-29,4849,76-78,80
' 18.The COP describes partnerships and collective action T 3830, 4243, 83-84, 86-89, 102-103,
’ S 112-113
| 19.The COP describes CEO commitment and leadership 2429
23 e COP cosabes Eoartwoonnciomit. ‘<2 ... .oO
R R R s

Maore delals can be found @ hitpdiwew pligegroup. comienfsustainabiliysustainability-society







GRI CONTENT INDEX #Z5,  Materiality

Disclosures

TG

GENERAL STANDARD DISCLOSURES

GENERAL STANDARD EXTERNAL
DISCLOSURES tABE sl ASSURANCE

STRATEGY AND AMALYSIS
G4-1 24-20
ORGANIZATIOMAL PROFILE
(G4 IS By T e
Gi-5 15

toperfomarcedata

yiperfonmancedais |

toin freedom of asacciation in accordance with laws
G- 34.35 ;
34-13 47
. G4-14 55, 62-67, 68-70,72, 79, 82

Gid-15 SE

g5, 106, 108, 113,125, 127

e R LR
IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES
Ga4-17 14, 45-47

: AR M 1-.‘-_|:' s 60 { Shareholding Strectune in Subsidianes and Afflaes) page LA mirance
Ga-18 D42

CG420 4547

e T S

Gd-22 L AT

I Gd23 T AT

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Gd-24 |38

| G425 | 3841, 42
A S

G2 3841

14, GRI content index
14, 42, GRI content incax
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{ 57, AR 2016 page 93 (Governance structure). ;
i hitpifaearw pitgogroup com'en'aboutus org anizatian sinictiuns, ' '

:Aﬂmwma?ﬁ{PﬁGCBoardofDﬁ'ecm} i i :
nllpdm-.w.r pitgcgroup.conven/aboutus/committee/director :

PG F'ITGC Conporate Govemance & Business Cooe of Conduct Handbaok, | - I -
: page 15, 24, 30, 31-52, 43-45 52, 94, 96, 111112, 116117

G445 B3, bt lwwn pitgagroup comiengoremancelrskmanagement | -

i G4-46 i B3, Mln.fmuw mﬂfﬂunmmmmmmmﬂ SE e A

iGaa7 hﬂn Mﬁ"nﬁﬁwn mwmmmwmk mnmnt H - -

H 1 E 5-'5 It eeaew memmmmm : ..
E'“'lm AND INTEGHJW
s T £ . SO S —— - 2N

i 61-82, mmmmwwmnm: - i =

hitp: et pltgegroup. comien/sustairabiliy sustainabitty-scanomic. |
L Gd-58 i B1-82, hepoivan prgcgroup.comieneemance whistisslowerpobcy-pocy | - i -

Mote: -TlnsrapﬂmmludadMIMmmmumhmmtﬁﬂlmmmmthﬁ
& OGS0 = Ol and Gas Sector Disclesure
& [ = Received extemal assurance, - = No exlemal assurance

SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES

| CATEGORY: ECONOMIC
i Ecanomic Performance | G4-DMA
i

! i
i Impact

{ Frocurement Praciices G4-DMA (OGSD) I‘HD

1 HPJM;;.;H;DCWD mumwmhlnw
‘; i | sustaimakility pariemancedata

CATEEQR'I’ EWMMENT&L

i Materials | GADMA jes008 T —
GA-ENT(OGED) | helpwww.pligegroup comveneustainatiiy’ : - - :

H |-
|-
|-

: H mlmumhﬁmmﬂu

:: , mw:-mpt i ,
e S | mssbiypstomicesss ) —— :
; Energy G‘Mfmsmq.”” ............................ e R
i i GA-EN3 75, Bt pHOCEIoUR comensustainabiley! g i

i sustainakiltyiperfomancedata. PP p—
T T ijmw;ﬂtgcm [pmu’ - Irrr:,u} R ".--.-.-“---..-.-"--.--..-.:..-“..-..---.-.-."--.-.-..-.-:p..-.-.-..-..---:.-.-.-.---.--.-.:
| sustamability periomancedata
i m{n@m} " W pitgegroup comlensustainabilty . _
. sustainakilityiparicemancedata H wLmnm|
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SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES

CATEGORY: ENVIRONMENTAL

Energy | GLENG : 75, hitpci/www. pitgogroup.comien/ E .
: . SustainabiitySustainabiitylpedormancedata | b s j
; i G4-ENT i Mot applicable i Not applicable to PTTGC dueto | - g

| G4-DG3 (OGSS) | hitpulwww.pigcaroup, comensustamability! ' - - i

G e
! Water

q

b

s

1

{ Effluent and Waste

amemn q.-

B

mmmgarsaTErETaTEsnna e na e

Qmigpion on rainmweter collecied diregthy
i and stored becauaa this data is curmantly

.......................... AH'P‘-'MWWMM e
sustanabiity-ervircnment!

Gd»-Emm (DGSD)

sustanabiityperformancedata {page LRGA assuance)

E mﬂﬂmhuwﬂm'ﬁ 3
G4-ENTD 85, htpiiww pligegroup comiensustainabiityl | =5 i P
E suslanabiity/performancedata Iwunl.m;i
Gd-l:lm ?2-?3 F T h ‘ = :
GE—EN15{OGSD} T 7B, bp e pigegroup comlenustinabilitg L - = e §
E sustanabiity/performancedata 3 _‘ ) ) w%wt
5 G4-EN1B fDGSD]- ?B, hEtp e PGSO, mm-'emmw - i
{GAENTT(OGSD) | 77, hapiwww pigegroup comensustminasiity’ ¢ - ~ i
G4-EN18 (0GSD) ?"l" R ——— i - » :
mmﬂ:mpﬂuﬂmmu wmmr

..................................................................

Supplfﬂr Em'lmrunanlal

Crearall et Har 1]
§ 110

E : .,.memww - | it
et _ ) R i)

i B1, hutpiwaw pltgagraup, mm‘!mbﬂmﬁ - : !

i E sustanabiity/parformancedata Py o p——

i T3, hipuiwew ppcarou comenaustainabiny ; P

i sustanabityperormancedata B . mv—

: B4-0GE (OGSD) | Hiipoiwww pligegroup comensustanabilty! - i g

— % S—— | ambablopeomancedatn o b i ;
Product and Services u_ma-mﬁ __________ i - - g - K
UM . TS 2 N et
Compﬁﬂmﬂ . TG‘t-DhiA - : 51 m hmfhwmem'swmmhﬂ?rw r o s : : T
H .._;.Wwfﬁml __________ ) e 1

BE At e, prngegma.m com'an'sustainabiling

1

; Assassment

e e L
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B-#ENSE

'?G&Dﬂm

CATEGORY: SOCIAL

{ Employment i

s

H

H
H

1 GA-LAZ

I G4-EN34

: GA-DMA [OGED) ¢

TBalAT

SUB-CATEGORY: LABOUR PRACTICE AND DECENT WORK

| G4-LA3

P hmmwmmrubﬁw - -

$1 (IR ——— bl £ C ! “ :

sustanabity-economic (Breaches) R

BH, hip:/hwsnw pigegroup. com/en/ststainability - i
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SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES

| CATEGORY: SOCIAL

| SUB-CATEGORY: LABOUR PRACTICE AND DECENT WORK
| Occupational Healtn G‘*th*-‘zﬁm ............................................................. A B e 5 :
i and Safaty i :

I hitp: e pHOCQIOUD. Com. e suslainabity/sustainatil iy periomrarcedats

"Fféiﬁh"é'%iﬁii'ﬁélﬁiiﬁ i G4DMA

[Dwersiyand T GROMA T
i Equal Opportunity ; Ga-La12 ;
r.g{jﬁa.iaf......_.........t. ¥ G@-DMA ROGSD} .:...._._._... et
i for Labour Practices ﬁf‘..":ﬁ'.'ﬂ .......................................................................................
| Labour Practices | Ga.DMA
GITE':EI‘IDE Machanisms | L nepoew phigcgroup cominiusianalty
G-t LAIG it et wnmwnwbi@w = I -
: { { (Braches Reporing!. i
i } hitpwww pHigogroup, comsn's usainabikty sustainatil ty perommancedats i

BUB'CA»TEGOHY:'-I'H.IH.‘.N RIGHTS
! investment i

T s S e S

Chlld labour i EA-DMA :OGSD} 39-90 WWWM& R - 1
: i-;l-.HF.lﬁ M‘rp('.hw p:w.'-\ S .-E.-..-..-..-....-..-..-..:...“...-..-..-....-. .-.-..-..“.:...-.-.-..-.-.-4

Forced or Compulsary | G4-DMA (OGSD) | 89-80, rep:iwem sigegroup.comes ity — - i £

L.Ebuur G‘ HRG #m e St muw e o e e el o e e

Sw:plmr Human nghts e G-&-DM#. [OGSD} 1o

{Assessment  PGeHRIO T, mm :?fj:'_:ff_f?f.ﬁff'.ﬁﬁf' rwcaces | -
Hurnan Rights PGADMA T R0.00 PO R T T
Grievance Mechanisms | G4-HR12 Ewmmnmmm.mmuw - i - i

| SUB-CATEGORY: SOCIETY
| Local communiies | G4-DMA (OGSD) | 82-83, 86 i 2 i -

:.-..-..-..-..-..-....--....-.-..-""-..-....-7..-..-..-.-.. T A B B R R R RN R R R AR A
Anti-Comaplion § G4-DMA (OGSD) 55 H

i G4-508 © g e IS SO SN NEE S AR by s 4 Thas s re macratary value of sigrificart s | -
’ § I wdnnsey sesteraly
: H s mguianors i 04

.ﬁa}al:.n.............l..l.t.....;..é.‘..m...............E............._............................................. 2 i e

i for Impacts on Society | G4-509

‘Grigvance Mechanisms | G4-DMA Gi - j
for Impacts on Society :Gﬁ-snn . - R
Wﬂﬂwm-mwﬁml EW R Ry RASE Pt SR
Assat Integrity :_ G4-DMAOGSD) H : ] -

and Process Salety E-G‘ DG13{OGSD}¢I26
| SUB-CATEGORY: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
| Customer Health i :

Note: @ This repon & included extenal venfication on Limted Assurance (GRI G4 in accordance with "RORET)
& OGS0 = Oil and Gas Sector Disclosurn:
& GHG data verification and 37 party assurance based on 150 14064- Hor G4-EN15 - G4-EN19 is expected 1o be completed in April, 2016.
& [ = Receved axtemal assurancs, - = No axiemal assurance
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Lloyd's Register
LRQA

LRQA Assurance Statement
Relating to PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited's Sustainability

Report for the calendar year 2016

This Assurance Statement has been prepared for PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited in accordance
with our contract but is intended for the readers of this Report.

Terms of Engagement

Lloyd's Register Quality Assurance Ltd. (LRQA) was commissionad by PTT Global Chemical Public Company
Limited (PTTGC) to provide independent assurance on its Sustainability Report for the calendar year 2016 (“the
Report’) against the assurance criteria below to a limited level of assurance and at the materality of the
professional judgement of the verifier using LRQA's verification approach. LROA's verification approach is based
on current best practice and uses the principles of AAT000AS (2008) - Inclusivity, Materiality, Responsiveness and
Reliability of performance data and processes defined in ISAE2000.

Our assurance engagement covered PTTGC's operations and activities in Thailand, including its subsidiary

companies where PTTGC holds more than 50% of share capital, and specifically the following requirements:

+  Confirming that the Report is in accordance with:
- GRI G4's Reporting Guidelines and Core option
- GRIG4's Qil and Gas Sector Supplemant

« Evaluating the reliability of data and information for selecled specific standard disclosures:
energy consumption within the organization (G4-EN3), energy intensity (G4-ENS), total water withdrawal
by source as water consumption (G4-EN8), percentage and total water recycled & reused (G4-EN10),
S0x, NOx and VOC (G4-EN21), total water discharge by quality and destination (G4-EN22), total weight
of waste by type and disposal method (G4-EN23), and type of injury and rates of injury as LTIFR,
occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism and total number of work-related fatalities (G4-LAB).

Our assurance engagement excluded the data and information of PTTGC's operations and activities outside of
Thailand.

LROA's responsibility is only to PTTGC. LROA disclaims any liability or responsibility to others as explained in the
end footnote. PTTGC's responsibility is for collecting, aggregating, analysing and presenting all the data and
information within the Report and for maintaining effective internal controls over the systems from which the
Report is derived. Ultimately, the Report has been approved by, and remains the responsibility of PTTGC.

LRQA's Opinion

Based on LROA's approach nothing has come to our attention that would cause us to believe that PTTGC has not:
*  Mel the requirements above

+ Disclosed reliable performance data and information for the selected specific standard disclosures

* Covered all the issues that are important to the stakeholders and readers of this Report.

The opinion expressed is formed on the basis of a limited level of assurance and at the materiality of the
professional judgement of the Verifier.

Mote: The extent of evidence-gathering for a limited assurance engagement is less than for a reasonable assurance engagement.
Limited assurance engagements focus on aggregated data rather than physically checking source data al sites.

LRQA’'s Approach

LROA's assurance engagements are carried out in accordance with LRQA's Report Verification procedure. The

following tasks though were undertaken as part of the evidence gathering process for this assurance engagement:

* Assessing PTTGC's approach to stakeholder engagement to confirm that issues raised by stakeholders were
captured correctly. We did this by reviewing documents and associated records.

* Reviewing PTTGC's process for identifying and determining material issues to confirm that the right issues
were included in their Report and updated overtime.  We did this by benchmarking reports written by PTTGC
and its peers 1o ensure that sector specific issues were included for comparability.

We also tested the filters used in determining material issues to evaluate whether FTTGC makes informed
business decisions that may create opportunities which contribute towards sustainable development.

«  Auditing PTTGC's data management systems to confirm that there were no significant errors, omissions or
mis-statements in the Report. We did this by reviewing the eifectiveness of data handling process, and
systems, including those for internal verification. We also spoke with key people in various facilities
responsible for compiling the data and drafting the Report.



Lloyd's Register
LRQA

= \Visiting the Olefins business unit of PTTGC2, Aromatic business unit of PTTGCS and Refinery business
unit of PTTGCE in Rayong 1o sample evidence for the selected specific standard disclosures to confirm its
reliability.
Mate: LRQA did not verify the data back to its onginal sources, nor did it assess the accuracy and completeness of the data
reported by individual locations.

Observations

Further observations and findings, made during the assurance engagement, are:

+  Slakeholder Inclusivity:
We are not aware of any key stakeholder groups that have been excluded from PTTGC's stakeholder
engagement process.  However, we believe that PTTGC should as best praclice engage in direct
communication with its community and supply chain stakeholders.

«  Materiality:
We are not aware of any material aspects concerning PTTGC's sustainability performance that have been
excluded from the Report. PTTGC has processes for identifying and determining their material aspects; the
evaluation process considers factors such as stakeholder concerns, business risk, legal compliance and
issues addressed by peers.

*  Responsiveness:
PTTGC and its subsidiaries have processes for responding 1o various stakeholder groups. We believe that
future reparts should further explain the actions being taken by PTTGC to address the concerns raised during
its engagement with the supply chain stakeholders; for example — on providing clear purchasing specifications
and promoting competitiveness amongst the suppliers.

+  Reliability:
PTTGC's uses a well-defined, centralized, system to collect and calculate its data and information associated
with the selected specific standard disclosures listed above. PTTGC should consider interim verification to
ensure the quality and timeliness of its reported data and information.

LRQA’s competence and independence

LRQA ensures the selection of appropriately qualified individuals based on their qualifications, training and
experience. The outcome of all verification and cerification assessments is then intemally reviewed by senior
management to ensure that the approach applied is rigorous and transparent.

This verification, together with the 1SO 14064-1 assurance engagement, and TGO TVETS (Thailand Valuntary
Emission Trading Scheme of Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (Public Organization))
assurance engagement are the only work undertaken by LRQA for PTTGC and as such does not compromise our
independence or impartiality.

Signed Daled: 14 February 2017

Opart Charuratana
LRQA Lead Verifier

On behalf of Lloyd's Reqgister Quality Assurance Lid.
Lloyd's Register International {Thailand) Limited
14th Floor, Sirinrat Building, 3388/46 Rama |V Road
Klongton, Klangtoey, Bangkak 10110 THAILAND

LROQA Reference: BGKE030198

Lioyd's Register Group Limited, its affiates and subsidiaries, including Lloyd's Register Qualily Assurance Limited (LRCA), and their
respective olficers, employeas or agenis ang, individually and collectively, relerrad 1o in this clause as ‘Lioyd's Register'. Lioyd's Register
assumes no responsibi ity and shall not be liable to any person for anmy loss, damage or expense caused by reliance on the nformation
ar advica in this documeant or howsoever provided, unlass that person has signed a contract with the relevant Lloyd's Register entity for
the pravision o this information or advice and in that case any responsibility or liability is exclusively on the terms and conditions set out
n that contract.

The English version of this Assurance Statement is the only valid version. Lloyd's Register Group Limited assumes no responsibility for
versions translated into other languages

This Assurance Statement is only valid when published with the Report to which it refars, It may only be reproduced in its entirety

Copyright © Lloyd's Register Quality Assurance Limited, 2017. A member of the Lloyd's Register Group
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PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited
555/1 Energy Complex Building A, 14™-18" Floor,
Vibhavadi Rangsit Road, Chatuchak, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900 Thailand
Tel : 66 (0) 2265-B400 Fox : 66 (D) 2265-8500
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TnsAwr : 02 265-8400 Tnsans : 02 265-8500
www . pttgcgroup.com

This report is certified with zero greenhouse gos emission
by Theilond Greenhouse Gas Organizetion (Public Organization),
which is one of our environmental impoct reduction gools.
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